
la
CITY OF SELMA

COI,JNCIL REGI,JLAR MEETING
January 19,2021

VIA TELECONFERENCE PURSUANT TO EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20 ISSUED BY
GOWRNORGAVINNEWSOM. THE COUNCILCHAMBER WAS CLOSED TO THE

P(IBLIC. PUBLIC HAD THE OPTION TO CALL +1 3OI 715 8592 ID: E46 57OI 7I9O

PASSCODE: 322782 TO PROVIDE COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS.

The regular meeting of the Selma City Council was called to order at 6:06 p.m. in the
Council Chambers and by teleconference. Council members answering roll call were:
Guerra, Mendoza-Navarro, Trujillo, Mayor Pro Tem Cho, and Mayor Robertson.

Also present were City Manager Gallavan, Assistant City Manager Moreno, Fire Chief
Petersen, Police Chief Gomez, Recreation and Community Services Director Kirchner,
Public Works Director Ferrell, Contract Planner Noguera, Acting Attomey Brent
fuchardson and interested citizens.

The agenda for this meeting was duly posted in a location visible at all times by the general
public seventy-two hours prior to this meeting.

II\WOCATION: Pastor Maria Tafoya of First Christian Church led the invocation. A
moment of silence was held in honor of Mr. Paul Pallares, Ms. Carol Montoya and Ms.
Cynthia Gonzales.

ORAL COMMIJMCATIONS: Public comments were received from Mrs. Yolanda
Torres, Mr. Jesse Crouch, Mr. Mark Medina, Mrs. Nanry Caballero, Mr. Robert
Cervantez, and Ms. Elsa Guiba.

PLANNING PRESENTATION: Contract Planner Kira Noguera provided a power point
presentation on current planning projects in the City.

CONSENT CALENDAR: Council member Mendoza-Navarro requested to pull item 1'a.

and l.g. for separate discussion. Council member Guerra requested to pull item 1.b. and l-c.
Motion was then made by Council member Guerra to approve the remainder of the

Consent calendar as written. Motion was seconded by Council Member Trujillo. Motion
carried unanimously.
I .a. Pulled Consideration of the June I, 2020, Council meeting minutes

b. Pulled Consideration of a Resolution awarding contract to R.J. Berry Jr., Inc.
for the Huntsman Avenue Widening Projea

Consideration of a Resolution awarding contract to Don Berry
Construction, Inc., for the Selma Arterials Pavement Improvement
Project No STPL-5096(036)

c Pulled

SPECIAL PRESENTATION: Mayor Robertson administered the Attorney Oath of Office
to Sukhman Singh Sekhon, a Selma resident and has requested Mayor Roberson to
administer his oath. During the COVID-l9 pandemic, an official can administer the oath for
the Califomia State Bar under Govemment Code $40603.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 1

reynar
Typewritten Text



f.

City of Selma
Regular City Coutcil Meaing
January 19, 2021
Page 2

d. 2021-3R Consideration of a Resolution awarding construcrion contract to Don
Berry Construction, Inc., for the Selma Alley Improvement Project No
cML-s096(039)

e 2021-4P. Consideration of a Resolution approving the Supplemental Agreement
No. F033 for preliminary engineering for design of a new traffic signal
at the intersection of Mccall Ave. and Dinuba Ave. in Selma, CA.

Aooroved Council authorize the City Manager to sign and submit a lefter and
requests for State Budget Appropriation requests to Senator Hurtado's
Office

C. Pulled Consideration ofthe check register dated January 11,2021

CONSENT CALENDAR AGENDA ITEMS l.a.r l.b.r 1.c. and l.g.: After discussion of
agenda items 1.a., 1.b. 1.c. and 1.g., motion was made by Council member Guerra and
seconded by Council member Mendoza-Nava o to approve items 1.a. JUNE l, 2020,

COLTNCIL MEETING MINUTES; 1.b. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-1R, A RESOLUTION
AWARDING CONTRACT TO R.J. BERRY JR., INC. FOR THE HUNTSMAN
AVENUE WIDENING PROJECT; 1.c. RESOLUTION NO. 2021'2R, A RESOLUTION
AWARDING CONTRACT TO DON BERRY CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR THE
SELMA ARTERIALS PAVEMENT IMPROVEMENT PROJECT NO STPL-5096(036);
and l.g. CHECK REGISTERDATED JANUARY 11,2021. Motion carried unanimously.

2. 2021-5R Continued Item-Consideration and Necessary Action on Resolution
declaring an Abandoned Sign at 1505 2nd Street, Selma, Califomia
and Illegal On-Premises Advertising Display and Public nuisance and

Ordering the Property Owner to Abate the Nuisance -Public Hearing

Mayor RoberSon opened the public hearing at 7'.04 p.m. Public comments were received by
Mr. Jesse Crouch and Mr. Jim Avalos. Mayor Robertson closed the public hearing at 7:09

p.m. After Council discussion, motion was made by Council member Mendoza-Navarro
and seconded by Council Member Guerra to approve RESOLUTION NO. 2021-5R, A
RESOLUTION DECLARING AN ABANDONDED SIGN AT 1505 2ND STREET,

SELMA, CALIFORNIA AND ILLEGAL ON.PREMISES ADVERTISING DISPLAY
AND PUBLIC NUISANCE AND ORDERING THE PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE
THE NUISANCE WITH HEARING DATE SET FOR FEBRUARY 16, 2021. Motion
carried unanimously.

3. Continucd Continued Item-Consideration and Necessary Action on Resolution
declaring an Abandoned Sigrr at 1630 2nd Street, Selma, Califomia
and Illegal On-Premises Advertising Display and Public nuisance and

Ordering the Property Owner to Abate the Nuisance -Public Hearing

Mayor Robertson opened the public hearing at 7:15 p.m. Public comments were received by
Mr. David Mendrin, owner of property, Mr.Jim Avalos, and Mrs. Yolanda Torres. Mayor
Robertson closed the public hearing at 7:23 p.m. After Council discussion, motion was

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 2



City of Selna
Regular City Council Meeting
January 19, 2021

Page 3

made by Council member Guerra and seconded by Council Member Mendoza-Navarro to
continue the item until March 15,2021 to allow the owner to continue with planning site
improvements. Motion carried unanimously.

4. Pulled Continued Item-Consideration and Necessary Action on Resolution
Declaring an Abandoned Sign at 1635 2nd Street, Selma, Califomia
and Illegal On-Premises Advertising Display and Public nuisance and
Ordering the Property Owner to Abate the Nuisance Public Hearing

City Manager Gallavan reported on the matter and reported to Council the property was

recently sold. Acting Attomey Richardson advised Council to pull the item to allow for the
new property owners to be noffied. After Council discussion and no comments from the
public, consensus was made to pull the item to allow staffto notiff the new owners.

RECESS: Mayor Robertson recessed the meeting at 7:29 p.m. The meeting reconvened at
7:35 p.m.

5. Approved Consideration of City CARES Act Funding Allocation
from Fresno County Associated FY 2020-21 Budget Adjustments

Public comments were received from Mrs. Victoria Delgadillo, Mrs' Yolanda Torres, Mr.
Louis Franco, Mr. Mark Medina, Mr. Jim Avalos, Ms. Theresa Salas, Ms. Nanry
Caballero, Dr. Humberto Gomez, Jr., and Mr. Richard Smith. After Council discussion and

no further comments from the public, motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Cho and

seconded by Council member Mendoza-Navarro to approve CITY CARES ACT
FUNDING ALLOCATION FROM FRESNO COI.JNTY ASSOCIATED FISCAL YEAR
2O2O-21 BUDGET ADruSTMENT AS FOLLOWS: $150,000 FOR A BUSINESS
LICENSE FEE RELIEF PROGRAM FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2021; $5'900 TO
WAIVE FEES FOR DOG LICENSES; $10,000 FOR SHOP LOCAL SMALL BUSINESS

GIFT CARD PROGRAM; and $1,800 TO COVER THE COST OF UTILITIES FOR
THE OPTUM SERVE COVID-Ig TEST SITE AT PIONEER VILLAGE. MOtiON CATTiCd

unanimously.

RECESS: Mayor Robertson recessed the meeting at 8:52 p.m. The meeting reconvened at

8:57 p.m.

6. Information Continued Item-Discussion of Changes in Certain Functions of the

Only City Council Created by New Four District Council member Eleoion
with atJarge Elective Mayor

Ciry Manager Gallavan reviewed the informational report for Council. Public comments

were received from Dr. Humberto Gomez, Jr., Mr. Louis Franco, Ms. Theresa Salas, and

Mrs. Yolanda Torres. Mayor Robenson requested the joint powers agleement and bylaws
for the Selma Kingsburg Fowler Counry Sanitation District and Fresno Council of
Governments. After Council discussion and clarification from Acting Attomey Richardson,

no further action was taken on the matter as this was an informational agenda item.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 3



City of Selma

Regular City Council Meeting
January 19, 2021

Page 4

7. Approved Council request to discuss the process ofchanging the mayoral
appointments and the appointments to city commissions

Public comments were received from Mrs. Victoria Delgadillo, Mrs. Yolanda Torres, Dr.
Humberto Gomez, Jr., Mr. Louis Franco, Ms. Theresa Salas, Mr. Mark Medina, and Mr.
Jim Avalos. After Council discussion, motion was made by Council member Mendoza-
Navarro and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Cho to ALLOW COUNCIL MEMBERS TO
APPROVE THE MAYOR APPOINTMENTS IN THE ABSENCE OF LANGUAGE IN
A JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. Motion carried with the following vote:

8. Approved Council request to update Council's Code of Conduct

Public comments were received from Mrs. Victoria Delgadillo, Mrs. Yolanda Torres, Mr.
Louis Franco, Mr. Jim Avalos, Ms. Theresa Salas, Mr. Mark Medina, and Dr. Humberto
Gomez, Jr. After Council discussion and no further comments from the public, a motion
was made to approve the REVIEW AND UPDATE AS NEEDED TO THE COUNCIL's
CODE OF CONDUCT by Council member Mendoza-Navarro. Motion died for lack of a
second.

The matter was revisited at the request of Council member Mendoza-Navarro to clariff that
there was a second on the floor but Mayor Pro Tem Cho was muted. At this point in the

meeting Mayor Robertson requested that ro11 call be taken on the motion. Council member

Mendoza-Navarro clarified that her motion was to DIRECT CITY STAFF TO REVIEW
AND UPDATE AS NEEDED THE COLINCIL'S CODE OF CONDUCT. Motion was

seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Cho. Motion carried with the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Mendoza-Navarro, Cho, Trujillo
Guerra, Robertson
None
None

Mendoza-Navarro, Cho, Trujillo, Guerra
Robenson
None
None

g. Continued Council request to discuss Council meeting start time for presentations

Public comments were received from Mrs. Victoria Delgadillo, Mrs. Yolanda Tonez, Dr.
Humberto Gomez, Jr., Mr. Jim Avalos, Ms. Theresa Salas, and Mr. Mark Medina. After

Council discussion and no further comments from the public, a motion was made by

Council Member Guerra and seconded by Council member Mendoza-Navarro to DIRECT
CITY STAFF TO RESEARCH THIS ITEM FURTHER AND BRING BACK AT A
FUTURE MEETING. Motion carried unanimously.

10. Approved consideration of appointments to city Commissions as a result of
unscheduled vacancies

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 4



City of Selna
Regular City Council Meeting
January 19, 2021
Page 5

City Clerk Rivera reported on the applications received for the various Commissions for
those incumbents wishing to seek appointment. She also stated that Mrs. Yolanda Torrez
requested that her application be pulled from the process.

It was the consensus of Council to appoint Mr. John Mendoza to the Recreation and
Communiry Services Commission.

It was the consensus of Council to appoint Mr. John Mendoza to the Pioneer Village
Commission with the term ending on June 30,2021.

It was the consensus of Council to appoint Mr. Jesse Crouch, Mr. Louis Franco and Mr.
Mike Valverde to the Pioneer Village Commission.

At this point in the meeting Acting Attomey Richardson clarified the process for Council
and advised that a motion and a second was not necessary as the statue stated Council
approval. After Council discussion of the process, it was concluded that only roll call votes

would be needed.

Council consideration of Mr. Marvin Forbe to the Personnel Commission. Motion did not
carry with the following Yote:

AYES: Guerra, Robertson
NOES: Mendoza-Navarro,Trujillo,Cho
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

Council consideration of Mr. John Mendoza to the Personnel Commission. Motion did not
carry with the following vote:

AYES: Guerra, Robertson
NOES: Mendoza-Navarro,Trujillo,Cho
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

Council consideration of Mrs. Teresa Salas to the Personnel Commission. Motion did not

carry w.ith the following vote:
AYES: Mendoza-Navarro, Cho
NOES: Guerra, Trujillo, Robertson
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

Council consideration of Mr. Louis Franco to the Personnel Commission. Motion carried

with the following vote:
AYES: Mendoza-Navarro,Trujillo,Cho
NOES: Guerra, Robertson
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 5



City of Sdna
Regular City Council Meaing
Jaruary 19, 2021
Page 6

RECESS: Mayor Robertson recessed the Council Regular meeting at ll:27 p.m. and
convened the Successor Agency to the Dissolved Selma Redevelopment Agency Special
meeting. At ll:30 p.m. Mayor Robertson reconvened the Council Regular meeting.

DEPART},I E\T REPORTS: City Manager Gallavan provided an update on the cafe light
project at which time Public Works Director Ferrell stated the projected completion date
was February 2021. Public Works Director also thanked Cal Water for the funding provided
towards the cafe light project. City Manager Gallavan reponed on upcoming projects and
budget workshops.

Assistant City Manager Moreno reported that the Central Valley Training Center will be

holding a Graduation Ceremony on January 29e at 1 1:00 a.m. for the first graduating class.

Fire Chief Petersen provided an update on the vaccination site at the Nick Medina Senior
Center and asked Council and City Staff to reach out to County officials in requesting
additional vaccine clinics for the City of Selma. Chief Petersen also reported that his staff
had been deployed to hospitals in Bakersfield and Mission Viejo on COVID related
assignments as well as Strike Team assigrrment in Madera County.

Community Services Director Kirchner reported on applying for two grants for the Ars
Council to offset operating cost.

Police Chief Gomez provided an update on the new Police Department and homeless

encampment issues.

COUNCIL REPORTS: Council member Mendoza-Navarro provided an update on the

Adopt a Child program

Council member Guerra reported on attending the Ribbon Cutting for Selma Pharmacy and

turo Selma Kingsburg Fowler County Sanitation meetings. Council member Guerra

reported she received her fust dose of the COVID vaccine through United Health Centers

and encouraged everyone to get it.

Mayor Pro Tem Cho reported attending the Five Cities meeting and that all cities have

reported upcoming growth.

Mayor Robertson requested to place as a future Council agenda item an authorization to
request a group meeting with the Selma School Board, Selma Healthcare District and Selma

Cemetery district.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: Public comments were received by Mrs. Victoria
Delgadillo, Dr. Humberto Gomez, Jr., and Mr. fuchard Smith.

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business, the meeting was adjoumed at 12'.04

a.m.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 6



City of Sdna
Regular City Courcil Meairy
January 19, 2021

Page 7

Respectfully submitted,

Reyna Rivera
City Clerk

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 7



rb
CITY OF SELMA

CITY COI,JNCIL SPECIAL MEETING
January 22,2021

VIA TELECONFERENCE PURSUANT TO EXECWIW ORDER N.29.20 ISSUED BY
GOVEKNOR GAVIN NEWSOM, THE COWUL CHAMBER WAS CLOSED TO THE

PUBLIC. PUBLIC HAD THE OPTION TO CALL +l 301 715 8592 ID: 884 7195 7534

PASSCODE:012221 TO PROVIDE COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS.

The special meering of the Selma City Council was called to order at 9:02 a.m. in the
Council Chambers. Council members answering roll call were: Guerra, Mendoza-Navarro,
Trujillo, Mayor Pro Tem Cho and Mayor Robertson.

Also present were Acting Attomey Richardson, Police Chief Gomez, Community Services

Director Kirchner, Contract Planner Noguera, City Engineer Bond, Recreation Coordinator
Martinez, Assistant City Manager Moreno, and City Manager Gallavan and interested
citizens.

The agenda for this meeting was duly posted in a location visible at all times by the general

public twenty-four hours prior to this meeting.

DDEqFNTATION ON p nrrra\rniLL POND P A DI' DPr. TP' T BY CITY CT A FF.

Introductions of the Selma Development Parmers and City Staff working on the Rockwell
Pond were made. A power point presentation was given by Community Services Director
Kirchner which provided Council updates on status of the grant and funding of the

Rockwell Pond project.

PRESENTATION ON CON EPTUAL DRAWIN G OF POTENTIAL PARK
RELATIVE TO SELMA GRO BY CLIFF TUTELIAN DEYELOPER OF SELMA
GROVE: Mr. Cliff Tutelian with Selma Development Partners provided a power point
presentafion on the Selma Site Plan relative to Selma Grove and economic development.

City Manager Gallavan and Community Services Director Mikal Kirchner reported on the

item for Council. Public comments were received from Mr. Frank Hoyt, Mrs. Yolanda

Torrez and Mr. Mateo Rodriguez in favor of the project. After a lengthy Council discussion

consensus was made to bring the item back to Council for a special meeting by February 8,

2021 or at the latest February 16,2O2l to allow City Staff to look further into impact

reports.

RECESS: Mayor Robenson recessed the meeting at 10:58 a.m. The meeting leconvened at

I l:07 a.m.

Continued Item- Consideration ofa Resolution approving a request to enter

into an Agteement with Vanir Consmrction Management, Inc. for Project
Management of the Rockwell Park Project, Approving the Agreement, and

Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Agreement on Behalf of the

City

2021-6R

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 8



CLOSED SESSION: At 11:14 a.m., Mayor Robertson recessed the meeting into Closed
Session to discuss the following:

YEE APPO ITY AT:TO Pursuant to
Govemment Code Section 54957.

Mayor Robertson reconvened the meeting from closed session at 1 1:32 a.m., and stated that
the reportable action for the item regarding public employee appointment was that an
Interim City Anomey was selected by the City Council. Pending the acceptance by the
selected Interim City Attorney, City Staff will bring a conuact for public review during the

next Council meeting.

ADJOTJRNMENT: There being no further business, the meeting was adjoumed at ll:33
a.m.

Respectfu lly submitted,

Reyna Rivera
City Clerk

City of Selma

Special City Council Meaing
January 22, 2021

Page 2

Community Services Director Kirchner reported on the item for Council. Public comment
was received from Mrs. Yolanda Torrez. After Council discussion, a motion was made by
Council member Mendoza-Navarro and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Cho to approve
RESOLUTION NO. 2O2I-6R A RESOLUTION APPROVING A REQUEST TO ENTER
INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH VANIR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, INC.
FOR PROJECT MANAGEMENT OF THE ROCKWELL PARK PROJECT,
APPROVING THE AGREEMENT, AND AUTHORIZING TIIE CITY MANAGER TO
EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY. Motion carried
unanimously.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 9



Ic
CITY OF SELMA

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING
February 1,2021

WA TELECONFERENCE PURSUANT TO EXECWIVE ORDER N.29.20 ISSUED BY
GOVEKNOR GAVIN NEWSOM, THE COUNCIL CHAMBER WAS CLOSED TO THE

PUBLIC. PUBLIC HAD THE OPTION TO CALL +1 301 715 6592 ID: 893 8167 1809

PASSCODE: 1893 TO PROWDE COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS.

The special meeting of the Selma City Council was called to order at 5:02 p.m. in the
Council Chambers. Council members answering roll call were: Guerra, Mendoza-Navarro,
Trujillo, Mayor Pro Tem Cho and Mayor Robenson.

Also present were City Manager Gallavan, Assistant City Manager Moreno, Interim City
Counsel Montoy and interested citizens.

The agenda for this meeting was duly posted in a location visible at all times by the general

public twenty-four hours prior to this meeting.

CLOSED SESSION: At 5:04 p.m., Mayor Robertson recessed the meeting into Closed

Session to discuss the following:

LIABILITY CLAIMS:
Claimant: Sirach Harless
Agenry Claimed Against: City of Selma

Conference with Legal Counsel; Existing Litigation
(Gov. Code 0 54956.9(dXl)

The City Council finds, based on advice from legal counsel, that discussion in open session

will prejudice the position of the local agenry in the litigation.

Name of Case: Avalos v. Mendoza-Navarro et al.

Names of Parties or Claimants: Plaintiff Jimmie "Jim" Avalos; Defendants Blanca

Mendoza-Navarro, an individual and Brandi orth, in her capacity as county
Clerk/Registrar of Voters of Fresno County Case No. or Claim No. Fresno Superior Court,

Case No. 20CECG03762

Mayor Robertson reconvened the meeting from closed session at 6:02 p.m.

Interim City Counsel Montoy reported that all Council members were plesent during the

closed session. She stated that there was no reportable action on the claim against the City
of Selma and with respect to Avalos v. Mendoza-Navarro there was reportable action. She

stated that Council approved the City's defense of the election contest fiIed by former

Council member Avaios against cunent Council member Mendoza-Navarro and Brandi

orth, County clerk/Registrar of voters. The vote was as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Cho,

Council members Trujillo and Mendoza-Navano voted yes. Council member Guerra and

Mayor Robertson voted no.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 10



City of Sebna

Special City Coutcil Meaing
February l, 2021
Page 2

ADJOITRNMENT: There being no further business, the meeting was adjoumed at 6:03
p.m.

Respectfu lly submitted,

Reyna Rivera
City Clerk

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 11



CITYOFSELMA
COI,INCIL REGULAR MEETING

February 1,2021

VIA TELECONFERENCE PURSUANT TO EXECUTIW ORDER N-29-20 ISSUED BY
GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM. THE COUNCIL CHAMBER WAS CLOSED TO THE

PUBLIC. PUBLIC HAD THE OPTION TO CALL +I 301 715 8592 ID: 893 8167 1809

PASSCODE: 1893 TO PROVIDE COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS.

The regular meeting of the Selma City Council was called to order at 6:04 p.m. in the
Council Chambers and by teleconference. Council members answering ro11 call were:
Guerra, Mendoza-Navarro, Trujillo, Mayor Pro Tem Cho, and Mayor Robertson.

AIso present were City Manager Gallavan, Assistant City Manager Moreno, Interim Ciry
Counsel Montoy, Fire Chief Petersen, Police Chief Gomez, Community Services Director
Ktchner, Public Works Director Fenell and interested citizens.

The agenda for this meeting was duly posted in a location visible at all times by the general

public seventy-two hours prior to this meeting.

ORAL CO CATIONS: Public comments were received from Mr. Kevin Murray
and Mrs. Leslie Nelson.

SPECIAL PRESENTATION: Ms. Laura Moreno, Program Manager with the Department
of Social Services and Ms. Sonia De La Rosa, Fiscal Analyst with Counry Administrative
Office (CAO) Fresno County provided a power point presentation on homelessness in
Fresno County.

OUARTERL Y PRIORTTIES PRESENTATION: City Manager Gallavan provided a

power point presentation discussing updates on economic and community development
projecs and Council priorities within the City.

RECESS: Mayor Robertson recessed the meeting at 7'.20 p.m. The meeting reconvened at

7:28 p.m.

CONSENT AIENDAR: Council member Guerra requested to pull item 1.d. for separate

discussion. Motion was then made by Council member Guerra to approve the remainder of
the Consent calendar as written. Motion was seconded by Council member Mendoza-

Navarro. Motion carried unanimously.

1 .a. Approved Consideration of an Interim Legal Services agreement with
Montoy Law for Interim City General Counsel Services

b.A Consideration of Increase to Fiscal Year 2020-2021Full-Time
Employee (FTE) Positions to Include One Community Development
Direoor

ved

INVOCATION: Pastor Nelson Schwamb of Church of the Redeemer led the invocation.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 12



City of Selma
Regular City Council Meeting
February l,2021
Page 2

c. ADDroved Consideration ofPurchase and Installation of Systems & Space

Inc. (SSf Weapons Rack for New Police Station

d. Pulled Consideration ofthe check register dated January 26,2021

CONSENT CALENDAR AGENDA ITEMS I.d. CONSIDERATION OF TTIE CTIECK
REGISTER DATED JANUARY 26. 2021: After discussion of agenda items 1.d., motion
was made by Council member Guena and seconded by Mayor Robertson to approve
CHECK REGISTER DATED JANUARY 26, 2021. Motion carried unanimously.

2. Consensus Council request to discuss Mayor's attendance to various boards on
behalf of the City Council

After Council discussion and no comments from the public, Council consensus was made to
allow Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem to approach various boards on behalf of the Ciry Council.

3. Continued Council request to discuss Ciry CARES Act Funding Reserves

City Manager Gallavan reported on the matter for Council. After Council discussion and no
cornments from the public, Council consensus was made to review the status of current
CARES Act funding reserves and bring back to Council for further discussion.

Continued Discussion and Direction Regatding Energy Efficacy Capital
Improvement Project

Assistant City Manager Moreno reported on the matter for Council. After Council
discussion and no comments from the public, Council consensgs was made to allow City
Staffto proceed with issuing requests for proposals for a solar system in the City to include a

financing mechanism and the new police department.

5. Approved Review ofproposed timeline and Request for Proposals for
procurement of City General Counsel Legal Services

City Manager Gallavan reported on the matter for Council. Public comment was received

from Mrs. Victoria Delgadillo. After Council discussion, motion was made by Council
member Guerra and seconded by Council member Mendoza-Navalro to approve the

TIMELINE AND REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR PROCUREMENT OF CITY
GENERAL COUNSEL for LEGAL SERVICES. Motion carried unanimously.

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:
Amberwood project.

City Manager Gallavan provided an update on the

Assistant City Manager Moreno provided a power point presentation the quarterly budget.

Public Works Director Ferrell gave an update on various projecS within the City. He also

reported on the recent storm and pre-storn prepalations and thanked his staff for the

excellentjob.

4

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 13



City of Selma
Regular City Council Meahg
February 1,2021
Page 3

Fire Chief Petersen gave an update on his staff deployed on COVID related assignments
and vaccine availability. He reported a l2o/o desease in call volume which indicates things
are heading in the right direction in regards to COVID cases.

Police Chief Gomez provided an update on recent stamng promotions and addressed
homelessness within the City.

Community Services Director Kirchner provided an update on recent events and
fundraising. He requested a special meeting for parks and recreation on February 8e at 9:00
a.m.

COUNCIL REPORTS: Council member Mendoza-Navarro thanked City Staff. She
provided an update on events she has attended including the League of Califomia Cities
Latino Caucus and the Central Valley Training Center's graduation ceremony. Council
member Mendoza-Navarro addressed the citizens of Selma encouraging them to reach out
to her to discuss any issues or concems.

Council member Trujillo reported on attending the Central Valley Training Center's
graduation ceremony and the Superintendent's virtual meeting. He thanked Public Works
Director Ferrell and his stafffor their proactive work they did on the recent rain storm.

Council member Guerra reponed on attending the Superintendent's virtual meeting and
Central Valley Training Center's graduation cetemony. She also thanked Ciry Staff.

Mayor Pro Tem Cho thanked City Staff for all their help during her transition and reported

she attended the Central Valley Training Center's graduation ceremony. Mayor Pro Tem
Cho provided information on an upcoming fundraiser for the Pornrguese Hall.

Mayor Robertson thanked City Staff for their hard work during this pandemic. Mayor
Robertson reported on atending the Central Valley Training Center's graduation ceremony

as well as meecings he attended including the Fresno County Council of Govemments
(COG). He also provided updates on several projects within the City. Mayor Robertson

requested a presentafion from Moses Stites to discuss micro grid analysis on electric

vehicles. Mayor Robertson also addressed the Transit Oriented Development (TOD)
program and its upcoming deadline.

Public comments were received by Mrs. VictoriaMMTIIU
Delgadillo and Ms. Theresa Salas.

ADJOIIRNMENT: There being no further business, the meeting was adjoumed at 8:57

p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Reyna fuvera
Ciry Clerk

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 14



CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT
CITY COUNCIL MEETING:

May 3,2021

ITEMNO:

SUBJECT: Professional Service Agreement for the Downtown Business Improvement
District Feasibility Study

RECOMMENDATION: Execute the Professional Service Agreement with AMI
Concepts for the Downtown Business Improvement District Feasibility Study per the
USDA Rural Business Development Grant

BACKGROUND:
The City of Selma applied for a USDA Rural Business Development Grunt in 2020 and were
awarded $40,000 for the contracting ofprofessional services that would evaluate the potential
of an improvement district. The Business Improvement Distria @ID) study will evaluate the
cost, desire and funding mechanism possibilities for downtown Selma. The srudy will provide
the groundwork for the implementation of an improvement district.

DISCUSSION:
The City of Selma released a request for proposal on March l,2021. The opportunity was
posted to the City's website, promoted through local business email list, and sent directly to
four potential applicants. On the deadline of April 4, 2021 the City received one proposal
from AMI Concepts. Jan Minami of AMI Concepts has participated in several local and
successful improvement districts including the Downtown Visalia PBID, Downtown Fresno
PBID, and Downtown Kingsburg BID among others. Three staff members reviewed their
proposal and provided an al,erage score of 91.6/ 100.

The proposed scope of work and timeline for a Business Improvement District by AMI
Concepts fits in the budget and timeline of the USDA Rural Business Development Grant. It
is the recommendation of Staff to approve the service agreement.

RECOMMENDATION:

Execute the Professional Service Agreement with AMI Conceps for the Downtown
Business Improvement District Feasibilrty Study per the USDA Rural Business

Development Grant.

/s/ 04/29/202t
Trary Tosta, Administrative Analyst Date

/ s/ 04/29/202r
Teresa Gallavan, Ciry Manager Date

tl

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 15



IVibrant Cities by Design

April 2,2021

Trary Tosta
City of Selma
'1710 Tucker Street
Selma CA 93662

Re: Downtown Business Improvement District Feasibility Study

Ms. Tosta,

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to this RFP. I believe strongly
in the importance of Downtowns to successful cities.

I am submitting two separate implementation plans, one for a BID
(business-based improvement district) and one for a PBID (property-
based business improvement district). The focus is different for each
while the details for a PBID take longer.

I have included a common initial meeting in both plans, along with a

common survey of both business and property owners. From that, the
paths diverge and one should be selected to move forward. Since the
City of Selma is a General Law city, not a Charter city, those are the
options. I look fonrvard to helping you make this decision, and forming a

Downtown district that will serve Selma well.

Sincerely,

)r*-
a Minami

CONTACT INFORMATION

Jan Minami
Owner and Principal of AMI Concepts

MAIL 30 Wood Duck Dr, Sanger CA 93657

PHONE 559.859.1753

EMAIL jan.amiconcepts@gmail.comarnr concePts

r L

.a
f

..q

Y/

,h il
-!

&Y

alor€ 559.859.1763 E!^L janamicorrcePts@gmailcom wB$rE wwwamicorrcePtscorn

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 16



IVibrant Cities by Design

Qualifications and Experience; Staffing

A. Qualifications and Experience
AMI Concepts is dedicated to creating thriving urban environments through the development
of strong organizations, successful collaborations and vibrant Downtown neighborhoods. We
specialize in problem-solving for commercial corridors and Downtown districts, strengthening
stakeholder engagement and activating public space.

Formed in 201 1, AMI Concepts operates as a sole proprietorship owned and operated by Jan

Minami. As the principal, Jan adds team members as needed. Elaine Martell is added for most
PBID (property-based business improvement district) work.

lmprovement districts, especially PBIDs, are a particular focus because of Jan's experience. She

excels in stakeholder engagement, and as a Downtown practitioner, she has the formation and
implementation background to guide a Downtown from Feasibility through Plan Development,
culminating in a successful Campaign.

Jan has been involved in six Central Valley BIDS and/or PBIDs during the formation and operation
stages, including Reedley Streetscape BID, Downtown Visalia PBID, Downtown Fresno PBID, Shaw
Corridor (Clovis) PBID, Downtown Kingsburg BID and the the Chinatown Fresno PBID.

C. Staffing

Jan Minami Project Consultant Hours of service: BID 300, PBID 308

Jan was instrumental in forming the Downtown Fresno PBID. Her experience forming, running
and serving as a Board Member for BIDs and PBIDs stretches over 25 years in five different cities

in the valley. She owns property and has started and run several businesses. She has also served

on almost a dozen committees in those cities. She has worked in Tucson, Colorado Springs and

Omaha on downtown revitalization and place-making with the Urban Land Institute.

AMI Concepts was hired by the City of Fresno to conduct a PBID Academy, acquainting local

neighborhood groups with the PBID concept and the formation process.

Jan's experience gives her a sound knowledge of property ownerc. business owners, urban

neighborhoods, the workings of government, and how they all can collaborate for economic success.

She has a BS in Business Management (Lewis & Clark College), and certificates in Business

Retention & Expansion (lnternational Economic DeveloPment Council), Engaging Citizens - A

Game Changer for Development ffhe world Bank), Grant Writing and Management (Fresno

State), and Graphic Design (California Institute for the Arts).

Elaine Martell Project Associate Hours of service: PBID 58

Elaine has worked for 30 years in the PBID industry. She was the lead in forming the Downtown
Visalia PBID in the late 1990s when the law was new. She was also involved in two PBID renewals

in Visalia.

She managed the Property Owners Association for much of that time, and also lead capital
improvement projects for the property owners. She has a strong understanding of property
owner needs, and can address how best to work with them.

Elaine was part of the AMI team to conduct the City of Fresno PBID Academy. She currently
works in Chinatown Fresno, principally in PBID formation.

AITIT concePts

I
I
U

I
1

I

L
1i

?

I
-l

_.1

-a. /

ptlc}e 559.859.1763 Er.l L irnamicorEepts@grnailcom wBsnE wwu,amkoncePtacorn

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 17



I
B. Methodology Section

1. Implementation Plan
See separate documents: two Work Plans, two Deliverables, and two
Scheduies, one each for a BID and a PBID.

2. Client Satisfaction
The approach of AMI Concepts to BID or PBID formation is to consider dual
clients. While the hiring party, City of Selma, is the primary client, the business
and property owners are secondary clients. The formation process cannot be
successful unless ALL clients are satisfied.

We understand that there are two distinct perspectives in a project like this.
City of Selma's support and ongoing approval is essential to a successful
BID formation. It's reasonable to assume that the City. like many other cities
who have promoted a BID or PBID formation, agreed to fund a consultant
to encourage collective property owner investment in revital;zation. They
contribute by reviewing and approving throughout the process.

On the other hand, property owners are most likely looking for a unified voice
that gives them a leadership role for infrastructure and other decisions, a

recognizable identity for the district, an improved customer experience and
economic sustainability. They contribute as Stakeholder Committee members,
petition gatherers and signers, and members of the Advisory Board or Owners
Association.

Together, they support and build the Downtown for sustainable vitality. And
together, they are satisfied.

3. City of Selma Commitment
AMI Concepts strives to be very clear on the BID/PBID development process.

The following City staff people will be involved in different ways:

1. Project lead - in this case, Tracy Tosta, Economic Development in

conjunction with the Community Development Department

2. City Manager - regular updates will include the Project Lead and the City
Manager, in person or in writing, their preference

3. City Clerk - information regarding businesses and property owners is often
available through the City Clerk. Other staff people may be necessary,

depending on their responsibilities, to gather this data.

4. City Attorney - resolutions are written in conjunction with the City Manager
and City Attorney. Everything that goes before the City Council for a vote
should be reviewed by the City Attorney.

5. Head of Finance - if not handled by the Project Lead or City Manager, the
assessment methodology and calculations should be reviewed by the head

of Finance.

amr concepts

Vibrant Cities by Design

aPt-.t Page I of 3t
t

;

fl"

{rl

r
I

,l

I

z

,'
!

tl

ptrorc 559.859.1763 En^rL Fnnmicoicepts@gmailcom wBsrrE wwwamiconcePtscom

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 18



Vibrant Cities by Design

B. Methodology Section

In addition, there are specific documents that are important in the formation process. They include (but might not be
limited to)

1. GIS map of the greater Downtown Selma area

2. Database of business andlor property owners

3. Baseline Services Agreement - we encourage the City to provide a list of baseline services. This details how different
departments are currently serving the Downtown area, whether it's Administration, Community Development, Police
or Public works. The document assures business and property owners that the assessments they pay are not replacing
existing services, but rather augmenting them.

We handle the rest of the details, working with City staff and business or property owner leaders. All details in the
Implementation Plan are within our purview.

4. Innovation
ln order to determine whether a PBID or BID is the preferred method of improvement district formation, we are offering
an approach that considers them both initially. Here are the primary differences:

ACTION BID PB ID

CA law that governs r9B9' 1994'

Private sector leader vital Yes Yes

lv'linimum time to complete formation 6 months

Formalon duration I year 5 years initially

Usual initiator City hoperty owners

Assessed party Business owners Property owners

Basrs of assessment Usually bus. license Property characteristics

Assessment billing City County

Government properties assessed Optional Yes

Beneflts must equal assessments Yes Yes

Owner involvement Advisory Board Owner's Associaton

Requrres lVlanagement District Plan Yes

Requrres signed petitions Yes

Requires Engineer's Report No Yes

Requires Council Resolutjon of lntent Yes Yes

Requires public hearings One Two

Requires Council approval Yes Yes

Requires 218 mail ballots No Yes

AITIT concePts

tr
Page 2 of 3

I months

No

No

* Parking and Business lmprovement Area Law of 1989

** Parking and Business Improvement District Law of 1994

cncr]e 559.859.1763 EI'IAL Frlamiconcepts@gmail.com wBsnE wwwamiconcepts.com

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 19



Vibrant Cities by Design

A couple of notes on the items in the table:

'1. We recommend a Management District Plan for either type of improvement district, even though it is not required by
law for a business BID. This lays out all the details so that all parties - all clients - are satisfied.

2. It's a good idea for property and business owners to be aware of what's going on, no matter which type of
improvement district is being formed.

3. We recommend that the feasibility process NOT include petitiont either individual petitions for a PBID or a circulated
commitment petition for a BID. Feasibility of the district can be determined without this final step which is normally
done in conjunction with the City formation processes, and it will save time without losing the needed information to
conclude that an improvement district is or is not feasible. If a BID or PBID is determined to be feasible, the formation
steps would include:.

--- Petition and launch event with workshops or other events as deemed necessary

--- Signing campaign

--- Notices, resolutions, public hearing and other City-related items to complete formation of either a BID or PBID

If the petitions are included in the feasibility, a BID could possibly be completed in five months, but a PBID would take
longer because of the legal requirements of PBID formation.

Our approach is divided into tasks. Many of the tasks are similar, but the focus is very different. Since the steps needed for
a PBID are more complicated than a BlD, the analysis for feasibility is longer.

ln order for the new district to run smoothly, we recommend care in the formation process. While this may take slightly
longer, this step has proven to result in a better final district with long-term cooperation and success. There are several
points that are noted in the Tasks where slowing down or pausing is recommended so that support for the improvement
can be developed.

Owners are likely to remain satisfied with the performance of the district in improving the customer experience. creating a

recognizable identity and assuring economic sustainability.

AITII concePts

tr
B. Methodology Section Page 3 of 3

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 20



lniliol Anolysis

BID Work Plon

Benefil Anolysis Monogement District Plon

Hold Downlown House

Determi

Request dolobose ond bqseline
services from ol Selmo

Ongong Stokeholder Commillee meetings me

Benefits surveys, interviews ond meelings

Ongoing Stokeholder Commltlee

Complele Monogement Districl Plon wilh
methods Dolobosereseorch eer'

Delermine working ossesmenl
methodology

Determineworkingdistriclboundories Finolize tobose
Develop print ond digltol PBID promotion
moleriols including sociol medio
Assemble Monog6ment Dislrlct Plon
informolion * Moy loke longer

,D
o

U

Tosk I
Preporolion

Tosk 2
Anolysis

Monogemenl District Plon Execulive
Summory

Worki business dotobose

Tosk 3
Feosibility

Morket evoluotion ent Districl Plonth
o
E
o
U
f
o

lnitiol Ano ond R uests Report

Promotionol moleriols, nt ond

h FeosibiliCity Recommendolions Re

Tosk I Tosk 2

reseorch

Requesl GIS mop from City of Selmo

Hold plon review workshops *

Finol dotobose qnd mop

Tosk 3

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 21



BID Deliverobles

Tosk I Tosk 2

Document Preporolion &
lnitiol Anolysis ond Review Benefil Anolysis

l. Form o BID Slokeholder Commillee t. t"teeiings
Hold ot leost five meeiings ond otlend

Through on Open House, survey ond others thot will confribute lo leorning
other oulreoch, form o commillee of the nolure ond service needs of lhe
business owners lo sleer the BID process neighborhood

2. Document Anolysis 2. Budget Developmeni

Review oll moleriols thot ore ovoiloble
from the Chomber ol Commerce ond
olher locol groups.
3. lnfomotion Requesl
Creole o checklisl for the City to gother
oddilionol inlormotion including, bul
nol limited lo, o business dolobose, o
boseline service ogreement ond o GIS

mop

Using lhe servlce lis't. determine o
budget spreodsheet thol con generote
options, resulting in o tenlolive budget.
3. Merchont Advisory Boord

Outline the moteriols to creote on
Advisory Boord. including opplicotions
ond seleciion process

4. Business Dotobose

Tosk 3

l. Stokeholder Review

Expond the review process lhrough
workshops ond smoli groups

2. Verify ond Finolize Business Dolobose

Review ond discuss to determine if oll
oddresses ore vioble. Moil o poslcord, if

1e9esory to-renfy. ._. _

q._qe_'€!9p_1!@no!-l{9l9nqls _
Creole moteriols lhot exploin lhe
vorious ospecis ol BlDs in prinl ond
digitol versions, olong with o websile to
inlorm business owners. These moteriols
include o newsletler ond sociol medio.
r-,ti.pSf".iue!1qq91 -.91!t *
Run vorious scenorios bosed on service
needs ond lhe initiol budget to
delermine ossessmenl level ond
polenliol fees for businesses thot ore
nol required lo hove Selmo business

licenses.
S. Connrm essesimeltUethoOoLgfl 

-enotrze rerutts oi!-cenorloi'ona wort
with City stoff ond the Stokehoder
Commiltee lo tesl viobility options ond
ordve ot o method.
C Oevetoprnent StO Uonogement
Dislrict Plon
Expond lhe Monogemenl Dislrict Plon
Execulive Summory wilh deloils ond
chorts, being coreful to leove
gCjegot'el bl99q 9pu9!t !g!-e.,b!!!ty,-

Eryllessitrfi!_Eqp9{_ * -_
creote report mohng r..orn,n;iJoton
to the City of Selmo on feosibility of
forming o BID in Downtown Selmo, ond
other options going lorword.

Obloin nomes ond oddresses of oll
businesses wilh emoil ond phone when
possible.

5. Cily Comments

Mointoin on ongoing inleroclion wif h

Cily stoff io ossure opprovol os steps
ore loken

Creote o Monogemenl District Plon
Executive Summory, which serves os on
oulline of the compleie document.
7. Findings ond Recommendotions
Reporl

Eoch tosk is compleled wilh o written
report to City stoff on lhe progress

mode during thot tosk.

Monogemenl Dishicl Plon
Developmenl

6. Monogemenl Plon Oulline

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 22



BID Feasibility and Formation Schedule and Timeline

weeks

Open House, Survey, Stakeholder Committee

Document Analysis

lnformation Request

Meetinqs, Survey

Benefit Analys is and Budqet Oevelopment

Business Database

City lnput

Manag ement Plan Outline (Executive Summary)

Finding s and Recommendations Report

Slakeholder Review

Feasibility Formation

TASK ONE TASK TWO TASK THREE TASK FOUR

12 3 4 5 6 7 A 910' 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

Verify and Finalize Business Database

Develop lnformational Material

Confirm Assessment

Develop Manaqem ent District Plan (MDP)

Plan Review Workshop .

Circulate support petition or gather letters '
Prepare Resoluto of lntent to Form

First reading at City Council

Form Advisory Board

Public hearing and final proval at City Council

* May take longer

This is a tighl timeline from start to finish. A few notes:

A Management District Plan is not required for a BlD, but strongly recommended for the assurances it gives assessed businesses

A BID is a "top down" form of assessment district where the City takes the lead in formation, working with business owners to support the improvements
being made by the assessment fund

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 23



lnitiol Anolysis

PBID Work Plon

Benefil Anolysis Monogemenl Dislricl Plon

Hold Downtown O House

Delermine

Requesl boseline services from city
Selmo, ond other relevonl documents

ongoing Stokeholder Commiftee
meelings

Benefils surveys, inlerviews ond meelings

Ongoing Stokeholder Commitlee
meeli

Legol ond Engineering review ol
nl Disirict Plonoufreochmelhods Dofobosereseorch

Delermine working ossesmenl
methodology

Determine working diskicl boundories Hold lon review worksho

Develop prinl ond digitol PBID promotion
moteriols. sociol medio ond o website
Assemble Monogement Districi Plqn
informotion ' Moy toke longer

Tosk I
Preporolion

Tosk 2

Anolysis

Monogement District Plon Execulive

Tosk 3
Feosibility

Monogement Districl Plon ond Engineer's
Morket evoluotion Summory

Working properly owner dotobose

l^
o

u

a^
o
E
o
u
f
o

Poge 4 of 6

Cily Recommendolions

Promolionol moleriols ond website

Tosk l

Assemble Slokeholder Commillee

Conduct initiol dqtobose reseorch

GIS mop from City of Selmo

Operolionol Siokeholder Commiltee

City lnitiol Anolysis ond Requests Report

Tosk 2 Tosk 3

Finolize dotobose

Finol dolobose ond mop

Complete Feosibility Reporl

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 24



PBID Deliverobles

lniliol Anolysis ond Review

l. Form o PBID Slokeholder Commitlee
Through on Open House, survey ond
olher outreoch, form o commiltee of
property owners, Cily ond locol
stokeholdeB lo sieer lhe PBID process

2. Document Anolysis

Review oll moteriols thot ore ovoiloble
form lhe Chomber of Commerce ond
other locol groups.
3. lnformolion Requesl

Creole o checklisl for lhe City lo gother
oddilionol informotion including, but noi
limiled lo, o boseline service
ogreemenl ond o GIS mop

2. Budget Development 2. Verify ond Finolize Property Dolobose

Using the service lis1. deiermine o Review ond discuss lo determine if oll
budget spreodsheet thot con generote oddresses ore vioble. Moil o postcord. if
options, resulling in o teniotive budget. necessory to verify.

3. Owners Associolion 3. Develop lnformotionol Moleriols

Creote moteriols thol exploin the
vorious ospects of PBIDS in print ond
digitol versions, olong wilh o website 1o

inform property owners. These moledols
include o newsletter ond sociol medio.
4. Prepore o Method of Assessment

Tosk 2

Documenl Preporolion &
Benefil Anolysis

I . Meeiings
Hold ol leost five meelings ond oitend
olhers thoi wi I coniribule to leorning the
noture ond service needs of lhe
Downtown.

Outline ihe moteriols to creote on
Owners Associotion. including the
detoils of orticles of incorporotion ond
bylows, ond mission

4. Porcel Dolobose
Ooloi. porce i.r'orr'1ol:on i.tctuo ng
APN. owner nome(s) ond moiing
oddress, porcel oddress, porcel size ond
streel frontoge ond contoct emoil
ond/or phone when possib e.
5. Speciol vs Generol Benefit Anolysis

Rely on on engineers input to use lhe
doto being collecled to delermine
speciol vs generol benefil.

6. City Comments
Mointoin an ongoing interoction with
City stoff to ossure opprovo os steps ore
loken, including o timeline for ol City-
reloted sieps os required by low.
7. Monogemenl Plon Outline
Creote o Monogement Dislrict P on
Execuiive Summory, which serves os on
outline of the complete document.
Weigh beneiits ond cost onolysis to
determine deioils like mop boundories.
ond governcnce.

8. Findings ond Recommendolions
Reporl

Eoch tosk is completed with o wri'tten
report to City stoff on lhe progress
mode during lhot tosk.

Tosk 3

Monogemenl District Plon &
Engineer's Reporl Developmenl

l. Slokeholder Review

Expond lhe review process through
workshops ond smoll groups

Run vorious scenorios bosed on service
needs ond the iniiiol budgei lo
delermine whelher lond. building or
fronatoge ore the bosis of ossessmenis-
5- Confirm Assessment Methodology
Anolfze results of scenorios ond work
with City stoff ond ihe Stokehoder
Commillee lo test viobility ond onive ot
o method. Verify wilh Engineer.
6. Development Full PBID Monogemenl
Plon
Expond lhe Monogemeni Distr;ct Plon

Execuiive Summory wi'th deloils ond
chorls, being coreful lo leove
cotegories brood enough for flexibility.
7. Enginee/s Report

Obtoined from o licensed engineer, ihis
report determines speciol vs. generol
benefils. ll olso delermines whelher
seryices wononl lhe proposed
ossessmenls.

E.sllegrry-EgP94
Oeote repon moting o.o.mend;ii;il
lo the Ciiy of Selmo on feosibiliiy of
forming o PBID in Downlown Selmo, ond
oiher options going forword.

Tosk I

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 25



PBID Feasibility and Formation Schedule and Timeline

open House and Stakeholder Committee

Document Analysis

lnformation Request

Meetinqs, Survey

Benefit Analysis and Budqet Development

Owners' Association

Parcel Database

Spec ial vs General Benefit Analysis '
City lnput

Management Plan Outline

Findings and Recommenfations Report

Stakeholder Review

Verify and Finalize Pro Database

Develop lnformational Material

Prepare a Method of Assessment

Confirm Assessment Methodolosy

Feasibility Formation
TASK ONE TASK TWO TASK THREE TASK FOUR

weeks 1 2 3 4 5 6 7I910 11 12 13 14 15'16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36

PBID Management Dislrict Plan

Engineer's Report

Plan review workshops *

Develop Petition

Petition Campaign .

Create Notice Ballots. Resolution

Public Hearings

' May take longer

This is a very tight timeline from start to finish for PBID formation. A few notes:

Most steps could take more time, especially benefit analysis Phase and the petition phase

After enough petitions are signed, the City process takes about E weeks, mostly due to 218 ballots

The petition signing process will likely take at least a month, but it's hard to know before the meetings in the first lhree tasks

Fresno County requires a completed PBID database by the end of July for a 2022 PBIO launch. Since that can't happen under this schedule, it s6ems
unneccessary to compress the process. May 3, 2021 Council Packet 26



I
D. Similar Projects

Fresno's Chinatown Neighborhood
cuENT............
PROJECT ..........
DATES............

PROJECT MANAGER

crry coNNEcTioN

cuENT. . . . . . . . . . . .

PROJECT ..........
DATES........_...

PROJECT MANAGER

Chinatown Fresno Foundation

Chinatown Fresno PBID

January 5, 2018 - current

Morgan Doizaki, PBID Formation Chair

Courtney Espinoza, Transform Fresno Program
Implementation Manager (559.621.7913, courtney
espinoza@fresno.gov)

Mr. Doizaki owns and operates Central Fish Company, as well as owning eight other
parcels in Chinatown. He can be reached: 559.351.0410, mdoizaki@centralfish.com

Morgan operated a business in Downtown Fresno when I first met him. ln 2017, He

approached me about coming to Chinatown to form a PBID for the neighborhood.
We agreed that forming a stable organization would be the first best step, which was
completed in 2018. As the organization grows, I continue to assist the organization
operate and work toward PBID formation. I serve as a part-time Executive Director,
while Morgan serves on the Board of Directors, originally as Chair and currently as

Treasu rer-

From Morgan: "Jan knows what she's doing. We couldn't do this without her."

Kingsburg
City of Kingsburg

Downtown Kingsburg PBID

November, 2019 - September,2020

Alex Henderson, City of Kingsburg

Mr Henderson seryes as the City Manager, City of Kingsburg. He can be reached:
559.897.5821, ahenderson@cityofkingsburg-ca.gov

I was hired to form a business improvement district (BID) in Downtown Kingsburg.
In addition to Alex, I worked with City Attorney Mike Noland and City Clerk Abigail
Palsgaard. I formed a steering committee of business owners to get the work done.
While a BID does not have the complexity of a PBID, the work of gathering and
educating stakeholders, working closely with City staff, determining the services for
which owners are willing to pay, and creating the documents (Management District
Plan, Resolution of Intent, et al) is similar.

From Alex "Ms. Minami provided professionalism that helped lead to the ultimately
successful incorporation of the city's first downtown business improvement district (BID)

Her work included educating business owners, attending community meetings and
workshops, and guiding a steering committee to finalize a management plan for our BID."

Il"ttl"r

arni concePts
ianamiconcepts@gmail.com WBSIIE www.amicorrceptscomHoNE 559.859.1763

Vibrant Cities by Design tl

F

2

n

J :t|l I

I

r.--

I
a

r
II

[\

l

7J

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 27



Fresno
cuENT. . . . . . . . . . . .

PROJECT ..........
DATES............

PRO]ECT MANAGER

City of Fresno/Downtown Association of Fresno

Downtown Fresno PBID

January 2008 - July 2010

Elliott Balch, City of Fresno

Mr Balch is currently the Chief Operating Officer of the Central Valley Community Foundation. He can be
reached: 559.825.6192, elliott@centralvalleycf.org

Elliott was serving on the Board of the Downtown Association of Fresno when I came to Fresno to form the
Downtown PBID. He was part of the interview committee for the Downtown Association when I was hired
there. We worked closely on several projects, including the Downtown Fresno PBID formation. By that time,
he was serving as Downtown Revitalization Manager for the City of Fresno under Mayor Ashley Swearingen.

Quite a bit of groundwork was needed to elevate the Downtown Association properly to a fully functioning
organization that could spearhead PBID formation. It was necessary to educate property owners, City officials
and related agencies. Since PBIDs can only be formed at the initiative of property owners, the outreach efforts
are significant for a Downtown this large. Elliot and I conducted most of that outreach forming what is now
the Downtown Fresno Partnership.

From Elliott "Jan's the mother of PBIDS."

Visalia
. cuENT... .,......Downtown Visalians

. PRoJECT ........Visalia PBID

. DATES ............October, 2005 - October, 2008

. PRoJEcr MANAGER . . . . . . . . , . Mike Olmos, City of Visalia

Mr. Olmos currently served as Interim President/CEG-Tulare Co Economic Development Corporation. He can

be reached: 559.7 37.867 6, mike.olmos@icloud.com

I've worked with Mike on two different BIDs - the Streetscape BID in Reedley and the Downtown Visalia PBID

The Streetscape BID only managed the street tree plantings and other sidewalk decorations. In Visalia, the
project was to advance and comply with legal requirements for reformation of the Visalia PBID. By this time,
Mike was Community Development Director of Visalia. and I was Executive Director of the Downtown Visalia

PBID. He become Visalia City Manager, and is now serving the Tulare County EDC.

From Mike: "l have been impressed over the years by Jan's ability to work with community groups and build
business relationships."

AITIT concePts

r]Vibrant Cities by Design

Ptrcre 559859.1763 Ex L l Lamkoncepts@gmailcsn wEBsnE w\r/u/amicorrepts.com

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 28



City of Selma

Downtown Business lmprovement District Feasibility Study

Fee Proposals

Employee Type BID Consultant

80 7 700$

100 9 000s

120 s 10,800

Copies and

printing,

meeting
supplies, travel S 2,000

Describe any
additional fees

and costs:

s 29,ooo

Employee Type

90.00 45.00

0 ca

$

PBID AssociatePBID Consultant

Rate $

$ 8,2808 3605Task 1 88 5 7,920

s 9,90020 900S100 ) 9,000Task 2

s 12,1s030 1,350SL20 s 10,800Task 3

$ rc,raoS 27,720 58 2,6tOs308

$ g,soo

Describe any

additional fees

and costs:

copies and printing, meeting supplies, travel, legal review, Engineer's

Report

s 39,930

Scope of Work Hours Subtotal Hours Subtotal Task fotal

Scope of Work Hours Subtotal

rask 1l

rask 2l

rask 3l

Rate

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 29



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), is made and effective
as of May 3, 2021 ('Effective Date"), between the City of Selma, a municipal corporation
("City") and AMI Concepts ("Consultant"). The City and Consultant are hereinafter
collectively referred to as the "Parties".

RECITALS

WHEREAS, City desires to engage Consultant to perform the services described
herein, and Consultant desires to perform such services in accordance with the terms
and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and
conditions herein contained, City and Consultant agree as follows:

This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date, and shall remain and
continue in effect until tiasks described herein are completed, but in no event later than May
3,2022, unless sooner terminated pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

2. SERVTCES

(a) Consultant shall perform the tasks ("Services") described and set forth in
Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein as though set forth in full. ("Scope of
Services"). Tasks other than those specifically described in the Scope of Services shall
not be performed without prior written approval of the City. The Services shall be
performed by Consultant, unless prior written approval is first obtained from the City. ln
the event of conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and Exhibit
A, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

(b) City shall have the right to request, in writing, changes to the Services.
Any such changes mutually agreed upon by the Parties, and any corresponding
increase or decrease in compensation, shall be incorporated by written amendment to
this Agreement.

(c) Consultant shall perform all Services in a manner reasonably satisfactory
to the City and in a first-class manner in conformance with the standards of quality
normally observed by an entity providing planning and analysis in the Feasibility Study
of a Business lmprovement District, serving a municipal agency.

(d) Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws,
regulations and ordinances in the performance of this Agreement, including but not
limited to, the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code Section 1090 and the
Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et seq.)). During the term of this

Page 1 of 14

CITY OF SELMA

1, TERM

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 30



Agreement, Consultant shall not perform any work for another person or entity for whom
Consultant was not working on the Effective Date if both (i) such work would require
Consultant to abstain from a decision under this Agreement pursuant to a conflict of
interest statute or law; and (ii) City has not consented in writing to Consultant's
performance of such work. No officer or employee of City shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections '1090

el seq. Consultant hereby warrants that it is not now, nor has it been in the previous
twelve (12) months, an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City. lf Consultant
was an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City in the previous twelve (12)
months, Consultant warrants that it did not participate in any manner in the forming of
this Agreement. Consultant understands that, if this Agreement is made in violation of
Government Code $1090 ef. seq., the entire Agreement is void and Consultant will not
be entitled to any compensation for Services performed pursuant to this Agreement,
and Consultant will be required to reimburse the City for any sums paid to the
Consultant. Consultant understands that, in addition to the foregoing, it may be subject
to criminal prosecution for a violation of Government Code $ 1090 and, if applicable, will
be disqualified from holding public office in the State of California.

(e) Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all
licensed personnel required to perform the Services. All Services shall be performed by
Consultant or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified and licensed to perform such services.

3. MANAGEMENT

City's City Manager shall represent the City in all matters pertaining to the
administration of this Agreement, review and approval of all products submitted by
Consultant, but shall have no authority to modify the Services or the compensation due to
Consultant.

4, PAYMENT

(a) The City agrees to pay Consultant monthly, in accordance with the payment
rates and terms and the schedule of payment as set forth in Exhibit B ("Rate Schedule"),
attached hereto and inmrporated herein by this reference as though set forth in full, based
upon actual time spent on the above tasks. This amount shall not exceed Menty-nine
thousand dollars ($29,000) for the total Term of the Agreement unless addilional payment is
approved as provided in this Agreement.

(b) Consultant shall not be compensated for any services rendered in connection
with its performance of this Agreement which are in addition to those set forth herein, unless
such additional services are authorized in advance and in writing by the City. Consultant
shall be compensated for any additional services in the amounts and in the manner as
agreed to by City and Consultant at the time City's written authorization is given to
Consuttant for the performance of said services.

Page 2 of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 31



(c) Consultant shall submit invoices monthly for actual services performed. lnvoices
shall be submitted on or about the first business day of each month, or as soon thereafter as
practical, for services provided in the previous month. Payment shall be made within thirty
(30) days of receipt of each invoice as to all nondisputed fees. lf the City disputes any of
Consultant's fees it shall give written notice to Consultant within thirty (30) days of receipt of
an invoice of any disputed fees set forth on the invoice. Any final payment under this
Agreement shall be made within 45 days of receipt of an invoice therefore.

5. SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

(a) The City may at any time, for any reason, with or without cause, suspend or
terminate this Agreement, or any portion hereoi by serving upon the Consultant at least ten
(10) days prior written notice. Upon receipt of said notice, the Consuftant shall immediately
cease all work under this Agreement, unless the notice provides othenivise. lf the Crty
suspends or terminates a portion of this Agreement such suspension or termination shall not
make void or invalidate the remainder of this Agreement.

(b) ln the event this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Section, the City shall
pay to Consultant the actual value of the work performed up to the time of termination,
provided that the work performed is of value to the City. Upon termination of the Agreement
pursuant to this Section, the Consultant shall submit an invoice to the City pursuant to
Section 4 of this Agreement.

6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

(a) Consultant shall maintain complete and accurate records with respect to sales,
costs, expenses, receipts, and other such information required by City that relate to the
performance of services under this Agreement. Consultant shall maintain adequate records
of services provided in sufficient detail to permit an evaluation of services. All such records
shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall
be clearly identified and readily accessible. Consuhant shall provide free access to the
representatives of City or ils designees at reasonable times to review such books and
remrds; shall give City the right to examine and audit said books and records; shall permit

City to make kanscripts or copies therefrom as necessary; and shall allow inspection of all

work, data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to this Agreement. Such records,

together with supporting documents, shall be maintained for a period of three (3) years after
receipt of final payment.

(b) Upon completion of, or in the event of termination or suspension of this
Agreement, all original documents, designs, drawings, maps, models, computer files,
surveys, notes, and other documents prepared in the course of providing the services to be
performed pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole property of the City and may
be used, reused, or otherwise disposed of by the City without the permission of the
Consultant. With respect to computer files, Consultant shall make available to the City, at
the Consultant's office, and upon reasonable written request by the City, the necessary
computer software and hardware for purposes of accessing, compiling, transfening, copying
and/or printing computer files. Consultant hereby grants to City all right, title, and interest,

Page 3 of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 32



including any copyright, in and to the documents, designs, drawings, maps, models,
computer files, surveys, notes, and other documents prepared by Consultant in the course
of providing the services under this Agreement. All reports, documents, or other written
material developed by Consultant in the performance of the Services pursuant to this
Agreement, shall be and remain the property of the City.

7. INDEMNIFICATION

(a) lndemnity for professional liability

When the law establishes a professional standard of care for Consuttant's Serviees,
to the fullest extent permitted by law, Consuftant shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold
harmless the City and any and all of its officials, employees and agents ("lndemnified
Parties") from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses,
including legal counsel's fees and costs caused in whole or in part by any negligent or
wrongful act, error or omission of Consultant, its officers, agents, employees or
Subconsultants (or any agency or individual that Consuhant shall bear the legal liability
thereof) in the performance of professional services under this Agreement.

(b) lndemnity for other than professional liability

Other than in the performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted

by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless City, and any and all of its
employees, officials and agents from and against any liability (including liability for claims,
suits, aclions, arbitration proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings,

losses, expenses or costs of any kind, whether aclual, alleged or threatened, including legal
counsel fees and costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees), where
the same arise out of, are a consequen@ of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in
part, the performance of this Agreement (including, but not limited to, omission to perform or
negligence in the performance) by Consultant or by any individual or agency for which

Consultant is legally liable, including but not limited to ofiicers, agents, employees or
subcontractors of Consultant.

Page 4 of 14

(c) DUTYTODEFEND. ln the event the City, its officers, employees, agents

and/or volunteers are made a party to any action, claim, lawsuit, or other adversarial
proceeding arising from the performance (including, but not limited to, omission to perform

or negligence in the performance) of the services enmmpassed by this Agreement, and

upon demand by City, Consuhant shall have an immediate duty to defend the City at
Consuftant's cost or at City's option, to reimburse the City for its costs of defense, including
reasonable attomey's fees and costs incurred in the defense of such matters.

Payment by City is not a condition precedent to enforcement of this indemnity. ln the
event of any dispute between Consultant and City, as to whether liability arises from the sole
negligence of the City or its officers, employees, or agents, Consultant will be obligated to
pay for City's defense until such time as a final judgment has been entered adjudicating the
City as solely negligent. Consultant will not be entitled in the absence of such a

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 33



determination to any reimbursement of defense costs including but not limited to attomey's
fees, expert fees and costs of litigation.

8. INSURANCE

Consultant shall maintain prior to the beginning of and for the duration of this
Agreement insurance coverage as specified in Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference.

9. INDEPENDENTCONSULTANT

10. LEGALRESPONSIBILITIES

The Consultant shall keep itself informed of State and Federal laws and regulations
which in any manner afiect those employed by it or in any way affect the performance of its
service pursuant to this Agreement. The Consultant shall at all times observe and comply
with all such laws and regulations. The City, and its officers and employees, shall not be
liable at law or in equity occasioned by failure of the Consultant to comply with this Section.

11. UNDUE INFLUENCE

Consultant declares and wanants that no undue influence or pressure was used
against or in concert with any officer or employee of the City in conneclion with the award,
terms or implementation of this Agreement, including any method of coercion, confidential
financial anangement, or financial inducement. No officer or employee of the City has or will
receive compensation, directly or indirectly, from Consultant, or from any officer, employee
or agent of Consultant, in connection with the award of this Agreement or any work to be
conducted as a result of this Agreement. Violation of this Section shall be a material breach
of this Agreement entitling the City to any and all remedies at law or in equity.

Page 5 of 14

(a) Consultant is and shall at all times remain as to the City a wholty independent
consultant and/or independent contractor. The personnel performing the services under this
Agreement on behalf of Consultant shall at all times be under Consultants exclusive
direction and control. Neither City nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall have
control over the conduct of Consultant or any of Consultant's officers, employees, or agents,
except as set forth in this Agreement. Consultant shall not at any time or in any manner
represent that it or any of its officers, employees, or agents are in any manner officers,
employees, or agents of the City. Consultant shall not incur or have the power to incur any
debt, obligation, or liability whatever against the City, or bind the City in any manner.

(b) No employee benefits shall be available to Consultant in connection with the
performance of this Agreement. Except for the fees paid to Consultant as provided in the
Agreement, City shall not pay salaries, wages, or other compensation to Consultant for
performing services hereunder for City. City shall not be liable for compensation or
indemnification to Consultant for injury or sickness arising out of performing services
hereunder.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 34



,12. NO BENEFIT TO ARISE TO LOCAL OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

No member, officer, or employee of City, or their designees or agents, and no public
official who exercises authority over or responsibilities with respect to the Project during
his/her tenure or for one year thereafter, shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any
agreement or sub-agreement, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be performed in
connection with the Project performed under this Agreement.

13. RELEASE OF INFORMATION/CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

(a) All information gained by Consuhant in performance of this Agreement shall be
considered confidential and shall not be released by Consultant without City's prior written
authorization. Consultant, its officers, employees, agents, or subconsuftants, shall not
without written authorization from the City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support,
testimony at depositions, response to intenogatories, or other information concerning the
work performed underthis Agreement or relating to any project or property located within the
City, unless othenvise required by law or court order. (b) Consultant shall promptly notify
City should Consultant, its ofiicers, employees, agents, or subconsuftants be served with
any summons, complaint, subpoena, notice of deposition, request for documents,
interrogatories, request for admissions, or other discovery request ("Discovery"), court order,
or subpoena from any person or party regarding this Agreement and the work performed
there under or with respect to any project or property located within the City, unless
Consultant is prohibited by law from informing the City of such Discovery, court order or
subpoena. City retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent Consultant and/or be
present at any deposition, hearing, or similar proceeding as allowed by law. Unless City is a
party to the lawsuit, arbilration, or administrative proceeding and is adverse to Consultant in
such proceeding, Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with the City and to provide the
opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by Consuttant. However,
City's right to review any such response does not imply or mean the right by City to control,
direct, or rewrite said response.

Any notices which either party may desire to give to the other party under this
Agreement must be in writing and may be given either by (i) personal service, (ii) delivery by
a reputiable document delivery service, such as but not limited to, Federal Express, which
provides a receipt showing date and time of delivery, or (iii) mailing in the United States Mail,
certified mail, postage prepaid, retum receipt requested, addressed to the address of the
party as set forth below or at any other address as that party may later designate by notice:

To City: City of Selma
1710 Tucker Street
Selma, CA 93662
Attention: City Manager

Mary F. Lemer, CityAttomey
Lozano Smith Attomeys at Law

Wth a Copy To

Page 6 of 14

't4. NOTTCES

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 35



74O4 North Spalding Avenue
Fresno, CA 93720

To Consultant: AMI Concepts
30 Wood Duck Dr.
Sanger, CA 93657
Attention: Jan Minami
559459-1763

15. ASSIGNMENT

The performance of services under this Agreement are based on the expertise and
experience of Consuftant. Consultant shall not assign the performance of this Agreement,
nor any part thereof, nor any monies due hereunder, without prior written consent of the
City.

Before retaining or contracting with any subconsultant for any services under this
Agreement, Consultant shall provide City with the identity of the proposed subconsultant, a
copy of the proposed written contract between Consultant and such subconsultant which
shall include and indemnity provision similar to the one provided herein and identifying City
as an indemnified party, or an incorporation of the indemnity provision provided herein, and
proof that such proposed subconsultant canies insurance at least equal to that required by
this Agreement or obtain a written waiver from the City for such insurance.

Notwithstanding Consultant's use of any subconsuttant, Consultant shall be
responsible to the City for the performance of its subconsultant as it would be if Consultant
had performed the Services itsetf. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed
to create a contractual relationship between the City and any subconsultant employed by
Consultant. Consuftant shall be solely responsible for payments to any subconsultants.
Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the lndemnified Parties for any claims
arising from, or related to, the services performed by a subconsultant under this Agreement.

16. GOVERNINGLAWATTORNEYS'FEES

The City and Consultant understand and agree that the laws of the State of Califomia
shall govem the rights, obligations, duties, and liabilities of the parties to this Agreement and
also govem the interpretation of this Agreement. Any litigation concerning this Agreement
shall take place in the municipal, superior, or federal district court in Fresno County,
California. lf any action at law or suil in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the
provisions of this Agreement, or arising out of or relating to the Services provided by
Consultant under this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable
attorneys' fees and all related costs, including msts of expert witnesses and consuftants, as
well as costs on appeal, in addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled.

,17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

PageT of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 36



This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the Parties relating to the
obligations of the Parties described in this Agreement. All prior or contemporaneous
agreements, understandings, representations, and statements, oral or written and pertaining
to the subject of this Agreement or with respect to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, are merged into this Agreement and shall be of no further force or effect. Each
party is entering into this Agreement based solely upon the representiations set forth herein
and upon each party's own independent investigation of any and all facts such party deems
material.

lf any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person
or circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, then such term or
provision shall be amended to, and solely to, the extent necessary to cure such
invalidity or unenforceability, and in its amended form shall be enforceable. ln such
event, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to
persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or
unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this
Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

19. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

20. CAPT|ONS

The captions appearing at the commencement of the sections hereof, and in any
paragraph thereof, are descriptive only and shall have no significance in the
interpretation of this Agreement.

2'1, WAIVER

The waiver by City or Consultant of any breach of any term, covenant or
condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant
or condition or of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or
condition herein contained. No term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be
deemed to have been waived by City or Consultant unless in writing.

Each right, power and remedy provided for herein or now or hereafter existing at
law, in equity, by statute, or otherwise shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to
every other right, power, or remedy provided for herein or now or hereafter existing at
law, in equity, by statute, or otherwise. The exercise, the commencement of the

Page 8 of 14

18. SEVERABILITY

22 REMEDIES

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 37



23, AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT

The person or persons executing this Agreement on behalf of Consultant represents
and wanants that he/she has the authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the
Consultant and has the authority to bind Consultant to the performance of its obligations
hereunder.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed
as of the Effeclive Date.

"clw"
City of Selma

"CONSULTANT"
AMI Concepts

By wA.*--*
Minami, Owner/Principal

By:
Scott Robertson, Mayor

Attest

By:
Reyna Rivera, City Clerk

Approved as to form:

By:
Mary F. Lerner, City Attorney

Attachments Exhibit A
Exhibit B
Exhibit C

Scope of Services
Rate Schedule
lnsurance Requirements

Page 9 of 14

exercise, or the forbearance of the exercise by any pa rty of any one or more of such
rights, powers or remedies shall not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by such
party of any of all of such other rights, powers or remedies.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 38



EXHIBITA

SCOPE OF SERVICES

TASK 1: lnitial Analvsis & Review
l. Form a Business Improvement Stakehotder Committee: Through Open House,

survey. and other outreach, form a committee ofbusiness owners to seer the BID process
2. Document Analysis: Review all materials that are available from the Chamber of

Commerce and other local groups
3. Information Request: Create a checklist for the City to gather additional information

including but not limited to a, a business database, a baseline service agreement and a
GIS map.

TASK 2: Document Preparation & Benefit Analysis
1. Meetings: Hold at least five meetings and attend others that will contribute to leaming

the nature and service needs ofthe neighborhood
2. Budget Development: Using the service list, determine a budget spreadsheet that can

generate options, resulting in a tentative budget.
3. Merchant Advisory Board: Outline the materials to create an advisory Board including

applications and selection process.
4. Business Database: Obtain names and addresses olall businesses with email and phone

when possible.

5. City Comments: Maintain an ongoing interaction with City staff to assure approval as

steps are taken.
6. Management Plan Outline: Create a Management District Plan Executive Summary,

which serves as an outline of the completed document.
7. Findings and Recommendations Report: Each task is completed with a written report

to City Staffon the progress made during that task.

TASK 3: Manaqement D istrict Plan Develooment
1 . Stakeholder Review: Expand the review process through workshops and small groups.

2. Y eify and Finalize Business Database: Review and discuss to determine if all
addresses are viable. Mail a postcard if necessary to verily.

3. Develop Informational Materials: Create materials that explain the various aspects of
BIDs in print and digital versions, along with a website to inform business owners. These

materials include a newsletter and social media.
4. Prepare a Method of Assessment: Run various scenarios based on service needs and the

initial budget to determine assessment level and potential fees for businesses that are not
required to have Selma business Iicenses.

5. Confirm Assessment Methodolory: Analyze results of scenarios and work with City
staff and the stakeholder Committee to test viability options and arrive at a method.

6. Development BID Management District Plan: Expand the management District Plan

Executive Summary with details and charts, being careful to leave categories broad
enough for flexibility.

7. Final Feasibility Report: Create report making recommendation to the City olSelma on
Feasibitity of forming a BID in Downtown Selma, and other options going forward.

Page 10 of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 39



EXHIBIT B

RATE SCHEDULE

Task 1: $7,200

4 weekVS0 hours ($90.00 /hour)

Task 2: $9,000

8 weekV100 hours ($90.00 /hour)

Task3: 10,800

9 weeks/120 hours ($90.00ftour)

Additional Fees: printing, supplies, travel, etc: $2,000.

Total: $29,000.00

Average Monthly lnvoice: $5,800 (Five months, May to September 2021)

FY 2O2O-2021: $11,600

May $5,800

June $5,800

FY 2021-2022: $17,400

July: $5,800

August: $5,800

September: $5,800

Page 11 of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 40



EXHIBIT C

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Wrthout limiling Consultant's indemnification of City, and prior to commencement of the
Services, Consultant shall obtain, provide and maintain at its own expense during the term
of this Agreement, policies of insurance of the type and amounts described below and in a
form satisfaclory to the City.

General liability insurance. Consultant shall maintiain commercial general liability
insurance with coverage at least as broad as lnsurance Services ffice form CG 00 01, in
an amount not less than $2,000,000.00 per occurrence, $4,000,000.00 general aggregate,
for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage. The poliry must include contractual
liability that has not been amended. Any endorsement restricting standard ISO "insured

contract" language will not be accepted.

Automobile liability insurance. Consuttant shall maintain automobile insurance at least as
broad as lnsurance Services Office form CA 00 01 covering bodily injury and property

damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in mnnection with Work to be
performed under this Agreement, including coverage for any owned, hired, non-owned or
rented vehicles, in an amount not less than $2,000,000.00 combined single limit for each
accident.

Professional liability (errors & omissions) insurance. Consultant shall maintain
professional liability insurance that covers the Services to be performed in connection with
this Agreement, in the minimum amount of $2,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate. Any
policy inception date, continuity date, or retroactive date must be before the effective date of
this agreement and Consultant agrees to maintain continuous coverage through a period no
less than three years after completion of the services required by this agreement.

Workers' compensation insurance. Consultrant shall maintain Workers' Compensation
lnsurance (Statutory Limits) and Employer's Liability lnsurance (with limits of at least

$1,000,000.00).

Consuftant shall submit to City, along with the certificate of insurance, a Waiver of
Subrogation endorsement in favor of the Cily, its ofiicers, agents, employees and
volunteers.

Proof of insurance. Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance to City as evidence of
the insurance coverage required herein, along with a waiver of subrogation endorsement for
workers' compensation. lnsurance certificates and endorsement must be approved by City's
Risk Manager prior to commencement of performance. Current certification of insurance
shall be kept on file with City at all times during the term of this contract. City reserves the
right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time.

Duration of coverage. Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the
contract insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property, which may

Page 12 of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 41



arise from or in conneclion with the performanc€ of the Services hereunder by Consultant,
his agents, representatives, employees or subconsuftants.

Primary/nonconfibuting. Coverage provided by Consuttant shall be primary and any
insurance or setf-insurance procured or maintained by Crty shall not be required to
contribute with it. The limits of insurance required herein may be satisfied by a combination
of primary and umbrella or excess insurance. Any umbrella or excess insurance shall
contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that such coverage shall also apply on a
primary and non-contributory basis for the benefit of City before the City's own insurance or
self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a named insured.

City's rights of enforcement ln the event any policy of insurance required under this
Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not replaced, City
has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance il deems necessary and any premium
paid by City will be promptly reimbursed by Consuttant, or City will withhold amounts
sufiicient to pay premium from Consultant payments. ln the altemative, City may cancel this
Agreement.

Acceptable insurerc. All insurance policies shall be issued by an insurance @mpany
currently authorized by the lnsurance Commissioner to transact business of insurance in the
State of Califomia, with an assigned policyholders' Rating of A- (or higher) and Financial
Size Category Class Vl (or larger) in accordance with the latest edition of Best's Key Rating
Guide, unless otheuise approved by the City's Risk Manager.

Waiver of subrogation. All insurance coverage maintained or procured pursuant to this
agreement shall be endorsed to waive subrogation against City, its elected or appointed
officers, agents, officials, employees and volunteers or shall specifically allow Consuttant or
others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications to waive their
right of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery against
City, and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each of its
subconsultants.

Enforcement of confact provisions (non estoppel). Consultant acknowledges and

agrees that any actual or alleged failure on the part of the City to inform Consuftant of non-

compliance with any requirement imposes no addilional obligations on the Ci$ nor does it
waive any rights hereunder.

Requirements not limiting. Requirements of specific coverage features or limits contained

in this Section are not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits or other requirements, or a

waiver of any coverage normally provided by any insurance. Specific reference to a given

coverage feature is for purposes of clarification only as it pertains to a given issue and is not

intended by any party or insured to be all inclusive, or to the exclusion of other coverage, or
a waiver of any type. lf the consultant maintiains higher limits than the minimums shown

above, the City requires and shall be entitled to @verage for the higher limits maintained by

the Consultant. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits

of insurance and coverage shall be available to the City.

Page '13 of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 42



Notice of cancellation. Consultant agrees to oblige its insurance agent or broker and
insurers to provide to City with a thirty (30) day notice of cancellation (except for
nonpayment for which a ten (10) day notice is required) or nonrenewal of coverage for each
required coverage.

Additional insuted status. General liability policies shall provide or be endorsed to provide

that City and its officers, officials, employees, and agents, and volunteers shall be additional
insureds under such policies. This provision shall also apply to any excess liability policies.

Prohibition of undisclosed coverage limitations. None of the coverages required herein
will be in compliance with these requirements if they include any limiting endorsement of any
kind that has not been first submitted to City and approved of in writing.

Separation of lnsureds. A severability of interests provision must apply for all additional

insureds ensuring that Consultant's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against

whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer's limits of liability.

The poliry(ies) shall not contain any crossJiability exclusions.

Pass Through clause. consultant agrees to ensure that its subconsuhants,

subcontractors, and any other party involved with the project who is brought onto or involved

in the project by consuftant, provide the same minimum insurance coverage and

endorsements required of Consuhant. Consultant agrees to monitor and review all such

coverage and assumes all responsibility for ensuring that such coverage is provided in

conformity with the requirements of this section. Consultant agrees that upon request, all

agreements with consultants, subcontractors, and others engaged in the project will be

submitted to City for review.

city,s right to revise specifications. The city reserves the right at any time during the

term of the contract to change the amounts and types of insurance required by giving the

Consultant ninety (90) days advance written notice of such change. lf such change results in

substantial additional cost to the Consultant, the City and Consultant may renegotiate

Consultant's compensation.

Self-insured retentions. Any self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by

the City. The City reserves the right to require that setf-insured retentions be eliminated,

lowered, or replaced by a deduclible. SeJf-insurance will not be considered to comply with

these specifications unless approved by the City.

Timely notice of claims. Consultant shall give the Crty prompt and timely notice of claims

made or suits instituted that arise out of or result from Consultant's performance under this

Agreement, and that involve or may involve coverage under any of the required liability

policies.

Additional insurance. Consultant shall also procure and maintain, at its own cost and

expense, any additional kinds of insurance, which in its own judgment may be necessary for

its proper protection and prosecution of the work.

Page 14 of '14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 43



CMY MANAGER'S,/STAFF'S REPORT
CITY COTJNCIL MEETING: Mav 202r3

ITEMNo: l. e.
SUBJECT: Resolution authorizing the submittal of applications for the Fresno Council of
Govemments Housing Planning Grants Program and authorizing the execufion of
applications related documents by the City Manager or Designee.

RECOMMEIT{DATION:

Adopt Resolution authorizing the City Manager to direct staff in the submittal and
management of Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program (REAP) grants.

DISCUSSION:

The City of Selma developed and submitted two grants for the REAP grant program. The
fust grant for $25,000 applies to the acquisition and development of the Selma GIS
Development Portal. This will include layers of information that will assist in expediting
data needed for housing development by providing comprehensive and interactive data to
better inform investment and planning decisions for staff and developers.

The second application was submitted for $20,000 for the development of the Selma
Housing Design Program. This will generate up to three preapproved architecrural designs
with site plans to streamline the planning process and reduce costs associated with building
new home units in the City.

The objective ofboth applications is to encourage new housing development, infill
development and provide a route to more timely developments to help the city meet its
immediate housing needs. Four letters of support were submitted with each application

Adopt Resolution authorizing the City Manager to direct staffin the submittal and
management of Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program (REAP) grants.

s/ 04/29 /2021
Tracy Tosta, Administrative Analyst

/s/

Date

04/29/2021
Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Date

RECOMMEITIDATION:

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 44



RESOLUTION NO.2021- R

RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA AUTHORIZING THE
SUBMISSION OF APPLICATIONS FOR GRANT FUNDS FOR THE FRESNO COUNCIL
OF GOVERNMENTS HOUSING PLANNING GRANTS PROGRAM AND
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF APPLICATION RELATED DOCUMENTS BY
THE CITY MANAGER OR DESIGNEE

WHEREAS, the Housing Planning Grants Program provides grant funds for eligible local
agencies for the purposes of preparing and adopting planning documents and process
improvements that accelerate housing production and facilitate compliance to implement
the sixth-cycle Regional Housing Needs Assessment; and

WHEREAS, Fresno Council of Governments administers the program and has requested
applications from eligible agencies;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Selma
Appoints and authorizes the City Manager or designee, and each of them as agents for
the City of Selma, to execute and submit all grant application related documents, for the
Fresno Council of Governments Housing Planning Grants Program subject to prior
approval as to form by the City Attorney's Office.

l, Reyna Rivera, City Clerk of the City of Selma, do hereby certify that the foregoing
Resolution was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Selma
on the 3'd day of May 2021 , by Ihe following vote, to wit:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS

NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS

ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS

ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS

Scott Robertson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 45



Mav 3.2021

ITEMNO:

SUBJECT: Consideration of a Request from Boys and Girls Clubs ofFresno County
to submit a letter of support for funding to continue services though
Fresno County Community Development Block Grant

RECOMMENDATION:
proposed letter.

Consider the request and direct staffon issuance ofthe

DISCUSSION: The City Manager's Office received a request fiom Boys and Girls Clubs of
Fresno County requesting Council support on their grant application proposal lor funding.

Attached for Council consideration is the proposed letter ofsupport.

RECOMMEND Consider the request and direct staffon issuance oftheATION:
proposed letter.

/s/ 04/29/202r
Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Date

CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT
CITY COI,JNCIL MEETING:

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 46

reynar
Typewritten Text
1.f.

reynar
Typewritten Text



Draft Letter to approve from Selma City Council consent calendar

Apil27,2021

RE: Letter of Suooort for Bovs & Girls Clubs of Fresno Coun tl'

To Whom It May Concem:

This letter is to express our support for the Community Development Block Grant
application proposal submitted by the Boys & Girls Clubs of Fresno County that includes
the City ol Selma.

Gang and other delinquent activity continue to be an ongoing problem lor Selma. Due to

the high percentage of poverty and lack of parental structure at home, youth in our
community continue to be drawn into gangs and the community of Selma has

experienced the negative effects with drugs, crime and violence.

Boys & Girts Club staff are experts at working with disadvantaged and at-risk youth.

The City of Selma currently has a successful ongoing relationship with the Boys & Girls
Club at our Salazar Community Center. We want to continue that relationship with their

after-school mentoring and homework progrzrm that meets the needs of our youth. They

also provide youth with special events, recreation and health activities, technology and

career development. This puts them on the path for education and other opportunities.

Through the strength of Boys & Girls Clubs relationships and their participation in the

many life enhancing programs offered at the Club, these children participate in positive

engaging activities that help predict future positive success.

We strongly encourage the funding lor the Boys & Girls Club in Selma.

Sincerely.

Name
Title
City of Selma

Fresno County - Community Development Block Grant

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 47



ITEMNO:

DISCUSSION: In California, all local govemments with election districts must analyze US
Census data when it is released at the end of each lO-year rycle and follow requirements
laid out in the Fair Map Act to ensure that district boundaries comply with the requirements
laid out in both the U.S. and Califomia Constitutions. Among other things, City Council
districts must be "substantially equal" in population, be geographically contiguous, respect

existing local neighborhoods and communities of interest, be easily identifiable, be

geographically compact, and neither favor nor discriminate against political parties.

The Califomia Fair Map Act governs the plocess and lays out certain requirements that
must be met procedurally when going through this effort. For instance, cities must hold at
least four public hearings, at least of one which must be held before drawing any new maps,

and at least two public hearings after a map is drawn. Cities must notice the public at least

five days prior to the public hearing (as opposed to the cunent 72how notice for most othel
city matters), and draft maps must be published at least seven days before adoption. In
addition, all cities must provide full public access to demographic and mapping data. The

Fair Map Act also sets express deadlines by which cities must act: for cities with the next

regular election occurring on or after ldy 1,2022, district boundaries must be adopted not

later than 205 days before that election. For cities over 200,000 in population, a

"redistricting commission" must be olganrzed and used for this process. For cities under

200,000, such as Selma, the City Council sits as this body, unless otherwise specified.

The US Census Bureau has announced that they are delayed in providing census data this

year because of the pandemic. The City of Selma could wait to hire a demographer and

begin this process until there is a clear date by which the City will receive its data. However,

sinie this process will begin in eamest for all cities and counties very soon, staff desires to

ensure that we have a reputable demographer hired and ready to begin, rather than waiting

until demographers have fulI client lists and are pressed to complete processes quickly.

The City of Selma has not grown dramatically since the last redistricting process was

completid :Ir.20lg. The growth that the City has seen is generally spread amongst.the four

existing districts. Therefore, staff does not anticipate a lengthy or complex redistricting
process.

The last time the City conducted this process, National Demographics Corporation (NDC)

from Southem California was utilized. That process was transparent, easy to follow, and led

to district boundary changes that were successfully adopted by Council, with public

CITY MANAGER'S/STA.FF'S REPORT
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: May3.202l

1,3
SLJBJECT: Consideration of a Professional Services Agreement with National

Demographics Corporation to provide demographic and districting services

related to the mandated 2020 US Census Analysis

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 48



approval. The consultants of NDC were professional and clearly skilled at analyztng data
and conducting facilitated public outreach for this type of effort. Because of this, staff is
recommending that NDC be used again this time.

The base fee for NDC services is $17,500. Additional expenses related to desired "add-on"
services, such as facilitation of the mandatory public workshops may add an additional cost
to the project expense. Ciry Staff is budgeting an amount of$25,000 to cover all anticipated
costs in the next fiscal year's budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT:
This matter is exempt from review under the general rule that CEQA applies only to
projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. It can be
seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the selection of a demographer may have
a significant effect on the environment. Therefore, this matter is not subject to CEQA
(Section 15061 OX3) of the CEQA Guidelines), and staff is directed to file a notice of
exemption.

COST: (Entet eost of item to be purchaxd) BUDGET IMPACT: (Enter qmourrt

this not-badgacd itern will impad this
yean' budgtt - dbudgeted, crrtct NONE).

$25,000

FUNDING: (E tter the funding soarce for this itern -
iffastl tti s, e et the balorcc in thc fund),

ON.GOING COST: (Enter the
arnount that dll nccd to b budg*d cach

teor - if one-tirn co$, etter NONE).

Funding Source: General Fund

Fund Balance: FY 2019-20 $6,717,901

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council,
o Discuss the options to include in the consultant's scope of work, and

o Authorize the City Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with
National Demographics Corporation not to exceed $25,000 to provide demographic
and districting services.

/s/ 04/29 /202r

Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Date

I

I

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 49



CITY OF SELMA

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, City desires to engage Consultant to perform the services described
herein, and Consultant desires to perform such services in accordance with the terms
and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and
conditions herein contained, City and Consultant agree as follows:

,1. TERM

This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date, and shall remain and
continue in effect until tasks described herein are completed, but in no event later than
November 30,2022 unless sooner terminated pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

2. SERVTCES

(a) Consultant shall perform the tasks ("Services") described and set forth in
Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein as though set forth in full. ("Scope of
Services"). Tasks other than those specifically described in the Scope of Services shall
not be performed without prior written approval of the City. The Services shall be
performed by Consultant, unless prior written approval is first obtained from the City. ln
the event of conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and Exhibit
A, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

(b) City shall have the right to request, in writing, changes to the Services.
Any such changes mutually agreed upon by the Parties, and any corresponding
increase or decrease in compensation, shall be incorporated by written amendment to
this Agreement.

(c) Consultant shall perform all Services in a manner reasonably satisfactory
to the city and in a first-class manner in conformance with the standards of quality

normally observed by an entity providing Cost Allocation & User Fee Study, serving a
municipal agency.

(d) Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws,

regulations and ordinances in the performance of this Agreement, including but not

limited to, the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code Section 1090 and the
Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et seq.). During the term of this

Page 1 of 14

This PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), is made and effective
as of May 3,2021 ("Ettective Date"), between the City of Selma, a municipal corporation
("City") and National Demographics Corporation ("Consultant"). The City and
Consultant are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Parties".

RECITALS

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 50



Agreement, Consultant shall not perform any work for another person or entity for whom
Consultant was not working on the Effective Date if both (i) such work would require
consultant to abstain from a decision under this Agreement pursuant to a conflict of
interest statute or law; and (ii) City has not consented in writing to Consultant's
performance of such work. No officer or employee of City shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090
et seq. Consultant hereby warrants that it is not now, nor has it been in the previous
twelve (12) months, an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City. lf Consultant
was an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City in the previous twelve (12)
months, Consultant warrants that it did not participate in any manner in the forming of
this Agreement. Consultant understands that, if this Agreement is made in violation of
Government Code $1090 et. seg., the entire Agreement is void and Consultant will not
be entitled to any compensation for Services performed pursuant to this Agreement,
and Consultant will be required to reimburse the City for any sums paid to the
Consultant. Consultant understands that, in addition to the foregoing, it may be subject
to criminal prosecution for a vlolation of Government Code $ 1090 and, if applicable, will
be disqualified from holding public office in the State of California.

(e) Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all
licensed personnel required to perform the Services. All Services shall be performed by
Consultant or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified and licensed to perform such services.

3. MANAGEMENT

City's City Manager shall represent the City in all matters pertaining to the
administration of this Agreement, review and approval of all products submitted by
Consultant, but shall have no authority to modify the Services or the compensation due to
Consultant.

4. PAYMENT

(a) The City agrees to pay Consultant monthly, in accordance with the payment
rates and terms and the schedule of payment as set forth in Exhibit B ("Rate Schedule"),
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as though set forth in full, based
upon actual time spent on the above tasks. This amount shall not exceed Twenty-five
thousand dollars ($25,000) for the total Term of the Agreement unless additional payment is
approved as provided in this Agreement.

(b) Consultant shall not be compensated for any services rendered in connection
with its performance of this Agreement which are in addition to those set forth herein, unless
such additional services are authorized in advance and in writing by the City. Consultant
shall be compensated for any additional services in the amounts and in the manner as
agreed to by City and Consultant at the time City's written authorization is given to
Consultrant for the performance of said services.

Page 2 ot 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 51



(c) Consultant shall submit invoices monthly for actual services performed. lnvoices
shall be submitted on or about the first business day of each month, or as soon thereafter as
practical, for services provided in the previous month. Payment shall be made within thirty
(30) days of receipt of each invoice as to all nondisputed fees. lf the City disputes any of
Consultant's fees it shall give written notice to Consultant within thirty (30) days of receipt of
an invoice of any disputed fees set forth on the invoice. Any final payment under this
Agreement shall be made within 45 days of receipt of an invoice therefore.

5. SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

(a) The City may at any time, for any reason, with or without cause, suspend or
terminate this Agreement, or any portion hereof, by serving upon the Consultant at least ten
(10) days prior written notice. Upon receipt of said notice, the Consultant shall immediately
cease all work under this Agreement, unless the notice provides otherwise. lf the City
suspends or terminates a portion of this Agreement such suspension or termination shall not
make void or invalidate the remainder of this Agreement.

(b) ln the event this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Seclion, the City shall
pay to Consuhant the actual value of the work performed up to the time of termination,
provided that the work performed is of value to the City. Upon termination of the Agreement
pursuant to this Section, the Consuftant shall submit an invoice to the City pursuant to
Section 4 of this Agreement.

6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

(a) Consultant shall maintain complete and accurate records with respect to sales,

costs, expenses, receipts, and other such information required by City that relate to the
performance of services under this Agreement. Consuftant shall maintain adequate records

of services provided in sufficient detail to permit an evaluation of services. All such records

shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall

be clearly identified and readily accessible. Consuhant shall provide free access to the
representiatives of City or its designees at reasonable times to review such books and

records; shall give City the right to examine and audit said books and records; shall permit

City to make transcripts or copies therefrom as ne@ssary; and shall allow inspection of all

work, data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to this Agreement. Such records,

together with supporting documents, shall be maintained for a period of three (3) years after

receipt of final payment.

(b) Upon completion of, or in the event of termination or suspension of this
Agreement, all original documents, designs, drawings, maps, models, mmputer files,

surveys, notes, and other documents prepared in the course of providing the services to be

performed pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole property of the city and may

be used, reused, or otherwise disposed of by the city without the permission of the
Consultant. With respect to computer files, Consultant shall make available to the City, at

the Consultant's office, and upon reasonable written request by the City' the necessary

computer software and hardware for purposes of accessing, compiling, transferring, copying

and/or printing computer files. Consultant hereby grants to City all right, title, and interest,

Page 3 of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 52



including any copyright, in and to the documents, designs, drawings, maps, models,
computer files, surveys, notes, and other documents prepared by consultant in the course
of providing the services under this Agreement. All reports, documents, or other written
material developed by consultant in the performance of the services pursuant to this
Agreement, shall be and remain the property of the City.

7, INDEMNIFICATION

(a) lndemnity for professional liability

When the law establishes a professional standard of care for Consultant's Services,
to the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold
harmless the City and any and all of its officials, employees and agents ("lndemnified
Parties") from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses,
including legal counsel's fees and costs caused in whole or in part by any negligent or
wrongful act, error or omission of Consultant, its officers, agents, employees or
Subconsultants (or any agency or individual that Consultant shall bear the legal liability
thereof) in the performance of professional services under this Agreement.

(b) lndemnity for other than professional liability

Other than in the performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted
by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless City, and any and all of its
employees, officials and agents from and against any liability (including liability for claims,
suits, actions, arbitration proceedings, adminiskative proceedings, regulatory proceedings,
losses, expenses or costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, including legal
counsel fees and costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees), where
the same arise out of, are a @nsequence of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in
part, the performance of this Agreement by Consultant or by any individual or agency for
which Consultant is legally liable, including but not limited to officers, agents, employees or
subcontractors of Consultant.

Payment by City is not a condition precedent to enforcement of this indemnity. ln the
event of any dispute between Consultant and City, as to whether liability arises from the sole
negligence of the City or its officers, employees, or agents, Consultant will be obligated to
pay for City's defense until such time as a final judgment has been entered adjudicating the
City as solely negligent. Consultant will not be entitled in the absence of such a
determination to any reimbursement of defense costs including but not limited to attorney's
fees, expert fees and costs of litigation.

Page 4 of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 53



Consultant shall maintain prior to the beginning of and for the duration of this
Agreement insurance coverage as specified in Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference.

9. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT

(a) Consultant is and shall at all times remain as to the City a wholly independent
consuttant and/or independent contractor. The personnel performing the services under this
Agreement on behatf of Consultant shall at all times be under Consultants exclusive
direction and control. Neither City nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall have
control over the conduc{ of Consultant or any of Consultant's officers, employees, or agents,
except as set forth in this Agreement. Consuhant shall not at any time or in any manner
represent that it or any of its ofiicers, employees, or agents are in any manner ofiicers,
employees, or agents of the City. Consultant shall not incur or have the power to incur any
debt, obligation, or liability whatever against the City, or bind the City in any manner.

(b) No employee benefits shall be available to Consultant in connection with the
performance of this Agreement. Except for the fees paid to Consultant as provided in the
Agreement, City shall not pay salaries, wages, or other compensation to Consultant for
performing services hereunder for City. City shall not be liable for compensation or
indemnification to Consultant for injury or sickness arising out of performing services
hereunder.

10. LEGALRESPONSIBILITIES

The Consuhant shall keep ilself informed of State and Federal laws and regulations

which in any manner afiect those employed by it or in any way affect the performance of its
service pursuant to this Agreement. The Consultant shall at all times observe and comply
with all such laws and regulations. The City, and its ofiicers and employees, shall not be

liable at law or in equity occasioned by failure of the Consuhant to comply with this Section.

11. UNDUE INFL ENCE

Consultant declares and wanants that no undue influence or pressure was used

against or in concert with any officer or employee of the City in connection with the award,

terms or implementration of this Agreement, including any method of coercion, confidential

financial anangement, or financial inducement. No officer or employee of the City has or will

receive compensation, directly or indirectly, from consultant, or from any officer, employee
or agent of Consultant, in connec{ion with the award of this Agreement or any work to be

conducted as a result of this Agreement. Violation of this Section shall be a material breach

of this Agreement entitling the City to any and all remedies at law or in equity.

12. NO BENEFIT TO ARISE TO LOCAL OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

No member, officer, or employee of City, or their designees or agents, and no public

official who exercises authority over or responsibilities with respec{ to the Project during

Page 5 of 14

8. INSURANCE

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 54



his/her tenure or for one year thereafter, shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any
agreement or sub-agreement, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be performed in

connection with the Project performed under this Agreement.

13. RELEASE OF INFORMATION/CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

(a) All information gained by Consultant in performance of this Agreement shall be
considered confidential and shall not be released by Consultant without City's prior written
authorization. Consultant, its officers, employees, agents, or subconsuhants, shall not
without written authorization from the City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support,
testimony at depositions, response to interrogatories, or other information concerning the
wo* performed under this Agreement or relating to any project or property located within the
City, unless otherwise required by law or court order. (b) Consultant shall promptly notify
City should Consultant, its officers, employees, agents, or subconsultants be served with
any summons, complaint, subpoena, notice of deposition, request for documents,
interrogatories, request for admissions, or other discovery request ("Discovery"), court order,
or subpoena from any person or party regarding this Agreement and the work performed

there under or with respect to any projecl or property located within the City, unless
Consultiant is prohibited by law from informing the City of such Discovery, court order or
subpoena. City retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent Consultant and/or be
present at any deposition, hearing, or similar proceeding as allowed by law. Unless City is a
party to the lawsuit, arbitration, or administrative proceeding and is adverse to Consultant in
such proceeding, Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with the City and to provide the
opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by Consuhant. However,

City's right to review any such response does not imply or mean the right by City to control,
direct, or rewrite said response.

14. NOTICES

Any notices which either party may desire to give to the other party under this
Agreement must be in writing and may be given either by (i) personal service, (ii) delivery by
a reputable document delivery service, such as but not limited to, Federal Express, which
provides a receipt showing date and time of delivery, or (iii) mailing in the United States Mail,

certffied mail, postage prepaid, retum receipt requested, addressed to the address of the
party as set forth below or at any other address as that party may later designate by notice:

To City: CitY of Selma
1710 Tucker Street
Selma, CA 93662
Attention: City Manager

Mary F. Lemer, City Attomey
Lozano Smith Attorneys at Law
7404 North Spalding Avenue
Fresno, CA 93720

Wilh a Copy To

Page 6 of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 55



Douglas Johnson, President
National Demographics Corporation
P.O. Box 5271
Glendale, C491221

15. ASSIGNMENT

The Consultant shall not assign the performance of this Agreement, nor any part

thereof, nor any monies due hereunder, without prior written consent of the City.

Before retaining or contracting with any subconsultant for any services under this
Agreement, Consultant shall provide City with the identity of the proposed subconsultant, a
copy of the proposed written contract between Consultant and such subconsultant which
shall include and indemnity provision similar to the one provided herein and identifoing City
as an indemnified party, or an incorporation of the indemnity provision provided herein, and
proof that such proposed subconsultant canies insurance at least equal to that required by
this Agreement or obtain a written waiver from the City for such insurance.

Notwithstanding Consultant's use of any subconsultant, Consultiant shall be
responsible to the City for the performance of its subconstultant as it would be if Consultant
had performed the Services itsetf. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed

to create a contractual relationship between the Ctty and any subconsultant employed by
Consultant. Consultant shall be solely responsible for payments to any subconsultants.

Consultant shall indemnifo, defend and hold harmless the lndemnified Parties for any claims

arising from, or related to, the services performed by a subconsultant under this Agreement.

16. GOVERNINGLAWATTORNEYS'FEES

The City and Consultant understand and agree that the laws of the State of Califomia

shall govern the rights, obligations, duties, and liabilities of the parties to this Agreement and

also govern the interpretation of this Agreement. Any litigation conceming this Agreement
shall take place in the municipal, superior, or federal district court in Fresno County,

California. lf any action at law or suit in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the

provisions of this Agreement, or arising out of or relating to the Services provided by

Consultant under this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable

aftomeys'fees and all related costs, including costs of expert witnesses and consuJtants, as

well as costs on appeal, in addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled.

17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the Parties relating to the

obligations of the Parties described in this Agreement. All prior or contemporaneous
agreements, understandings, representations, and statements, oral or written and pertaining

to the subject of this Agreement or with respect to the terms and conditions of this

Agreement, are merged into this Agreement and shall be of no further force or effect. Each

party is entering into this Agreement based solely upon the representations set forth herein

Page 7 of '14

To Consultant:

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 56



and upon each party's own independent investigation of any and all facts such party deems
material.

18. SEVERABILITY

lf any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person
or circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, then such term or
provision shall be amended to, and solely to, the extent necessary to cure such
invalidity or unenforceability, and in its amended form shall be enforceable. ln such
event, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to
persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or
unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this
Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

19. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

20. CAPT|ONS

The captions appearing at the commencement of the sections hereof, and in any
paragraph thereof, are descriptive only and shall have no significance in the
interpretation of this Agreement.

21. WATVER

The waiver by City or Consultant of any breach of any term, covenant or
condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant
or condition or of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or
condition herein contained. No term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be
deemed to have been waived by City or Consultant unless in writing.

22 REMEDIES

Each right, power and remedy provided for herein or now or hereafter existing at
law, in equity, by statute, or otheruvise shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to
every other right, power, or remedy provided for herein or now or hereafter existing at
law, in equity, by statute, or otheruise. The exercise, the commencement of the

exercise, or the forbearance of the exercise by any party of any one or more of such
rights, powers or remedies shall not preclude the Simultaneous or later exercise by such
party of any of all of such other rights, powers or remedies.

23. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT

Page 8 of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 57



The person or persons executing this Agreement on behalf of Consultant represents
and wanants that he/she has the authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the
Consuftant and has the authority to bind Consultant to the performance of its obligations
hereunder.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed
as of the Effective Date.

"ctTY"
City of Selma

Teresa Gallavan, City Manager

"CONSULTANT"
National Demographics, lnc.

By
Douglas Johnson, President

By:

Attest:

By:
Reyna Rivera, City Clerk

Approved as to form:

By:
Mary Lerner, City Legal Counsel

Attachments Exhibit A
Exhibit B
Exhibit C

Scope of Services
Rate Schedule
lnsurance Requirements

Page 9 of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 58



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Page 10 of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 59



EXHIBIT B

RATE SCHEDULE

Page 11 of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 60



JI n n_

CN City of Selma
National Demographics Colporation

Summaryscope ofWotk

NDC tailors each proiect to the needs and goals of each jurisdictions. Below is

a tJpical NDC-suggested timeline and description of proiect elements.

'l'he dates ptovided below arc general guidelines and will vary according to the

goals, proiect choices, and deadlines of each iurisdiction.

This timeline is subject to chaoge based on ongoing changes in the date when
official population &a will be available and possible changes in state deadlines.

lpril - \lay

Proiect Planning and decisions on public mapping
tools, whether to use a commission, and other
proiect options. Begin project communications

and ouueach.

IIav - September
Any mapping tools prepared with preliminary

population data; initial pre-draft-map headng(s)
held.

October -January

Census data teceived and proccssed; draft maps

prepared, considcred, and reviscd (in hearings

and, if desired, less formal public workshops)

January - -\ptil
Final plan rcvisions made and plan adopted and

1mplemcn ted

Detailed Project Scope of Work

Aptil - Me,,y,2021 Proiect Planning and Initial Outreach

a. NDC works with the iurisdiction to Prepare a detailed proiect dmeline of
expected outreach efforts, public forums, formal hearings, draft map dates,

and final map adoption dates.

b. NDC works with the iurisdiction staff (or cofltract specielized outreach staff

- see notes below about that option if interested) to PrePare a proiect
outreach plan for all steps of the process covering tatget audiences, contact

lists, social media efforts, any potential postcatd mailings, utility bill inserts'

flyers for distribution at schools, media briefings, and community group

contacts.

c. Decide what public mapping tool(s) to provide, if any'

d. Decide whether to use a commission.

Page 1

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 61



J Y-\JY I -
NDC City of Selma

National Demographics Colporation

e. Create the proiect website: Nl)C will provide advice and text for the
jurisdiction's website, or as an optional project element NDC will build a

proiect website that the jurisdiction can simply link to ftom the iurisdiction
site.

f. NDC will work with jurisdiction and County Registrar staff to confirm GIS
boundaries and to identi$, and include in our redistricting database any
availablc GIS data that NDC and the jurisdiction identify arc likely to be
useful as mapping references for NDC, thc public, and for the iurisdiction.

g. Ptoject outreach begins with initial alerts and 'invitations to participate' sent
out to the general public, to overlapping jurisdictions, and to community
organizations.

May - Septembet,2l2l: Initid Data Analysis and Initial Hearings / Forums

h. NDC prepares total population estimates for use in initial hearings and any
public mapping tools.

NDC adds socio-economic data ftom the Census Buteau's American
Community Survey to the state demographic data.

i. NDC matches the demogtaphic database to the existing election areas.

k. NDC prepares a repoft regarding the demographics and compliance with
state and federal criteria of the existing election areas, including maps of
"protected class" population concentrations and other socio-economic data

often teferenced in redistricting (such as income, education levels, children
at home, language spoken at home, renters / homeowners, and single-family

/ multi-family residences).

l. NDC report is circulated to thc jurisdictiofl afld into the project outeach
messaging.

m. Hearings / Forums: NDC ptesents an overview of the redistricdng larvs and

criteria, jurisdiction demographics, and the population balance of the
existing election areas and theit compliance (or possible lack thereo{) with
state and federal requirements.

n. The project timeline and outreach plan ate presentcd to the public for
comments and feedback, along with a request to the public to provide
guidance on what residents consider key neighborhoods, communities of
interest, and othet project-related regions in the iurisdiction.

Page 2

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 62



J v-\,N I _

CN City of Selma

National Demographics Colpotation

o. If thc optional public mapping tools and/or Public Participation Kit are

included in the proiect, their use is demonstrated to the public.

p. If the optional public mapping tools and/or Public Panicipation Kit are

included in the project, NDC provides email and phone support for any

residents with questions regarding their use.

q. If the optional public mapping tools and/or Public Participation Kit are

included in the proiect, at the jurisdiction's option additional public forums

on thc use of those tools can be ptovidcd.

r. Outreach cffons conrinue with messaging to the public, with special focus

on community goups with an interest in the redisuicting.

Octobet - Jaouary, 2027: Dnft Marpping Time

s. 2020 (lensus total population counts rcleased and Califomia Statewide

Database completes "prison adiusmrents" of the data. Total population
counts in outreach materials and mapping tools are updated with the official
(lensus data.

t. If thc existing election 
^re 

s 
^te 

in compliance with state and fedetal rules

and balanced, the jurisdiction decides whethcr to stop at this "Still
Balanced" point or to continuc with a standard redisuicting.

u. Oureach cffons continue with messaging reminding the public of the

oppornrnity to provide written or mapped input on how the maps should

be drawn and welcoming any maps residents with to submit.

v. f'he public deadlinc for submitting any initial draft maps will bc

apptoximatelv seven days prior to the official deadline to post all draft maps

onlinc (to provide NDC time to ptocess any draft maps reccivcd, and for
NDC to develop our own two to four initial draft maps).

w. ,\ll outreach channels ate used to inform the public about the opporrunity

to submit draft maps and to cncourage participation in the review of the

upcoming draft maps.

x. NDC ptocesscs all public draft map submissions, drafts NDC's draft maps,

summatizes all of the draft maps. The maps, related demographics, and

summaries are provided by NDC in wcb-friendly formats. 'Ihesc process

maps are postcd on the proiect websitc and on thc NDC-provided
interactive revicw map.

Page 3

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 63



J Y-\-/Y lA
CN City of Selma

National Demographics Corpomtion

y. At the iurisdiction's option, orle or more informal workshops or public
forums are held to gathet residents' teacdons to and pteferences among the
draft maps.

z. The iurisdiction holds a hearing to review the draft maps, narrow down the
list of initial draft maps, and provide direction on any desired new or revised
mzps.

aa. 
-I'ime provided for the public to submit afly new maps and fot NDC to
ptovide maps based on the direction at thc hearing. During this time,
additional outreach is conducted to inform interested residents and
community groups of the selected 'focus maps' and the temaining
opportunities to participate in the process.

January - Ap4 2022: Map Adoption

bb.Any new or revised maps, related demographics, and summaties are posted
on the ptoiect website.

cc. At thc jurisdiction's crption, ofle or more informal workshops or public
forums are held to gather residents' reactions to and preferences among the
rcmaining maps.

dd.One or more hearings are held to continue the review and refinement of the
focus maps and, ultimately, adopt the final map.

ec. Ouueach continues to inform residents and community gtoups of the
progress of the proiect, oppornrnities for future participation, and,
ultimately, which map is adopted.

ff. Following map adoption, NDC coordinates map implementation with the
County Registtar, informing the iurisdiction staff of the progress, any issues,

and uitimate completion of that work.

gg. NDC wotks with the jurisdiction staff to ensure preservation of all project
data and recotds, including GlS-format versions o[ the adopted map.

Pagc 4

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 64



J y-\N tr^_

Proiect Pricing

i. Basic Ptof ect Elements (co'crs etcn thing crccpt for per-mccting and

City of Selma
National Demographics Corporation

s 17,500

s 2,750

s 1,250

s 3,000

optional expenses):..................................

2. Per_Meeting expense:

r In-person attendancc, per mceting

Virnral (telephonic, Zoom, etc.) attendance, per meetinga

For each meeting, NDC vill prepare meeting materials, including presentation materials and
maps; present and explain kev concepts, including mandatory and traditional redrstricung
criteria and "communities of interest"; facilitate convcrsadons; answer questions; and gather
feedback on eristing and proposed boundaries.

Per-meeting prices include all tavel and othcr anticipated meeting related expenses.

Telcphone calls to answer questions, discuss project status, and othet standard proiect
management tasks do not count as meeting and do not rcsult in anl charge.

3. Optiond Proiect Elements:
a) Proiect website s 4,500

b) Public mapping tool options:
o ESRI Redistricting...
o Caliper-centered systcm including all elements below

o "N{aptitude Online Redistricting" (MOR)
o Tuft University's "DisuictR' (a simple neighbothood mapping tool)

o Public Panicipation Kit paper- and Excel-based mapping tool

d) Public Participation Kit mapping tool without I{OR or ESRI.......
s 2,000
s 2,000

c) DistrictR without N{OR or ESRI

c) Wotking with independent or advisory redisricting
commlsslon no additional charge

l; Additional outreach assistance........ .... seParately contracted

* ESRI prices its software on a jurisdiction-by-iurisdiction basis. Thc lowest prices we have

seen arc 580,000 and up. If that is an option the jurisdiction would like to pursue, NDC rvill

request a speciEc price for vour jurisdiction from ESRI.

Pagc 5

NDC

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 65



J Lr-\N lA
NDC City of Selma

National Demographics Corporation

5300 pcr hour
5250 pcr hout
5200 pcr hour
5150 per hour
S50 per hour

The most common additional proiect expenses would be any site or staff costs

for conducting the community forums and the cost of printing or copying paper

copics of the "Public Participation Kit." In NDC's expericnce, most participants
will download and print the Kits in their own homcs ot offices.

NDC is happy to assist with any additional analysis that the client requests at our
standard hourly rates:

Principal pr. f)ouglas Johnson)
Vice President flustin I.evitt) .

Senior ConsuItant...................
Consultant......
Analyst / C\eical.........

Dt. Johnson is also available for deposition and,f or testimony work if necded, at

5350 per hour.

NDO requests that the "Still Balanced" projcct fce be paid at the start of the

projcct; that the difference betwccn the "Still Balanced" fee and half of thc "Basic

Proiect Elemcnts" be paid once thc decision to update the district lines is made;

and the balance of thc proiect costs be paid at thc conclusion of thc proiect.

Page 6

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 66



J v-\.N I _

CN City of Selma

National Demographics Corporation

Exception: "Sdll Balancd' Jurisdictions

F'or a few iurisdictions, the existing election areas will still mcct the equal
population and voting rights act requkemcnts using new 2020 Census data and
the requirements of Califomia's new "Fair Nlaps" law. 'I'hese iurisdictions havc

thc option simply retain the existing map without drawing and holding hearings

on altemative maps. For jurisdictions electing this approach, the proiect would
conclude with that decision.

Includes all thc sen ices listed belo
o Compile total population and Citizen Voting Age Population data.

. Import existing election area lines.

o Compile population data by election area and calculate population deviations,

memo sumtnarizing Endings.

s 3,s00

PreParc

"Still Balanced" optional prcject elemeos and per-meetiag exPenses

,\Ieeting attendance and optional proicct elements are not included in the

"minimal change" proiect base fee. If requestcd, NDC team members participatc

in "minimal change" project hearings or forums at the same "per meeting'
expenses, and optional proiect elements are provided at the same prices listed

for a standard project in the previous section of this proposal.

PageT

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 67



J lr\N IA
CN City of Selma

Natioaal Demographics Corporation

Deails of Optional Project Elements

Advisory or Independent Redistricting Commissions

NDC anticipates that many Califomia jurisdictions will create advisory or
independent commissions to manage the redistricting process. NDC welcomes

the use of such commissions, and our pricing does not change for iurisdictions
ctcating commissions. But the creation, uaining, operation and reporting of such

commissions often lcads to more meetings (and a resulting increase in the "per
mceting" projcct expenses) than a traditional tedistricting process conducted
primarilv bv the iurisdiction's elected leadetship.

Outreach Assistance

NDC brings topical expertise to your iurisdiction's ouffeach efforts, and NDC
makes available to all clients our library of sample outreach materials including
op-ed ardcles, postcards, utiJity bill insens, flyers, and social media messages'

NDC provides all o[ these materials along with our advice and input on outreach

strategy and materials to any interested jurisdiction, but we do not have graphic

artists to customize or design such materials in-house.

Iror larger-scale outreach efforts, especially where iurisdictions wish to scnd

representativcs out to regulat meetings of existing community organizations,

NDC qpically works together with a iurisdiction's in-house communicadons

staff and/or with one or more outreach organizations. We often work with, and

highly recommend, 'l'ripepi-Smith, and some information on the scrvices they

offer is included at thc end of this proposal. And we would be happy to work
with any in-house team at the iurisdiction or with any frm or organization the

iurisdiction selects. Nlany profects can be handled by a iurisdiction's in-house or
tegular outreach and communications teams (with samples and topic expenise

provided by NDC), but a number of iurisdictions seek supplemental outside

communications assistance.

Project Website

NDC provides all proiect materials in website-friendly formats for posting on

the jurisdiction's website. At no cost, NDC witl provide projcct website samples

and website language fot use on the iurisdiction's proiect website. But for
jurisdictions that prefer not to take on the challenge of cteating and managing a

rapidly-changing proiect website, NDC will create, host, and updatc proiect

website (visit to see one such site - though note that site was creatcd prior to
passage of thc new ,\8849 requircments).

Pagc 8

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 68



J LT-\.N I _

C
City of Selma

National Demographics Corporation

Home

r.,. i4al D€(ero.' 1t

On O.toD./ 3rd. $. Cd(il -l*a.d fit. "la!." m.ps. or5.r.d !tt, lto, lr,lt, lla
.nd 1L. On x@60.r ?lh, tlr cd.ril -qart r, .i!tt n( rini6. d :lb.!.- m.F
l la ed l2l. All ot tL& 6?. d .3 .hlLtr. o th.

Backgtound s1 Qnlins MappingTool Options

NDC is the unmatched leader in redistricting tools that emPower tcsidents to
review draft maps and to dcvelop and submit their own map proposals. NDC is

the only firm that has used the onlinc mapping solutions from both ESRI and

Caliper Corporation in major redistricting proiects.

Only NDC has rcpeatedly trained members of the public, processed public map

submissions, and presented the public map proposals to public hearingi and

commission meetings. ND(l's online mapping tool options ptovide user suPPoft,

hosting, managing, and processing submitted plans for an online interactive

system that allows publ-ic to draw and submit proposed maps thtough a standard

web browser.

<.crn rr@dr..u.t drrBa-kl {

Page 9

IE SCHEO{,'IE ORAFI MAPs ORAWAMAP CONTACT FAA RE5OUiCE5

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 69



J LT-\,AI IA- City of Selma
National Demographics Corporation

In the more than 200 Califomia local districting pro jects between 2012 znd 2020,
NDC is the only consultant ptoviding clients access to Caliper Colpotation's
"Ilaptirude Online Redistricting' tool. tven with the technical challcnges arising
from such tools' power and flexibility, NDC's training and encouragemcnt
frequendy results in 10, 20, 30 or more differcnt maps drawn by residents of the

school district or ciq' providing that tool to its residents.

I

!.8!6 ,-.aHr grcr

iofto o

l

I o,+

3

,

= Dirtricts Chang.r =

'ra!la6 
trfq 1r 5.d6 }a.r..r. \,irEi.

2

Page 10

NDC

IrcE rr raiD ttl ti lt taarb 5lsrr.n 5.!.r Dt

{fr

.{ I

'I

U J

l*!* a-r

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 70



J lr\N In-
City of Selma

National Demogaphics Colporation

fhc other primary public mapping tool curtcndy on the market is ESRI's
online districting tool. \Vhile easy to use, the I1SRI product costs significandy
more. As a result, traditionally only the largest jurisdictions have been able to
afford it.

-a;-14\t-

When it is time to staft the proiect, NDC will work with each interested client to
detcrmine which, if any, online mapping tool best meets the goals and budget of
the jurisdiction.

Page 11

NDC

l+

r t I

,

I

L-r

a.*y
m .,/'-Br I

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 71



J v-\N n_

C
City of Selma

National Demographics Colporation

Paper- and Excel-based Public MappingTools

While online mapping tools are

very- popular, NDC never
forgcts thosc residents who do
not have intcmet access or who
simply prefcr to not drawing
maps online.

r\t no cost with every online
mapping tool, and as a separatc

option for jurisdictions that for
budget ot other reasons do not
include an online mapping tool,
NDC offcrs our "Public
Participation Kit." Each "Kit"
includes two formats.

The first, and most simple, Kit
is a one-page map showing
strects, cit)' borders, and

population counts for NDC-
created "Population Unit"
geographic areas. Residents
draw the map they wish to
pfopose and add uP the
population counts by hand

until th",u get the right
population count in each

Public
Participation Kit

t?.h rMrlxr;(li(.r$ th( t )tel

FJplhti)fl ol rh "teul2tirrr
uJuf l!... t.(h dEt*Cl muJt h:r'(
escnli.nr €qud F.,fir:@n.

'lfu t,.ptlil"{r i'r t,.h,,irltr'
riY( rlistncr' m"rt |r' .1 )r' t,
-.tt_. qrth no 

'nor( fi:. ,
-.r5 &t!'.'nocc b.ru'elr 6( lar$r(

i.i.i , l.::-.....,..':,.,],
:r-..!..-.,1

i' -t- i

:-"r

!i

:i-"--.

.t-

district. AII of the directions needed are right on thc single-page form. Ilxamples

of these tools, from our work for the City of Lake Foresq are available here:

https://drawtf. orgf draut-a-r,:,ap / .

'I'he second form of offline mapping tool is for those residents who do not walrt

to deal with an online mapping tool, but who are already comfortablc with
Nlicrosoft l,lxcel. NDC provides a similar simple one-page map of those samc

"Population Units," but this time the map shows the Unit ID number tather
than the population count in that Unit. Residents then enter their preferred

district assignment for each Population Unit into the pre-formatted Iixcel
spreadsheet (also available on the Lake Forest website), and Excel calculates the

total population and demographics o[ each District. When the resident has the

map the way they like it, they simple email in the lixcel file.

Page 12

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 72



INSURANCE REQU IREMENTS

Without limiting Consultant's indemnification of City, and prior to commencement of the
Services, Consultant shall obtain, provide and maintain at its own expense during the term
of this Agreement, policies of insurance of the type and amounts described below and in a
form satisfaclory to the City.

General liability insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial general liability
insurance with coverage at least as broad as lnsurance Services ffice form CG 00 01, in
an amount not less than $2,000,000.00 per occulrence, $4,000,000.00 general aggregate,
for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage. The policy must include contractual
liability that has not been amended. Any endorsement restricting standard ISO "insured

contract" language will not be accepted.

Automobile liability insurance. Consultant shall maintain automobile insurance at least as
broad as lnsurance Services Ofiice form CA 00 01 covering bodily injury and property

damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in connection with Work to be
performed under this Agreement, including coverage for any owned, hired, non-owned or
rented vehicles, in an amount not less than $2,000,000.00 combined single limit for each

accident.

Professional liability (errorc & omissions) insurance. Consultant shall maintain
professional liability insurance that covers the Services to be performed in connection with
this Agreement, in the minimum amount of $2,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate. Any
policy inception date, continuity date, or retroactive date must be before the effective date of
this agreement and ConsuJtant agrees to maintain continuous coverage through a period no

less than three years after completion of the services required by this agreement.

Consuttant shall submit to City, along with the certificate of insurance, a Waiver of
Subrogation endorsement in favor of the City, its officers, agents, employees and

volunteers.

Proof of insurance. Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance to City as evidence of
the insurance coverage required herein, along with a waiver of subrogation endorsement for

workers' compensation. lnsurance certificates and endorsement must be approved by City's

Risk Manager prior to commencement of performance. Current certffication of insurance

shall be kept on file with City at all times during the term of this contract. City reserves the
right to require mmplete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time.

Duration of coverage. Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the

contract insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property, which may
arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services hereunder by Consultant,

his agents, representatives, employees or subconsultants.

Primary/noncontributing. Coverage provided by Consultant shall be primary and any
insurance or setf-insurance procured or maintained by City shall not be required to

Page 12 ot 14

EXHIBIT C

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 73



contribute with it. The limits of insurance required herein may be satisfied by a combination
of primary and umbrella or ex@ss insurance. Any umbrella or excess insurance shall
contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that such coverage shall also apply on a
primary and non-contributory basis for the benefit of City before the City's own insurance or
self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a named insured.

City's rights of enforcement ln the event any policy of insurance required under this
Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not replaced, City
has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium
paid by City will be promptly reimbursed by Consultant, or City will withhold amounts
sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. ln the alternative, City may cancel this
Agreement.

Acceptable insurers. All insurance policies shall be issued by an insurance company
cunently authorized by the lnsurance Commissioner to transact business of insurance in the
State of Calilomia, with an assigned policyholders' Rating of A- (or higher) and Financial
Size Category Class Vl (or larger) in accordance with the latest edition of Best's Key Rating

Guide, unless othena/se approved by the City's Risk Manager.

Waiver of subrogation. All insurance coverage maintained or procured pursuant to this
agreement shall be endorsed to waive subrogation against City, its elected or appointed
officers, agents, officials, employees and volunteers or shall specifically allow Consultant or
others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications to waive their
right of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery against
City, and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each of its
subconsultants.

Enforcement of contract provisions (non estoppel). Consultant acknowledges and

agrees that any actual or alleged failure on the part of the City to inform Consultant of non-

compliance with any requirement imposes no additional obligations on the City nor does it

waive any rights hereunder.

Requirements not limiting. Requirements of specific coverage features or limits contained
in this Section are not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits or other requirements, or a

waiver of any coverage normally provided by any insurance. Specific reference to a given

coverage feature is for purposes of clarification only as it pertains to a given issue and is not

intended by any party or insured to be all inclusive, or to the exclusion of other @verage, or
a waiver of any $pe. lf the consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums shown

above, the City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by

the Consultant. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits

of insurance and coverage shall be available to the City.

Notice of cancellation. Consultant agrees to oblige its insuran@ agent or broker and

insurers to provide to City with a thirty (30) day notice of cancellation (except for
nonpayment for which a ten (10) day notice is required) or nonrenewal of coverage for each

required coverage.

Page 13 of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 74



Additional insured status. General liability policies shall provide or be endorsed to provide
that City and its officers, officials, employees, and agents, and volunteers shall be additional
insureds under such policies. This provision shall also apply to any excess liability policies.

Prohibition of undisclosed coverage limitations. None of the coverages required herein
will be in compliance with these requirements if they include any limiting endorsement of any
kind that has not been first submitted to City and approved of in writing.

Separation of lnsureds. A severability of interests provision must apply for all additional
insureds ensuring that Consultant's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against
whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respec{ to the insureds limits of liability.

The policy(ies) shall not contain any crossJiability exclusions.

Pass Through Clause. Consultant agrees to ensure that its subconsultiants,

subcontractors, and any other party involved with the project who is brought onto or involved
in the project by Consultant, provide the same minimum insurance coverage and
endorsements required of Consultant. Consultant agrees to monitor and review all such
coverage and assumes all responsibility for ensuring that such coverage is provided in
conformity with the requirements of this section. Consultant agrees that upon request, all

agreements with consultants, subcontractors, and others engaged in the project will be
submitted to City for review.

City's right to revise specifications. The Ctty reserves the right at any time during the
term of the contract to change the amounts and types of insurance required by giving the
Consultant ninety (90) days advance written notice of such change. lf such change results in

substantial additional cost to the Consuhant, the City and Consuhant may renegotiate

Consultant's compensation.

Self-insured retentions. Any self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by
the City. The City reserves the right to require that self-insured retentions be eliminated,

lowered, or replaced by a deductible. Setf-insurance will not be considered to comply with
these specifications unless approved by the City.

Timely notice of claims. Consultant shall give the City prompt and timely notice of claims

made or suits instituted that arise out of or result from Consultant's performance under this

Agreement, and that involve or may involve coverage under any of the required liability
policies.

Additional insurance. Consultant shall also procure and maintain, at its own cost and

expense, any additional kinds of insurance, which in its own judgment may be necessary for
its proper protection and prosecution of the work.

Page 14 of 14

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 75



CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT
CITY COIINCIL MEETING:

May 3,2021

ITEMNO:
SUBJECT:

l.h
Consideration ofa Resolution approving issuance ofa special event
permit and request for a fee waiver for the National Day of Prayer

RECOMMENDATION: Consider request from Antioquia Ministries, Inc. to
issue a special event permit and waive fees for their National Day of Prayer Event at
Lincoln Park

DISCUSSION: Antioquia Ministries, Inc. has submitted a request for a special event permit
and to waive fees associated with the proposed National Day ofPrayer Event on Thursday,
May 6,2021.

Because of the COVID-I9 emergency, the City has implemented a temporary policy to
request approval from the Council on a case-by-case basis prior to issuing special event
permits.

Fees associated with this event include Special Events Permit, Amplified Sound Fee, and
Park Rental.

o Planning: $160.00 ($80.00 Special Event Fee and $80.00 Amplified Sound Fee)
. Recreation: $100.00 Park Rental Fee

Total $260.00

The event will include music and prayer at Lincoln Park on May 66 between the hours of
12:00 pm and 1:30 pm. The event will be open to the public, but Antioquia Ministries
estimates between 30 to 50 people will be in attendance. There will be guest speakers and the
event will end following the last speaker.

Antioquia Ministries will be required to provide proof of insurance for the event with the City
of Selma named as additional insured.

RECOMMEND ATION: Consider request from Antioquia Ministries to issue a special

event permit and waive fees for the National Day of Prayer event at Lincoln Park on May 6,

2021.

/s/ 04/27 /202r
Femando Santillan, Community Development Director Date

/s/ 04/27 /202t
Joe Gomez, Police Chief Date

/s/ 04/27 /202 1

Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Date

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 76



RESOLUTION NO. 2O2I _

A RESOLUTION OF TIIE CITY COI,JNCIL OF TIIE CITY
OF SELMA, CALMORIYIA, APPROVING TIIE ISSUANCE
OF A SPECIAL EYENT PERMIT AND REQTJEST FOR A
FEE WAtyER FOR THE AIYTIOQI]IA MIMSTRIES, INC
NATIONAL DAY OF PRAYER

WHEREAS, Antioquia Ministries has requested that the City Council waive fees

associated with is National Day of Prayer event to be held on May 6,2021 at Lincoln Park;
and

WIIEREAS, because of the COVID-I9 emergency, the City has implemented a

temporary poliry to request approval from the Council on a case-by-case basis prior to issuing
special event permits; and

WIIEREAS, the total fees associated with the event are $260.00, which includes the
fees for the special events permit, sound permit, and park rental; and

WHEREAS, the total amount Antioquia Minisries is requesting the City Council to
waive is two hundred sixty dollars ($260.00); and

WIIEREAS, the City will provide Antioquia Ministries with applicable federal, state,

and local COVID-l9 guidelines relating to public outdoor gatherings, which Antioquia
Ministries has agreed to follow.

NO'W, TIIEREFORE, TTM CITY COI,JNCIL OF TTIE CITY OF SELMA DOES
TIER.EBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION I The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by
reference

SECTIQN 3. The City Council hereby approves the issuance of a special event permit
and fee waiver for fees associated with the National Day of Prayer Event in the amount of
Two Hundred Sixty Dollars ($260.00).

WTIEREAS, while the City is proposing to waive two hundred sixty dollars ($260.00)

associated with the event, Antioquia Ministries is still required to comply with all other
provisions of the City's Municipal Code; and

SECTION 2. Antioquia Ministries, Inc. is a registered 501 (c)(3) non-profit public
charity organization that benefits the residents of Selma.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 77



SECTION 4. Antioquia Ministries shall comply with the City's Municipal Code and
applicable COVID-l9 guidelines during the event, and provide the Ciry with all information
required by City staff, including, but not limited to, the following:

I . Proof of insurance with the City named as additional insured.
2. Indemnification of the City.

SECTION 5. The provisions of this Resolution are severable and if any provision,
clause, sentence, word or pan thereof is held illegal, invalid, unconstitutional, or inapplicable
to any person or circumstances, such illegality, invalidity, unconstitutionality, or
inapplicability shall not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions, clauses, sentences,

sections, words or parts thereof of the Resolution or their applicability to other persons or
ctcumstances.

SECTION 6. That the City Clerk shall certi& to the adoption of this Resolution and
that the same shall be in full force and effect.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 3'd day of May, 202l,by the following
vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

ATTEST:

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk

COTINCILMEMBERS:
COUNCILMEMBERS:
COI.]NCILMEMBERS:
COUNCILMEMBERS:

Scott Robertson, Mayor

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 78



CHECK REGISTER REPORT

CHECK
NUI'BER

CHECX DATE STATUS VENDOR NAME CHECK OESCRIPTION CATEGORY AMOUNT

77192

77193

771

77195

771

Pnnted

Pnnled

Pnnled

Pnnled

Pnnted

CHRISTOPHER L ABBEY i ASSEY O@R SERVI

ACTION TOWNG AND DIVE TEAM

ADVENTIST HEALTH TULARE

AIRGAS USA LLC

AMERICAN AMBULANCE

JORDAN SCOTT ARANJO / GMPEWOOD
GRILL

ATAT

AT&T

AT&T MOBILITY

CHRIS AYAI-A

EANNER PESI CONTROL I C

BEAUMONT LAW FIRM, PC

MATT SEGINES

BEST UNIFORMS

JAY WESLEY BROCK/ TOP DOG TRAINIT{G

GARY V BUFKIN

CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE

CDCE INCORPORATED

CENTRAL VALLEY TOXICOLOGY INC

CITY OF SANGER FIRE DEPARTMENT

COLANTUONO HIGHSMIfH & WHATLEY

FLORENCE A COLBY

COMCAST

COUNTY OF FRESNO

DATAPATH LLC

PAUL OEMMERS

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CARE

DEPARTMETIT OF JUSTICE

DOOLEY ENTERPRISES, INC

MYRON DYCK

JOEL A FEDOR / FEDOR PLUMBING

FIRE RECOVERY EMS LLC

FRESNO COUNTY CLERK
FRESNO MADERA COUNTIES POLICE CHIEF'S

ASSOCTATTON

GAR BENNETT LLC

GARAGE DOOR REPAIRS.STA 2

EVIDENCE TOWS .I,IARCH 2021

BLOOD/ALCOHOL ANALYSIS CASE #21-1252

OXYGEN SUPPLIES,CVTC

MAY 2021 PAYMENT

COVID 19 SMALL AUSINESS RELIEF GRAN']
ROUI{D 2

INTERNET SERVICE -CVTC

f ELEPHONE A 1221 4t 1 1 121

TELEPHONE.MD]'S 3/1.3l/31/21

FTO COURSE PER DIEM 4I2g214BOI21

PEST CONTROL.APRIL 2021

LEGAL SERVICES .JANUARY 2021

FUEL REIMBURSEMENT

CODE ENF REVOLVINGACCT

K9 PURCIIASE & K9 MAINTENANCE 4/5/21

MOVE PERMIT SYSTEM TO ANOTHER SERVER

WATER SERVICE.MARCH 2021

MOT MONTHLY LEASE.PD

DRUG TESTING 21.0589

CONSULTING FOR IGT FEEI/MAR 21

LEGAL SERVICES .JANUARY 2021

TRANSCRIPTS

INTERNET SERVICE .APRIL 2021

INTERNAL AFFAIRS INVESTIGATION

DESKTOPS FOR DISPATCH

STATION SUPPLIES REIMBURSEMENT

GEMT OAF z)1 9/2020 QRl 4

FINGERPRINTS -MARCH 2021

AMMUNTTION

WTT{ESS FEE REIMBURSEMENT

INSTALLEO NEWCLEAN OUT SATAZAR CENTER

AMBULANCE BILLING.MARCH 2021

NOE SPR 2018-0045

R

G

2,425 00

155 00

100 00

52.36

93.750 00

77197

77198

77199

77200

77201

77202

77203

7720,

77205

77206

77207

77204

77209

77210

77211

77212

77213

77211

77215

77216

77211

77218

77219

77220

77221

77222

77223

?7224

77225

772m

0!,t23t2021

ut23t2021

o4n3t2021

04n312021

0{,t23t2021

04D3t2021

o4t23t2021

0/t2312021

un3t2021

uD3t2021

04123t2021

o4t23t2021

uD3t2021

04,t23t2021

04t23t2021

0/,t23t2021

04t2312021

0412312021

04t2312021

0412312021

0412312021

ut23t2021

ut23D021

04t23DO21

0,4123t2021

ut2xt2021

un!2021
un3t2021

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Phnted

Pnnled

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Prinled

Pnnled

Pnnled

Pnnled

Pnnted

Pnnled

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnied

Printed

Pnnted

Pflnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

R

PARTIAL R

2.500 00

7AU

45 83

437 71

275 00

441 00

3.100 00

85 00

86 36

7.251 00

500 00

11,097 34

220 00

215 00

131275

5.775 50

1 184 00

421 45

2,099 77

't0,099 93

68 84

53.101 20

425 00

2,336.55

39 00

412 83

12.470 52

50.00

150 00

090

04123t2021

0{,t2312021

Pnnted

Pnnled

77227

77224

77229

77230

7723',1

77232

77233

772U

77235

77236

77237

?723€

77239

77214

04t2312021

04t2312021

uD3t2021

0/123t2021

u18t2021

0/,t23t2021

o4t23t2021

01t23t2021

04t2312021

04t23DO21

0{t23t2021

0/t23t2021

0!12312021

o4t2312021

Pnnled

Printed

PnnEd

Pnnted

Pnnted

Printed

Pnnled

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnled

GATEWAY ENGINEERING, INC

GCS ENVIRONMENTAL EQUIPMENT

GEIL ENTERPRISES INC

HEALIHEDGE ADMINISTRATORS INC

HEALTHEOGE ADMINISTRATORS INC

HEALTHEOGE ADMINISTRATORS INC

HEALTHEOGE ADMINISTRATORS INC

HEALTHEOGE ADMINISTRATORS INC

HEALTHEDGE ADMINISTRATORS INC

HEALTHEDGE ADMINISTRATORS INC

HEALTHWSE SERVICES, LLC

HENRY SCHEIN INC

MATTHEW HUGHES

J'S COMMUNICATiON INC
ANNA M JAIMES / J&A DRUG & ALCOHOL
TESTING

JAI.I T JOHI{SON

JAN T JOHNSON

2021 MEMAERSHIP

IRRIGAlION SUPPLIES

20-060 ATP 2O2O GRANTAPP,20.088 CDBG

DOWNTOWN ADA

HALF RINGS 8" HAND HOSE UNIT# 1318

JANITORIAL SERVICES .APR 2021

oENTAL 3/10121

DENTAL 3/17121

DENTAL 3/24121

DENTAL4/1121

DENTAL 4'l21

ADMII.I ISTRATIVE FEES.APRIL 21

ADMINISTRATIVE FEES -MAY 2021

MEDICAL WASTE SERVICES.PD

MEDICAL SUPPLIES

tctcoRE couRsE PER olEM 910n1-5t21121

RADIO -PO

PARTIAL G
15.977.00

68.38

3,060 00

1,38210

3,695 59

2.727.26

2,67 AO

1,734 90

783 59

u5 29

150 00

1 786 10

110 00

15,441 47

R

77211

77212

77243

ung2021

0,123t2021

uP3r2021

Pnnted

Printed

Pnnted

EMPLOYMENT ORUG TESTING .PD

FIRE TRAINING PER DIEM 318f21.!11T21

GYM MEMSERSHIP REIMBURSEMENT

325 00

60 00

200 00

0/,t23t2021

04t23t2021

04t23t2021

0/t23t2021

0/t23t2021

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 79



CHECK REGISTER REPORT

CHECK
NUMAER

CHECK OATE STATUS VENDOR NAME CHECK DESCRIPTION CATEGORY AMOUNT

77244

77245

77246

77247

77244

77249

77250

77251

77252

77253

77254

77255

7725f

77257

77259

77260

77261

77262

77264

775
776
77267

77268

77269

77270

77271

77272

77273

77274

n276

77277

77274

ul23DO21

uD3r2021

04t23t2021

04l23DO21

0/,t23t2021

un3t2021

0{,t2312021

0/.D312021

0/-D312021

o4t23t2021

uD3t2021

04,t23t2021

0/t23t2021

o4t2312021

04t23t2021

un3t2021

ut:2312021

04n3t2021

un3t2021

un3t2021

0d,t2312021

04n312021

0..t23t2021

04123t2021

04l2wo21

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Prinled

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnied

Pnnied

Pnnled

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnled

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnled

Pnnted

Printed

Pnnled

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnfited

PnnEd

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnted

Pnnled

Pnnled

Prinled

Pnnted

Pnnted

ur2g:2021

04t23no21

0/t23t2021

ut23no21

uD3r2021

o4D3t2021

un3t2021

o4t2312021

ut2wo21

04,t2312021

WLOLAND JACKET GRAPHIC

MEDICAL SUPPLIES

SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE .MAY 21

GRAPHTCS FOR UNtT* 185 & #198

MDT MANAGED SERVICES .MAR 21

DOCUMENT OESTRUC]ION SERVICE

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES -MAR 21

RADIO SUPPLIES

REPAIR FENCE -SHAFER

TRASH REFUND

JORGENSEiI A COMPANY

MICTIAEL KAIN

JEFF KESTLY

LN CURTIS & SONS

TIMJLAW&ASSOCIATES

LIFE.ASSIST INC

SERGIO MALDONADO

HEATHER MCCOY

STEVEN LEE MCINTIRE

METRO UT{IFORM

MONTOY LAW CORPORATION

OFFICE DEPOT, INC

PG&E

PROFESSIONAL PRINT & MAIL, INC

JACOB PUMAREJO

PURCHASE POWER

OUAD KNOPF. INC

RUlz FAMILY ENTERPRISES INC

SCO-rT SANDERS

SECONO CHANCE ANIMAL SHELTER

SIGNMAX

SITEONE TANDSCAPE SUPPLY LLC

SPARKLETTS

SPARKLETTS

SPECIALZEDGRAPHICS INC

KATHERINE L STILWELL / MINOFUL

CREATIONS

STRYKER SALES CORPORATION

THE CRISCOM COMPANY

TULARE CO JAIL INDUSTRIES

TJNITY IT

VALLEY SHREDDING LLC

VANIR CONSTRUCTION

VINCENT COMMUNICATIONS INC

DAT{IEL VIVEROS

WASTE MANAGEMENT

ANNUAL FIRE EXTINGUISHER

MEDICAL PREMUT' REIME .MAY 21

MEDICAL PREMIUM REIMB -MAY 21

RESCUE SUPPLIES

LAW ENFORCEMENT BACKGROUND

MEOICAL SUPPLIES

FTO COURSE PER DIEM 1Dg214BOI21

vlcTrM EXAM 21-0970

MEDICAL PREi,!IUM REIMB -MAY 21

NAME TAGS.FD

LEGAL SERVICES .FEBRUARY 2021

OFFICE SUPPLIES

UTILITIES.MARCH 2021

SECURITY wlNDOW ETVELOPES

FTO COURSE PER DIEM 1Dg211T7OI21

POSTAGE REFILL .CH

oN-cALL PLANNTNG SERVTCES 221 t21-3t20t21

LINCOLN PAR( VETERAN'S PI.AZA MASONRY W

MEDICAL PREMIUM REIME ,MAY 21

MONTHLY SUPPORT.MAY 2021

SIGNS FOR BOOKING ROOM

IRRIGATION SUPPLIES

WATER SERVICE.PD

WATER SERVICE -CWC

DEDICATION PLAQUE.PD

R

238 05

I 304 68

2M 52

3,837.31

700 00

613.10

275 @

1.000 00

1.734.92

1.274 O0

8 959 50

229 63

56.25

271 47

275.00

758 15

18,096.40

21,120 00

1 .326 20

7 925 80

65 25

3,947 81

115 78

39 99

538 14

129 58

79.19

4,500 00

193 95

2,777 _33

60 00

4,560 80

1 2't9 59

550 00

314

TOTAL 354,162.69

Grant: G PD State Appropraation: POSA (457) Reimbursement: R

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 80



CITY MANAGER'S,/STAFF'S REPORT
CITY COUNCIL MEETING:

May 3,2021

ITEMNo: ij.
SIJBJECT: Consideration of Agreement with Selma Adventist Health- Laboratory &

Toxicology Services Agreement

RECOMMENDATION: Authorize City Manager to execute Agreement with Adventist
Health- for Laboratory & Toxicology Services.

DISCUSSION: The Selma Police Department desires to enter a contractual agreement
with Selma Adventist Health to perform phlebotomy services and laboratory testing as

described in the attached agreement.

The Selma Police Department is currently utilizing contract services with various
phlebotomists to perform blood draws for arrests involving DUI (Driving Under the
Influence) or individuals under the influence of narcotics at a cost of$50.00 per blood draw.
There have been numerous occasions where a phlebotomist was unavailable and a blood
draw sample (evidence) not retained. This results in the declination of charges by the
Fresno County District Attomey's Office. The phlebotomist also does not retain a sampling
of the blood sample evidence, after a successful blood draw, which requires a Police Officer
to book the sample as evidence into the Selma Police Department's evidence faciliry.

This proposed agreement would allow Selma Police Officers to, immediately transport the

arestee to Selma Adventist Health, where a blood draw, or urine sample if applicable, is

completed. This service will allow for stronger prosecufion in court because it eliminates the

excessive handling and transferring of the evidence sample. The blood draw or urine sample

will be retained in a secure location at Selma Adventist Health and then tested by their
Laboratory Technicians. The additional service will eliminate Selma Police Officers from
having to book the evidence at the Selma Police Department and the Evidence Technician
from transporting the blood or urine evidence to an outside facility; where it can take up to
two to four week to receive the results.

The Selma Police Department conducts an average of twenty to thlrty blood draws

annually, which calculates between $200 to $250 per service (blood draw and toxicology
testing).

Staff requests authorization for the City Manager to execute a contract with Selma

Adventist Health, for an estimated amount of $3,000.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 81



COST: @ntet cost of item to bc purchased) BWGET IMPACT: (Erter s,nount this non-
budgctcd iten will itnpaet ,his ,.a6' budgd - d
budgdcd, crtcr NONE).

$3,000.00 (estimate)
None.

ON-GOING COST: (E tte/ thc a,no,.nt
thot t ill nced to b€ budgaed cach ycar - if one-

tirnc cost, crrtel NONE).

FUNDING: (Enter ttu fading source for tbis
item - if fuad crisa, mkr the bslsnce in the fuml)

I

$3,000.00
Funding Source: General Fund

Fund Balance: FY 2019-20 $6,717,901

RECOMMENDATION: Authorize City Manager to execute Agreement with Adventist
Health- for Laboratory & Toxicology Services.

/s/ 04/29 /202t

Joseph Gomez, Chief of Police Date

04/29/2021

Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Date

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 82



LABORATORY & TOXICOTOGY SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is entered this lst day of April 2021, between Selma Police Department as "Client"
and Adventist Health Tulare, Adventist Health Toxicology hereinafter referred to as "Laboratory".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Client and Laboratory recognizes the need for services provided by taboratory to be

available to the following clients:

Selma Pollce Department

1935 E. Front Street

Selma, CA 93562

Phfl 559-891.2281

WHEREAS, Client desires to engage Laboratory to perform the functions and to provide laboratory

services as described in this Agreementi

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein contained, the parties to

this Agreement agree to the following terms and conditions:

1. Laboratory agrees to perform scheduled and non-scheduled lab draws for lab tests on the

patients for the Client regardless of Race, Creed, nationality, Origin or handicap, if
previously agreed upon,

2. Laboratory will process and/or analyze samples for toxicology and forensic alcohol.

3. l-aboratory services shall be available five days a week for obtaining samPles and testint.

On-call sample collection will be available seven days a week (24/7) and 355 days per

year, if previously agreed upon.

4. Client agrees to reimburse Laboratory for services performed at the agreed to rates listed

on pages 4-7. Reimbursement for services shall be mail to Adventist Health Toxicology

880 E Merritt Ave Suite 107, Tulare CA.93274. Reimbursement shall be net fifteen (15)

days from receipt of statement. Any Billing Questions Client may contact 559-685-3456.

5, Laboratory will provide a copy of all laboratory results to client. screening results will be

provided wlthin 24 hours during regular business hours. Confirmations will be provided

within 48-72 hours during regular business hours.

5. Laboratory will store samples and results up to a minimum of 3 years.

7. Laboratory will be responsible forall supplies.

1

IADVENTISTHEATTH:l NTERNALI
May 3, 2021 Council Packet 83



8. Laboratory will be responsible to monitor and ensure that the required services to clients

are in accordance with CCR Title 17 Forensic Alcohol Analysis regulated by California

Department of Public Health,

9. Term of this agreement is for a period of three year (31 and will automatically continue

thereafter for consecutive 1-year term.

10. Either party may terminate this Agreement with or without cause, by providing 30 days

written notice to the other party, The Laboratory will provide a 30-day notice in the event

of a pricing adjustment.

11, Each party agrees to be responsible and liable to third parties, for its own acts, both
passive and active, as they may give rise to claims, lawsuits, penalties or violations.

It is understood by the parties that Client is independent with respect to Hospitals and not an

employee of Hospitals. Hospitals will not provide benefits, lncluding health insurance benefits, paid

vacation, or any other employment benefit, for the benefit of Facility.

Mutual lndemnitv

Each party, Client and Laboratory and its employees and agents, shall be responsible for their own

acts and omissions and shall not be responsible for the acts and omissions of the other party in

carrying out this agreement. Each party, Client and Laboratory, agrees to indemnify and hold

harmless the other party against all actions, claims or demands whatsoever including costs, expenses

and attorney fees to which the other party may be put arising out of each party's negligent acts and

omissions during the performance of this agreement.

INSURANCE:

Laboratory agrees to secure and maintain in effect, at Laboratories own expense, liability insurance as

that are required by all laws and regulations of the State.

2

IADVENTISTHEALTH:INTERNAL]

RETATIONSHIP OF PARTIES:

Laboratory shall be solely responsible for paying alltaxes and compensation for its

employees and for furnishing, at Facilit/s sole cost and expense, any and all benefits including, but

not limited to, workers' compensation insurance, unemployment insurance, medical or life insurance

benefits and pension benefits as required by applicable law.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 84



lN WITNESS wHEREoF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement this lst day of April 2021, ln
Tulare County California,

City of Selma
Selma Police Department

1935 E, Front Street

Selma, CA 93552

Client Authorized Signature Print Name

Adventist Health Tulare, Adventist Health Toxicology

880 E. Merritt Ave. Ste 107 & 108

Tulare CA. 93274

Timothy Haydock, Finance Officer

Date

3

IADVENTISTHEALIH:INTERNAL}
May 3, 2021 Council Packet 85



ADVENT]ST HEALTH TOXICOLOGY TESTS AND PRICES

TEST NAME PRICE CODE TESTS INCTUDED PRICE

Blood Alcohol {by GC}

Results- - l..,nits in %
(s/100m1) B-5100540

TESTED BY: TEST DATE: BIOOd

Alcohol (Ethanol)= s55.00

Coroner Bottle Blood Alcohol

{by GCi Results- - Units in % B-5100540

TESTED BY: TEST DATE: Coroner

Bottle / Blood Alcohol (Ethanol) %
(s/loo mL) = sss.00

Blood Drug Screen (by

ELISA) Results

Amphetamines, Barbiturates,
Cannabinoids, Cocaine (Metabolite),

Benzodiazepines, Opiates,
Phencyclidine S50.oo

Specimen CollectionIi] 8,5100839 Collection Fee s45.00

Urine Drug Screen-10 Panel

{by EMIT} Results B-5100904

Amphetamines, Barbiturates,
Benzodiazepines, Cocaine
(Metabolite), Methadone,
Methaqualone, Opiates,
Phencyclidine, Propoxyphene,

Cannabinoids (THC-COOH),

Creatinine (mgldt), Specific Gravity,

PH s60.00

Urine Drug Screen-7 Panel

{by EMIT} Results B-5100912

Amphetamines, Barbiturates,
Benzodiazepines, Cocaine
(Metabolitel, opiates,
Phencyclidine, Cannabinoids (THC-

COOH), Creatinine (mg/dL), Specifi c

Gravity, PH sss.00

Blood Culture B-5100555

Source, Test Type: Result: Testing

Location: s60.00
Travel to collection 20
mileslil B-5101282 Collection Fee s4s.00

B-5100474

Source, Test Type: Result: Testing

Location: s72.00

Screen Alcohol (by EMIT)

Result B-5100714 Alcohol Screen-EMIT s30.00

Amphetamine Confirmation
(GC/MS) Results B-5101027

Amphetamine, Methamphetamine,
Ephedrine, Pseudoephedrine,

Phenylpropanolamine,
Phentermine, MDMA, MDA, MDEA s66.00

ALTERNATE SCAN (GC/MS) B-5100789 Altscan {A,8,N} s64.00
ALT SCAN-[Al Confi rmation
for PROPOXYPHENE (by

GCMS) B-5100789 ALTERNATE sCAN.IA].PRO S64.oo

ALT SCAN-[N] for MDPV
(Bath Salts) (by GCIMS) B-5100789 ALTERNATE SCAN-[N]-MOPV S54.oo

4

IADVENIISTHEALTH iINTERNALI

Miscellaneous Culture

B-5100821 I

I

I

I

I

I

I

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 86



ALT SCAN-[N] for
MEPHEDRONE by GclMS) B-5100789 ATIERNATE SCAN-[N]-MEP s54.00

ALT SCAN-[N] Confirmation
for METHADONE {by CC/MS) B-5100789 ALTERNAIE sCAN.IN].MTD 554.00

Blood Fentanyl- Qualitative
only B-5100573 Elood Fentanyl s4s.00

Amphetamine Confirmation

{GCIM5} Results

Amphetamine, Methamphetamine,
Ephedrine, Pseudoephedrine,
Phenylpropanolamine,
Phentermine, MDMA, MDA, MDEA s66.008-5101142

B-5101126
Butalbital, Pentobarbital,
Phenobarbital, Secobarbital s66.00

Barbiturate Confirmation

{GC/MS) Results

Alprazolam, Diazepam,

Nordiazepam, Oxazepam,
Temazepam, Alpha-
hydroxyalprazolam, Lorazepam s66.00

Benzodiazepine

Confirmation {GC/MS}
Results B-5101159

Cocaine Confirmation

{GC/Ms} Results s-5101r57 Cocaine, Benzoylecgonine s55.00

Phencyclidine Confirmation

iGC/M5) Results B-5101175 Phencyclidine s66.00

s66.00
opiate confirmation
{GC/Ms} Results B-5101134

Codeine, Morphine, Hydrocodone,
Hydromorphone, Norcodeine

Delta-9-THC, THC-COOH s65.00
Cannabinoids Confirmation

{GC/Ms} Results B-5101183

s42.0OCancelled CollectionIi] B-s100805 Cancelled Collection

s2s.oo
lnternal and/or External
chain of Custody ProvidedIil B-5100441 CHAIN OF CUSTODY

s32.00couRr CASE ASSEMSLYIi] B-5101191 COURT CASE ASSEMBLY

s140.00Esoteric B-5100938

Source, Test Type:, Result:,

Therapeutic Level:, Toxic Level:, Test

Type; , Result:, Therapeutic level2:,
Toxic Level 2:, Testing Location:,

Test Method;

Source, Test Type:, Result:,

Therapeutic l-evel:, Toxic Level:, Test

Type:, Result;, Therapeutic Level 2:,

Toxic l-evel 2; , Testing Location:,

Test Method: s 136.00Esoteric 2 B-5101076

s136.00B-5101084

Source, Test Type:, Result:,

Therapeutic Level:, Toxic Level:, Test

Type: , Result:, Therapeutic Level 2:,

Toxic Level 2: , Testing Location:,

Test Method:Esoteric 3

s66.00Gassing lD 1 B-5101290

Description of Specimen:,

Description of Procedure:, Tested

for the prescence of:, Test Method:,
Result:

5

[ADVENIISTHEALTH:INTERNAL]

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 87



Gassing l0 2 B-5101290

Description of Specimen:
Description of Procedure: Tested for
the presence of: Test Method:
Result: s56.00

Handling and Splittinglil B-5100946
Handling Splitting, Source of
specimen sent out; Sample sent toi 587.00

Handling & Splitting-
Esotericlll B,5100946

Handling & Splitting Esoteric, Source
of specimen sent out: Sample sent
to: s92.00

Hepatitis B Surface Antigen B-5100631

Source, Hep B Surface AG, Testing
Location: s6s.00

Hepatitis C Antibody B-5100649
Source, Hepatitis C Antibody,
Testing Location: 56s.00

8-5100664
Source, Test Type: Result: Result
Testing Location: s187.00

HIV SCREEN B-5100556
Source, Test Type: Result: Result

Testing Location: s88.00

Substance ldentification for
Ethanol {by GC} B-5100722 Description of Specimen: Result s66.00

Substance ldentification

{cc/Ms} B-5r00722

Agency ldentifier for Specimen:

Description of Specimen: Weight
(grams): Packaging: Results of
ldentifi cation Testing: 566.00

Substance ldentification-2

{GclMS} B-5100722

Agency ldentifier for Specimen:
Description of Specimen: Weight
(grams): Packaging: Results of
ldentifi cation Testing: s66.00

Substance ldentification-3

{GclMs} B-5100722

Agency ldentifier for Specimen:

Description of Specimen: weight
(grams): Packaging: Results of
ldentification Testing: )bb.uu

Court Testimony - 4 Hours B-5100094 Half Day Court Testimony- 4 Hours sss9.00

Court Testimony - L Hour B-51000s2 CourtTestimony-1Hour s142.oo

Court Testimony - 2 Hours B-5100060 Court Testimony - 2 Hours s284.00

Court Testimony - 3 Hours B-5100078 Court Testimony - 3 Hours s426.00

Half oay Court Testimony B-5100045 Half Day Court Testimony- 4 Hours ss68.00

Full Day Court Testimony B-5100086 Full Oay Court Testimony - 8 Hours s1,135.00

Telephone Testimony per hour Description of Specimen: s60.00
Urine Alcohol (by GCI
Results- - units in %
(8/100mt) B-5100748

TESTED BY: TEST DATE: Blood
Equivalents (Ethanol)= s66.00

Amphetamine Conf irmation
(GC/Ms) Results B-5101027

Amphetamine, Methamphetamine,
Ephedrine, Pseudoephedrine,
Phenylpropanolamine,
Phentermine, MDMA, MDA, MDEA s66.00

Barbiturate Confirmation

{GC/MS} Results B-5101001

Eutalbital, Pentobarbital,
Phenobarbital, Secobarbital s66.00

5

IADVENTISTHEALTH:I NTERNAL]

HIV CONFIRMATION

I

I

I
I

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 88



Benzodiazepine

Confirmation {GClMS}
Results B-s101035

Alprazolam, Diazepam,
Nordiazepam, Oxazepam,
Temazepam, Alpha-hydroxy
alprazolam, l-orazepam S66.oo

Cocaine Confirmation

{GCIM5} Results 8,5101043 Cocaine, Eenzoylecgonine s66.00

Opiate Confirmation
(GclMs) Results B-5101019

Codeine, Morphine, Hydrocodone,
Hydromorphone, Norcodeine s66.00

Phencyclidine Confirmation

{GC/MS} Results Phencyclidine s56.00

Urine Validation B-5101209 Urine Validation, Urea Nitrogen s32.00
Amphetamines Screen Test
by EMIT B-5100755 Amphetamines s22.00

Barbiturates Screen Test by

EMIT B-s100755 s22.00Barbiturates

Benzodiazepines Screen Test
by EMIT Benzodiazepines s22.oo

Cocaine Screen Test bV EMIT B-5100755 Cocaine (Metabolite) s 22.00

Methadone Screen Test by
EMIT B-510075s Methadone s22.00

Methaqualon€ Screen Test
by EMIT B-5100755 Methaqualone 522.@

Opiates Screen Test by EMIT B-5100755 Opiates s22.00

Phencyclidine Screen Test by
EMIT B-s100755 Phencyclidine s22.00

Cannabinoids Screen Test by
EMIT Cannabinoids (THC-c00H) s22.00

THC-CO0H Confirmation

{GC/M5} Results B-5101068 THC-COOH s66.00

7

[ADVENTISTHEALTH :INTERNALI

I

B-s10075s I

B-5101050

I

I

8-5100755

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 89



lz
AdventistHealth\

CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

IN THE EVENT OF TERMINATION OF THE PROGRAMS
DESIGNATED BELOW. IT IS THE INTENT OF ADVENTIST HEALTH
SYSTEMMEST RISK MANAGEMENT TO MAIL THIRTY (30) DAYS
PRIOR NOTICE THEREOF TO CERTIFICATE HOLDER:

Adventist Health Tulare
Adventist Health Toxicology
880 E. Merritt Avenue #107
Tulare, CA 93274

City of Selma
Selma Police Department
1 935 E. Front Street
Selma, CA 93662

Laboratory
& 108

TYPE OF COVERAGE COMPANY/TRUST
NO./TRUSTEE

PERIOD OF
COVERAGE

AMOUNT OF COVERAGE

OCCURRENCE AGGREGATE'

HEALTHCARE PROFESSiONAL LIABILITY
COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY

AHSMEST TRUST
NO. 14969200

WELLS FARGO
TRUSTEE

01-o1-2021
to

01-o1-2022
$1.000,000 $3.000.000

.IHE COVERAGE PROGRAA' LISTED ABOVE HAS BEEN ISSUED TO THE ADVENTIST HEALTH PARTICIPANT INDICATED ABOVE FOR THE
PERIOD OF COVERAGE STATED, NOTWTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREi/lENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONlRACT OR OTHER
DOCUIUENT WTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICAIE iIAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, IHE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE
PROGRAIU DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH COVERAGE DOCUIVIENTS,
AGGREGATE LIM'T5 ARE SHARED BY ALL ADVENTIST HEALTH PARTICIPANTS AND MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

DISCLAIMER This Ceniflcate of Coverage does not constitute a contract between the AHSMest HPUGL Trust and the certificate holder, nor does it
afflrmatively or negatively amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by the coverage documents listed hereon.

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS:

All occurrences and medical incidents subject to the terms and conditions of the above Trust as respects the liability of
Adventist Health Tulare and its Adventist Health Toxicology Laboratory directly resulting from its performance of services
pursuant to its agreement with the Selma Police Department.

Effective: April 01, 2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS NOT VALID UNLESS SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF ADVENTIST
HEALTH SYSTEM^/VEST RISK MANAGEMENT.

lft-
Ap(l114,2021

DATE AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ADVENTIST HEALTH SYSTEM/WEST RiSK Manageflent
ONE Adventist Health way, PO Box 619002, Roseville, CA 9566'1 9002. Phone 916-406-1599, FaI916-!qq?!?l

PARTICIPANT:

AHSMEST RISK MANAGEMENT CERTIFIES THAT THE FOLLOWNG PROGRAMS ARE IN FORCE:

0,5
May 3, 2021 Council Packet 90



Endorsement No. 2021 -W0220

Nz
Adventist Heatth\

This endorsement effective April 01,2021 (12:01 A.M., Standard time) forms a part of Trust Document No. 14969200
issued by Adventist Health SystemMest Risk Management.

City of Selma
Selma Police Department
1935 E. Front Street
Selma, CA 93662

t { !b,--'---

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ADVENTIST HEALTH SYSTEMMEST Risk Management

ONE Adventist Health Way, PO Box 6'19002, Roseville, CA 95661-9002. Phonq 916-406'1599, Fax 916-406'2321

This endorsement modifies such coverage as is afforded by the provisions of the Trust relating to the following coverage part(s):

COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY

It is agreed that the City of Selma is added as an Additional Participant of this Trust but only to the extent that Additional
Participant is held liable for the acts, errors or omissions of Adventist Health Tulare and its Adventist Health Toxicology
Laboratory directly resulting from its performance of services pursuant to its agreement with the Selma Police Department.
This Endorsement does not extend coverage for the acts, errors or omissions of the City of Selma. All other terms,
conditions and exclusions remain unchanged. ln the event of termination of this program of coverage it is the intent of
Adventist Health SystemMest Risk Management to mail thirty (30) days prior notice thereof to:

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 91



CITY MANAGER'S,/ STAFF'S REPORT
CITY COI,JNCIL MEETING:

May 3,2021

a
StIBJECT: Update the City Council Code of Conduct

RECOMMENDATION: Council discuss and approve Resolution or provide additional
direction regarding the updated City Council Code of Conduct.

DISCUSSION: On February 16, 2021, the City Council directed staff to have Liebert
Cassidy Whitmore assess and update the City Council Code of Conduct. The revisions were
made largely for clariry. One substantive change: the current version allows the City
Council to impose a range of sanctions on BoardlCommittee members, but appears to
make elected City Council members entirely immune to enforcement of this policy. Instead,
the new version is revised to allow the limited sanction of formal public censure against City
Council members, while preserving the broader range for everyone else. An additional
substantive change is deleting the section on Council Members being able to appear before
the Council relative to private interests. Some conflicts of interest cannot be resolved with
mere recusal, could conflict the entire Council out of making a decision on a matter, and
common law conflicts could be triggered by allowing this type of comment by an individual
Council member in a Council meeting. New language was added regarding allowing
Council Members to attend Board and Commission meefings and Members of Boards and
Commissions attending Council meetings.

On March 16, 2021, the City Council gave further direction to add process information in
Section 6, Enforcement and Compliance. Attached is the updated Code of Conduct with
that addition.

RECOMMENDATION: Council discuss and approve Resolution or provide additional
direction regarding the updated City Council Code of Conduct.

/ s/ 04/14/2021
Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Date

ITEMNO:

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 92



CITY OF SELMA CODE OF CONDUCT FOR THE CITY COUNCIL
AND MEMBERS OF COMMISSIONS AND BOARDS.

This Code of Conduct, as adopted by the City Council of the City of Selma applies to

Members of the City Council and to all Member of all Boards and Commissions of the

City of Selm4 whether elected or appointed. This Code ofConduct supersedes the

previous version of this Code ofConduct adopted on July 18, 2016, but is otherwise

intended only to supplement, and not replace or supersede, any other Code ofConduct,

Code of Ethics, or rules governing meetings of the City Council or any Board or

Commission of the City of Selma contained in any prior Resolution or the Selma City

Municipal Code.

The purpose of this Code ofConduct is to establish standards ofethical conduct required

of elected and appointed City officials to insure the integrity and effective and fair

operation of the govemment of the City of Selma, and to maintain and promote the faith

and confidence of the public in their govemment.

The City Council will review, from time to time, this Code of Conduct and make changes

or revisions as deemed necessary to insure the faimess and impartiality ofproceedings

before the City Council, Boards and Commissions and insure the public's trust in the

govemess of the City.

Members in office at the time of the adoption of this Code of Conduct and all newly

elected or appointed Members shall sign a statement affirming they have read and

understand this City of Selma Code of Conduct for Members of the City Council, Boards

and Commissions.

2. Conduct of Members.

Members of the City Council, Boards and Commissions are stewards of the Public

interest and shall endeavor to serve for the benefit oftheir constituents and the public.

Members are expected to treat all persons, claims and matters coming before the Selma

City Council or any Commission or Board of the City equally and in an unbiased manner.

Members shall comply with all of the laws of the United States. Stale of Califomia and

the City of Selma in the performance of their public duties. These laws include but are

not limited to; The U.S. and Califomia Constitutions, Federal, State, and Local Acts,

9519586.1 SE030-00r -lAzl

l. Implementation

Therefore each Member, when representing the City of Selma, shall conduct themselves

in accordance with the following Code ofConduct:

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 93



Statutes. Regulations. and Ordinances and the Califomia Fair Political Practices

Commission Rules and Regulations relating to financial disclosures, election campaigns,

conflicts of interests. and open processes of govemment.

Members shall always conduct themselves in a professional manner and strive to avoid
even the appearance ol impropriety. The City expects all Members to use good manners;

to be considerate, respectful, and civil at all times and to refrain from abusive conduct,

verbal or nonverbal personal attacks upon the character or motives ofother Members of
the City Council, Commissions or Boards, the Public or Staff, in any setting including

before, during, or after the conduct ofa Public Meeting, including electronic

communications such as email or social media outlets. Members shall support a positive

and constructive environment for all Residents, Businesses, other Members, the Council.

Boards and Commissions of the City and City Employees.

Members shall strive at all times to cooperate with other public officials, employees, and

the public, while also respecting the distinct roles that public officials and staff have in

the organizational structure ofthe City's operations.

It is the role of the City Council of the City of Selma to determine the policies of the City

with the advice, information and recommendations provided by the Public, Boards and

Commissions and City Staff. The independent advice and recommendations of Boards

and Commissions to the City Council is extremely valuable to the City Council's

decision-making process and in particular for setting City Policy, but the ultimate

decision over City policy remains with the City Council.

Under the City of Selma's City Council-City Manager form of Govemment, neither the

City Council nor City Boards and Commissions, nor any Members thereof acting

individually, have authority to give orders, directions or instructions to City Employees.

This authority falls solely to the City Manager and applicable department heads and

supervisors.

However, a Member may make inquiries of City Employees related to the scope of their

duties provided that such inquiries will not require significant time or resources of City

Employees, without the approval of the City Manager. In addition, Members may, and

should, report to City Staff that is available, or the department head that is in charge ofa
particular function an emergency or other urgent situation requiring the attention ofthat
staffperson or department which affects the health, safety or welfare ofthe public or any

citizen or citizens of the City when communication through the City Manager is not

practicable. Members may also convey facts they reasonably believe should be made

3. Role of Members

9549586.1 SE030-00t -.lpl21

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 94



known to a particular member of the City staffor department in circumstances where

conveying such facts or information through the City Manager is not reasonably feasible

In all circumstances, Members shall recognize their role in dealing with City Employees

to work for the public interest and shall endeavor to avoid creating the perception ofand
inappropriate direction to City Staff.

Members shall perform their duties in accordance with the procedures and Rules ofOrder
established by the City Council and/or Boards and Commissions goveming the

deliberation olissues before them. Member shall prepare themselves for Public Meetings,

listen courteously and attentively to the Public, Staff, and each other and shall refrain

from intemrpting other speakers. making personal comments not germane to the business

of the body or otherwise interfering with the orderly conduct ofPublic Meetings.

Members should disclose all substantive information that is relevant to the matter that is

under consideration by their body which they may have received from sources outside of
the public decision making process. Members shall respect the confidentiality of
information made confidential ofprivileged by law and shall not disclose such

confidential or privileged information without proper legal authorization nor shall any

Member use such confidential or privileged information for their personal, financial or

private interests. Members shall always act in the best interests ofthe public.

All deliberations ofany issue before the City Counsel, Boards or Commissions, shall be

in public, unless those issues are authorized to be heard in Closed Session pursuant to the

Brown Act.

Maintaining the independence and impartiality of the City Council, Boards and

Commissions is imperative to maintain the Public trust. Members shall not use their

official positions to inlluence City decisions in which they have a material financial

interest or personal relationship which may give the appearance of a conflict ofinterest.

Members shall refrain from accepting any gifts, favors or promises of future benefits

which might compromise their independence orjudgement or give the appearance of
their independence or judgement being compromised. Member shall not use public

resources unavailable to the public in general, such as City Staff time, equipment,

supplies or facilities, for private gain or personal purposes. Members shall disclose

investments, interest in real property, sources of income, and gifts pursuant to applicable

laws and regulations. Members shall abstain from participating in deliberations and

decision-making where a conflict exists, pursuant to applicable law.

95d9586 1 SE030-001 -tBl2t

4. Conduct of Public Meetines.

5. Conflict of Interest.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 95



Council Members may afiend any Board or Commission meeting, which are open to
any member ofthe public. However, they should be sensitive to the way their participation
- especially if it is on behalf of an individual, business developer - could be viewed as

unfairly affecting the process. Public comments by a Council Member at a Board or
Commission meeting should be clearly made as individual opinion and not a

representation ofthe decision, direction, or on behalfofthe Council. Public comments by
a Council Member at a Board or Commission adjudicatory hearing should not be made

and may prohibit the Council Member from participating at City Council hearing on the
same matter.

Members of Boards and Commissions may attend a public meeting of the Council or other
Boards and Commissions. Because conflicts of interest are fact-intense, Members of
Boards and Commissions who wish to address another body should be circumspect and

clearly state that public comments are made as individual opinion and not on behalfofthe
Board or Commission they represent.

6. Compliance and Enforcement.

The City of Selma Code of Conduct for Members of the City Council, Boards, and

Commission Members is intended to be self-enforcing.

The Mayor and the Chairs of the Boards and Commissions of the City shall have the

additional responsibility to insure compliance with this Code ofConduct during the

conduct of Public Meetings. Any Member who becomes aware of any breach olthis

Code of Conduct by any other Member shall report that violation to the Mayor or City

Manager for possible further action. If the Mayor is the subject of the alleged violation,

the Member shall report the violation to the City Manager or City Attomey.

An allegation of violation of this Code of Conduct by a Member will be referred to an ad

hoc committee composed of one Council Member not subject to the allegation(s), the

City Manager, and the City Attomey, who will meet and determine if further fact-finding,

process, and referral to the full City Council is appropriate. Such initial inquiry by the ad

hoc committee will include notirying the Member subject to the allegation(s) of the

allegation(s) and providing the Member an opportunity to present information to the ad

hoc committee.

Following completion ofa fact-finding process resulting in sustained allegations against a

Member, the City Council may impose sanctions on Members whose conduct does not

comply with the City's Code of Conduct. For elected officials, such sanctions are limited

to a formal public censure, which requires the affirmative vote of (insert at least two-

thirds of the City Council present or a maiority of the City Council present). For other

9549586 I SE0l0-00r -31921

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 96



Members, possible sanctions include, but are not limited to, reprimand, formal censure,

loss of chair or other designation on the City Council, Board or Committee, or removal

from Board or Committee assignmenVappointment.

A violation ofthis Code ofConduct or any enforcement action taken thereunder shall not

be considered as a basis lor challenging the validity ofany action taken or decision made

by the City Council, or Board or Commissions of the City of Selma.

95495E6. r SE0l0-001 -3l9i2 r

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 97



RESOLUTION NO. 202I. R

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COI,JNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA
ADOPTING AN I,'PDATED CODE OF CONDUCT FOR TIIE CITY

COIJNCIL ANDMEMBERS OF COMMISSIONSAND BOARDS AND
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2OT6-53R

WIIEREAS, the residents of the City of Selma are entitled to have fair, ethical, and

accountable local govemment; and

WHEREAS, the residents of the City of Selma are entitled to have complete

confidence in the integrity of local govemment; and

WIIER-EAS, on July 18, 2016, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2016-53R

adopting a Code of Conduct Policy for elected and appointed officials of the City of Selma;

and which includes certain rules and regulations regarding conduct and a commitment to
uphold a standard of integrity beyond that required by law; and

WHEREAS, the City of Selma is interested in establishing a framework for day to

day actions and decision-making by the City's elected officials and members of boards,

commissions, and committees; and

WIIEREAS, integnty of officials of local govemment is key to the effective and fair

operation of govemment; and

WIIEREAS, the updating of the Code of Conduct Policy will demonstrate the City's

commitment to ethics and commitment to continuous evaluation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLYED, by the City Council of the City of
Selma, as follows:

1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated by

reference.

2. The City Council adopts the Code of Conduct for the City Council and Members

of Commissions and Boards as set forth in Attachment A and incorporated by

reference.

3. Resolution N o . 2016-53 as set forth in Attachment B is repealed and replaced in

its entirety by this Resolution.
4. This resolution is effective upon adoption.

**********************rk*******

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 98



The foregoing Resolution was duly approved this 3'd day of May, 2021by the following
vote, to wlt:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Scott Robertson Mayor of the Ciry of Selma

ATTEST:

Reyna Rivera City Clerk of the Ciry of Selma

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

COUNCILMEMBERS:

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 99



RESOLUTION NO.2016- 53 R

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITYCOUNCIL OF THE CITYOF SELMAADOPTING A
CODE OF CONDUCT POLICY FOR ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS OF

THE CIW OF SELMA

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Selma desire to adopt a Code of
Conduct Policy goveming the manner in which Public Officials, both elected and

appointed, should treat one another, City Staff, Residents of the City of Selma, and

other who they may come into contact with when representing the City of Selma, in

order to insure that the residents and businesses of the City of Selma are served by a

fair, ethical, transparent and accountable govemment; and

WHEREAS, in order to insure that the residents and businesses have confidence
in their elected and appointed officials, the City Council of the City of Selma desires to
and hereby does adopt the "City of Selma Code of Conduct for Members of City

Council, Boards, Commissions and Committees". Attached hereto and incorporated by

this reference herein as Attachment '4".

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Selma as

follows:

1. The City Council hereby adopts Aftachment 'A" attached to this Resolution

as the City of Selma's Code of Conduct for Members of City Council, Boards,

Commissions and Committees. A copy of this Code of Conduct and the Resolution shall

be provided to each person who is a Member of the City Council, or of any Commission

or Board of the City.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 100



The foregoing Resolution was duly approved this 18s day of July, 2016 by the following
vole, to wit

AYES: 5 COUNCIL MEMBERS: Rodriguez, Montijo, Derr, Avalos, Robertson

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: uone

ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS: No',"

ABSENT: o COUNCIL MEMBERS: tqone

Robertson Mayor of the City of Selma

ATTEST:

Reyn Rivera City Clerk of the City of Selma

0

0

tlttmu- /hr,ur

lor

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 101



ATTACHMENT,,A,,

CIW OF SELMA CODE OF CONDUCT FOR THE CIW COUNCIT

AND MEMBERS OF COMMISSIONS AND BOARDS.

1. lmplementation

This Code of Conduct, as adopted by the City Council of the City of Selma applies to

Members of the City Council and to all Member of all Boards and Commissions of the

City of Selma, whether elected or appointed. This Code of Conduct is intended to

supplement, and not replace or supersede, any other Code of Conduct, Code of Ethics,

or rules governing meetings of the City Council or any Board or Commission of the City

of Selma contained in any prior Resolution or the Selma City Municipal Code.

It is the intent of this Code of Conduct that all Members ("Members" shall mean any

Member of the City Council or any Board or Commission of the City of Selma whether

elected or appointed) to insure the inte8rity and effective and fair operation of the

governess of the City of Selma.

Therefore each Member, when representing the City of Selma, shall conduct themselves

in accordance with the following Code of Conduct:

1

A. Conduct of Members. Members must always work for the common good of the

residents and inhabitants of the City of Selma and treat all persons, claims and

matters coming before the Selma City Council or any Commission or Board of the

City equally and in an unbiased manner. Members shall comply with all of the laws

of the United States, State of California and the City of Selma in the performance of

their public duties. These laws include but are not limited to; The U.S. and California

Constitutions, Federal, State, and Local Acts, Statutes, Regulations, and Ordinances

and the California Fair Political Practices commission Rules and Regulations relating

to financial disclosures, election campaiSns, conflicts of interests, and open

processes of Government.

Members shall always conduct themselves in a professional manner and must be

above reproach and avoid even the appearance of impropriety. Members shall

refrain from abusive conduct, verbal or nonverbal personal attacks upon the

character or motives of other Members of the City Council, Commissions or Boards,

the Public or Staff, in any setting including before, during, or after the conduct of a

Public Meeting. This prohibition applies, as stated, to any setting, which includes,

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 102



but is not limited to personal or telephonic communlcation or contact, email or

other electronic communication and the posting of comments or transmission of
other communication throu8h social media outlets such as Facebook and Twitter.

Members shall support a positive and constructive environment for all Residents,

Businesses, other Members, the Council, Boards and Commissions of the city and

City Employees.

B. Role of Members. Members of the City Council, Boards and Commissions are

stewards of the Public interest. Members may appear before their own body or

before the City Council or any Board or Commission or proceeding of the City on

behalf of their own interests, or on the behalf of private interest of third parties on

matters related to an area of service on their bodies; but may only do so if the

Member has recused himself or herself from the consideration of the matter on

which the Member is appearing on his or her own behalf or on behalf of a third

party, if the appearance is made before the body to which the Member has been

appointed or elected to serve. ln addition, at any time a Member appears before his

or her own body or before the City Council or other Board or Commission of the City

the Member shall state or affirm that he or she has, if necessary, recused him or

herself from consideration of an item in which the Member is interested, and that

the appearance is being made by the member in his or her capacity as an interested

citizen and not in his or her capacity as a Member of any Council, Board or

Commission of the City.

Under the City of Selma's City Council-City Manager form of Government, it is not

the role of and Members are prohibited from giving orders, directions or instructions

to City Employees. All instructions, directions or orders to City Employees shall be

through the City Manager. However, Member may make inquiries of City Employees

related to the scope of their duties provided that such inquiries will not require

significant time or resources of City Employees, without the approval of the City

Manager. ln addition, Members may, and should, report to City Staff that is

available, or the department head that is in charge of a particular function an

emergency or other urgent situation requiring the attention of that staff person or

2

ln the City of Selma, the City Council of the City of Selma determines the policies of

the City with the advice, information and recommendations provided by the Public,

Boards and Commissions and City Staff. The independent advice and

recommendations of Boards and Commissions to the City Council is extremely

valuable to the City Council's decision making process and in particular for setting

City Policy.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 103



department which affects the health, safety or welfare of the public or any citizen or

citizens of the City when communication through the City Manager is not
practicable. Members may also convey facts they reasonably believe should be

made known to a particular member of the City staff or department in
circumstances where conveying such facts or information through the City Manager

is not reasonably feasible. ln all circumstances, Members shall recognize their role in

dealing with City Employees to work for the public interest and shall endeavor to

avoid creating the perception of and inappropriate direction to City Staff.

C. Conduct of Public Meetings. Members shall perform their duties in accordance

with the procedures and Rules of Order established by the City Council and/or

Boards and Commissions governing the deliberation of issues before them. Member

shall prepare themselves for Public Meetings, listen courteously and attentively to

the Public, Staff, and each other and shall refrain from interrupting other speakers,

making personal comments not germane to the business of the body or otherwise

interfering with the orderly conduct of Public Meetings. Members should disclose

all substantive information that is relevant to the matter that is under consideration

by their body which they may have received from sources outside of the public

decision making process. Members shall respect the confidentiality of information

made confidential of privileged by law and shall not disclose such confidential or

privileged information without proper legal authorization nor shall any Member use

such confidential or privileged information for their personal, financial or private

interests. Members shall always act in the best interests of the public.

All deliberations of any issue before the City Counsel, Boards or Commissions, shall

be in public, unless those issues are authorized to be heard in Closed Session

pursuant to the Brown Act.

D. Conflict of lnterest. Maintaining the independence and impartiality of the City

Council, Boards and Commissions is imperative to maintain the Public trust.

Members shall not use their official positions to influence City decisions in which

they have a material financial interest or personal relationship which may give the

appearance of a conflict of interest. Members shall refrain from accepting any gifts,

favors or promises of future benefits which might compromise their independence

or judgement or give the appearance of their independence or judgement being

compromised. Member shall not use public resources unavailable to the public in
general, such as City Staff time, equipment, supplies or facilities, for private gain or
personal purposes. Members shall disclose investments, interest in real property,

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 104



sources of income, and gifts, and shall abstain from participating in deliberations and

decision-making where a conflict exists, pursuant to applicable law.

E. lmplementation and Enforcement. The City of Selma Code of Conduct for
Members of the City Council, Boards, and Commission Members is intended to be

self-enforcing. Members are expected to represent the City in a manner consistent

with the Code of Conduct. The City Council will review, from time to time, this Code

of Conduct and make changes or revisions as deemed necessary to insure the

fairness and impartlality of proceedings before the City Council, Boards and

Commissions and insure the public's trust in the governess of the City.

Members in office at the time of the adoption of this Code of Conduct and all newly

elected or appointed Members shall sign a statement affirming they have read and

understand this City of Selma Code of Conduct for Members of the City Council,

Boards and Commissions.

2. Compliance and Enforcement.

The Mayor and the Chairs of the Boards and Commissions of the City shall have the

additional responsibility to insure compliance with this Code of Conduct during the

conduct of Public Meetings. Any Member who becomes aware of any breach of this

Code of Conduct by any other Member shall report that violation to the Mayor or City

Manager for further investigation or action.

The City Council may impose sanctions on Members who are not elected City Council

persons whose conduct does not comply with the City's Code of Conduct which include,

but are not limited to, reprimand, formal censure, loss of chair or other designation on

the City Council, Board or Committee, or removal from Board or Committee

assignment/appointment.

A violation of this Code of Conduct or any enforcement action taken thereunder shall

not be considered as a basis for challenging the validity of any action taken or decision

made by the City Council, or Board or Commissions of the City of Selma.

4

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 105



CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT
CITY COI,JNCIL MEETING:

May 3,2021

ITEMNO: 2.J,

SUBJECT: Presentation and Necessary Action to Accept Fiscal Year 2019-20 Financial
Statements with Independent Auditors Report

DISCUSSION: The City is required to perform a Financial Audit for all its entities each
year from an outside organization. The purpose of this service is to provide financial
information to the public and investors for transparenry. In addition, the auditors will test
for accuracy, controls, and fiscal policy. Once complete, a report called The Financial
Statements is generated with the auditor's findings and all standard govemmental financial
reports. Lack of completion could result in State and Federal funds being withheld.

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. These statements include all
activities of the City of Selma and its component unit, the Selma Public Finance Authority,
using the integrated approach as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34. The Statement of
Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the City
as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City's finances. Fund financial statements
tell how these services are financed in the short term as well as what remains for future
spending. Fund financial statements also report the City's operations in more detail than the
govemment-wide statements by providing information about the City's most significant
funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which
the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit ofthose outside the government.

The Govemmental Funds within the report consist of the General, Special Revenue, Debt
Services, and Capital Projecs Funds. The combined govemmental funds ended the fiscal
year with a fund balance of $23,088,735. The Major funds that make up 56% of the
govemment funds ending fund balance were as follows:

General
LTF
Groundwater Surcharge
Police Station Construction

$6,717,902
$3,572,906
s454,519
$2,130,093

Other funds types such as Proprietary and Fiduciary can be found within the report as well.
The financial audit for the fiscal year of 2019-2020 was conducted and prepared by
Sampson, Sampson and Patterson, LLP. Sara Fraijo will be presenting an overview of the
repon and answering questions from Council.

RICOMMENDATION: Accept fiscal year 2019-2020 Financial Statements with
Independent Auditors Reports.

04/14/202r
Isaac Moreno, Assistant City Manager Date

04/ 14/2021
Teresa Gallavan, City Manager DateMay 3, 2021 Council Packet 106



;,5
<7

CITY OF SELMA

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WITH

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2O2O

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 107



CONTENTS

Independent auditor's repon

Management's discussion and analysis

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Govemment-wide financial statements:
Statement of net position
Statement of activities

Fund financial slatements:
Balance sheet govemmental funds
Reconciliation ofthe govemmental funds balance sheet

to statement of net position
Slatement ofrevenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balance - govemmental funds

Reconciliation ofthe statement ofrevenues, expendilures, and changes in
fund balance ofgovemmental funds to the statement ofactivities

Statement of net position - proprietary funds
Statemenl of revenues, expenses and changes in net position -
proprietary funds

Statement ofcash flows - proprietary funds
Statement of fiduciary net position fiduciary funds
Statement ofchanges in fiduciary net position fiduciary funds

Notes 1o financial statements

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Budgetary comparison schedules:
Schedule ofrevenues, expendilures, and changes in fund balance

budget and actual - General fund
Schedule ofrevenues, expendilures. and changes in fund balance

budget and actual - Street LTF
Schedule ofrevenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance -

budget and actual CID Croundwater Surcharge
Schedule of revenues. expenditures, and changes in fund balance -

budget and actual Police station construction
Schedule of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance -

budget and actual - 201 7 Bond PD Station
Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan Last l0 Years

Schedule of Funding Progress PERS lnformation
Schedule ofChanges in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

COMBININC STATEMENTS AS SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Combining balance sheel - nonmajor govemmental funds
Combining statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balance nonmajor govemmental funds

S:+
t-2

3-8

9

t0

ll

t2

l3

t4
l5

t6
17

l8
l9

20-52

5l

55

56

54

57
58

59-60
6t -62

63

64

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 108



"ft*
65-67 

\ 7
Special revenue funds:

Combining balance sheet - nonmajor special revenue funds
Combining slatement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balance - nonmajor special revenue funds

Debt service funds:
Combining balance sheet - nonmajor debt service funds
Combining statement ofrevenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balance nonmajor debt service funds

Capital projects funds:
Combining balance sheet - nonmajor capital projects funds
Combining statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balance nonmajor capital projects funds

Enterprise funds:
Combining statement ofnet position - nonmajor enlerprise funds
Combining statemenl ofrevenues, expenses, and changes in
net position nonmajor enterprise funds

Intemal service funds:
Combining statement of net position
Combining statement of revenues, expenses, and changes
in net position

Fiduciary funds:
Agency funds:
Combining statement offiduciary assets and liabilities

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS:

Independent Auditor's report on inlemal control over financial reporting
and on compliance and other matters based on an audit offinancial

statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
Independent auditor's repon on compliance for each major program and on

intemal control over Compliance required by the Uniform Cuidance
Schedule of expenditures of federal awards
Notes to schedule ofexpenditures of federal awards
Schedule of findings and questioned costs

APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT REPORT:

lndependent auditor's report on applying agreed-upon procedures
Appropriations Iimit schedule
Notes to appropriations limit schedule

68-7 t

72-7 3

71-7 5

76-78

79-8 |

82

83

85

87-88

89-90
9t
92

93-9s

84

86

96-97

98
99

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 109



;,5
(zINDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and Members ofthe City Council
City of Selma
Selma" Califomia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities. the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Selma as ofand for the year
ended June 30,2020. and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic
financial statements as listed in the table ofcontents.

llanagemcnl's Responsibilib' lot rhe Financiol Statemenls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are ftee fiom material misstatement. whether due to fraud or enor.

A udito t's Respons ib il i4'

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing sundards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standa.ds

applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standords, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whelher due to (iaud or enor. ln making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe City's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suflcient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

0pinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects. the

respective financial position of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund. and the

aggregare remaining fund information of the City of Selma as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in

financial posilion, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 110



Citv of Selma

Other Malters

R e q u i r e d Su p p I e m e n I ur r- I nfo r m a t i o n

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the managemenlrs
discussion and analysis, Budgetary Comparison Schedules, and Schedules of Changes in Net Pension and Other
Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability and Related Ratios be presented to supplemenr the basic financial
statements. Such information. although not a pan ofthe basic financial statements, is required by the Govemment
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential pan of the financial reponing for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audft of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other lnformqtion

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Selma's financial statements. The Supplemental lnformation and the combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purpose of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.s. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniforu
Administrative Requiremenrs, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awqrds, and is also nor a
required pan ofthe basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion. the combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic finial statements
as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Govezt menl .Audiling Stonda s

Clovis, California
April 12.2021

rt*
<z

2

In accordance wilh Co"-ernmenl Auditing Standards, we have also issued our repon dated April 12. 2021
on our consideration of the City of Selma's intemal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with cenain provisions of laws, regulations. contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reponing and
compliance and the results ofthat testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe City of Selma's
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part ofan audit performed in
accordance with Governmenl Auditing Standards in considering the City of Selma's intemal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 111



o^.
?- 1U

Managemenfs Discussion and Analysit 'r?-?^
<7

This discussion and analysis of the City of Selma's financial performance provides an overview of the City's financial
aclivities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Please read it in conjunction with the accompanying transmittal letter, the
basic financial statements, and accompanying notes !o thosc financial statements.

Fimncial Highlights

The City's govemmental funds ended the year with a combined fund balance of$23.1 million.

The City's General Fund ended the year with a balance of36,7l7,902, an increase of$2,151,629 ftom the previous year

Overview of the Financial Strtements

This annual repon consists ofa series offinancial statements. These statements include all activities ofthe City ofSelma
and its component unit, the Selma Public Finance Authority, using the integrated approach as pres$ibed by GASB
Stalement -.-o. 34. The Sratement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of
the City asawholeand present a longer-term viewoftheCity's finances. Fund financial statements tell how these services
are finalced in the shon term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City's
operations in more detail than the govemment-wide statements by providing information about the City's most significant
funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which the City acts solely as a trustee or
agent for the benefit ofthose ourside the Govemment.

Reporting the City as a Whole

Govcrnment-wide finsncisl strteme[ts. The govemment-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with
a broad overview of the City's finances. These statements include all assets and liabilities ofthe City using the qccrual
basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting method used by most private sector companies. All ofthe current
year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless ofwhen cash is received.

The Statenent of Nel Poririoz presents information on all the City's assets and liabiliries, with the difference between the
two reported as net position. Over time, increase or decreases in net position may serve as one indicator of whether the
City's financial position is improving or dcteriorating.

fhe Slalement of Aclirilies presents information showing how the City's net position changed in the most recent fiscal
year. All changes of net position are reponed as soon as the underlying event giving raise to the change occurs. Thus,
revenues and expenses arE reported on this statement for some items that will result in cash flow in future fiscal periods
(e.g. earned but unused vacation leave).

The govemment-wide financial statements ofthe City are divided as follows:

Governmenlal Activiriesr Most of the City's basic services are included here such as public safety, transponation (street
and roads), community development, culture and recreation and general govemment. These services are primarily
financed by propeny and sales taxes, federal and state grants and developmenl fees.

Business-q,pe ,lcliviries: The City charges fees to customeB to cover the costs of services provided. These services include
Ambulance, Garbage Disposal, Pioneer Village, and Cultural Arts.

Fund Finsncial Statements. The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's most
significant funds, not the city as a whole. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregaled for specific aclivities or objectives. Some funds are required ro be established by Stare
Law or by bond covenants. Management establishes other funds due to legal requiremens for using certain ta\es, grants,
and other money. All the funds of the City can be classified into three categories: govemmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds.

l
May 3, 2021 Council Packet 112



Management's Discussion ond Analysis

Governmental funds. Govemmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as govemmental
activities in the govemmenl-wide financial statements. However, unlike the govemment-wide financial statements,
govemmental fund financial statements focus on the near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end ofthe fiscal year. These funds are reponed using an accounting
method cafled modifed accrual accounlin4, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash. Such information is useful in evaluating a govemmenl's near term financing requirements.

Since the focus ofthe govemmental funds is narrower than that ofthe govemment-wide financial statements. it is useful to
compare the information presented for the govemmental funds with similar information presented for governmental
acrivil'es in the govemment-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of
the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the govemmental fund balance sheet and the govemmental fund
statement ofrevenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide reconciliation between govemmental funds and
govemmental activities. This reconciliation explains the relationship (or differences) betwe€n the fund statements and the
govemmenl-wide statemenls.

The City ofSelma maintains individual governmental funds. lnformation is presented separately in the govemmental fund
balance sheet and in the govemmental statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General
Fund, Street Local Transprtatios Fund (LTF), CID Croundwater Surcharge, Police Station Construcrion and the 2Ol7
Bond PD Starion fund all of which are considered major funds. Data from the other funds are combined into a single
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each ofthese non-major govemmental funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City prepares an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund, Street Local Transponation Fund (LTF), CID
Groundwater Surcharge, Police Station Construction Fund, and the 2017 Bond PD Station. Budgetary comparison
statements have been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance to their budgets.

Proprietary funds. The City has two different types of proprietary funds, enterprise funds and intemal service funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions represented as business-type activities in the govemment-wide
financial statements. The City utilized enterprise funds !o account for those activities that are supported primarily by user
charges to extemal users. This includes the ambulance service and garbage service, plus several non-major enterprise
activities. Intemal service funds are used to account for activities thal include employee benefits, general services, risk
management and fleet services. Since all ofthese services predominantly benefit govemmental rather than business-type
functions, they have been included within govemmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the govemment-wide financial statements, only in more detail.
The proprierary fund financial statements provide separate information for lhe Ambulance and the Transit, which are major
funds. Other additional enterprise funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each
ofthese non-major enterprise funds are provided in the form ofcombining statements elsewhere in this repon. All ofrhe
intemal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the fund financial statements. lndividual fund
data for the intemal service funds is provided in the form ofcombining statements elsewhere in this report.

Fidrciary lunds: Fiduciary funds are used to accounl for resources held for the benefir of panies outside the city.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the govemment-wide financial statements because the city cannot use these funds to
finance its operations.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes p.ovide addilional information that is essential to a full understanding ofthe
data provided in the govemment-wide and fund statements.

Other information. The combining statements refeEed to earlier in connection with the non-major govemmental,
enterprise and intemal service funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on the
City's retirement plan.

"&,
<z

4

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 113



Management's Discussion and Analysis

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Below is a table sho\ ing the City's net position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, with comparalive data
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

(-ir!.- of S.ld! \.1Posi.ior

lol(l 20r9 l0l0 l0l9 l0l0 2019

Cunmr odorhdas*ts

"t*
<z

Caprlll dd lo.B-rcm ass.c

s 29.928,161

61.775.342

3t.020..187

552t0.0t7

s 5.249.83.{

3)1.279

s 1.005.8t0

t 8l.6t8

s 15.t78,30t

64.t 10.621

35-027.297

55,391.705

s 93 704.E09 s E6230.504 S 5.5t1.1t3 s r IEE.{9E s 99.288.922 S 90.4 t9.002

Detercd outfl@s nlrr.d ro

D.f.ir€d ourllo*s rcld.d io OPEB

3.4r,642

525.9t5

t07.134

3.535,4t3

t23.572

116,450

223-E97

30.768

s 1.t7.7(x

s J_156

{.051.539

556.753

t07.131

l.6E3.l t7

t29.028

I I6.450

5

s

s

s

s

S

S

Dcf€ftd lors a b@d Etund,tE

Lm8ffi lirbilii6 cnsidinS

\.t OPEB lirbility

olhc,ltuliltri6

ToLl lrbilitics

3 E,,113.E22

t5,119,109

6,t42.387

5,023,642

1.775.515

9.010.183

It.339.379

5.lE3,t%

2,5n,E52

tt6.?41

359,301

]{d224

620_E49

2] -015

202_740

4-715,416

E.{13.t22

t5.0aJ.t50

6,50r,690

5.323,t66

1.92t,595

9.040, tt3

t4,qt0,22t

5.616.27t

2,7l1I},592

s .t.460.761 \

sS5\

s 254.665 S t51.060

s 14.758.960 s lr_!10610 s 1.5J6.268 s I 0J6 66.r s 16.305.22E S 12.391.274

D.f.n d mflo*i rclded lo Fnsids
D.fer€d inlloes rclar€d ro OPEB

lil-:126

366.459

174.80t

440.5E4

26_523

21.435

16.228

t9.075 It7.894

19t.029

459.659

5

s

!
S

s

S

s

s

!

lnl6ntrar itr c.piEl rss.&

Tot l !r.i po6iroo

5J_4E9.319

15.354.362

(E,256.976)

46,36 t,089

2t-116.777

(9,957.t22)

5J.E23.6t8

t5_354.361

S s 114.279 S 18 t.6EE

1,9t0.271 1.067.901

I 46,v2.n7

?t.416.777

(6,rt9,919)

s

(t.1.r6.701

s 62.566,725 s ,7.E50.044 S 4.244.552 S 1.249_59t s 66.83t.2' 3 6l_099.535

As of June 30, 2020, the City's govemment-wide total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and
deferred inflows ofresources (net position) by $66.E million. Govemmental acrivities finished the year with a positive net
position balance of$62.6 million. Business type activities finished the year with a pnsitive balance of$4.2 million. The net
position of the City increase by $5.2 million from 2019. Net posirion as noted earlier may serve over time as a useful
indicator ofthe City's financial position.

A portion the City's long-term liabilities relate to the acquisition ofcapital assets. Some ofthose assets include the City's
corporation yard, equipment, and street infiastructure. Thes€ capital assets are utilized to provide services to citizens and
are not available for future spending. The repayment ofthe debt on these assets must be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Restricted net position amounts to 315.4 million of the total. Restricted net position is the resource thar is subjed ro
extemal restrictions on how it may be used. These restrictions are established by bond covenants or restrictions on the use
of funds by state or federal regulations. The unrestricted net position may be used to finance day-to-day operations
without constraints established by debt covenants or other legal requirements. At June 30, 2020, the unrestricted net
position amount was a negative $8.2 million due to the implementation ofCASB Statement No. 6E in 2015 and 75 in 2018.
The GASB Statement No. 68 adjustmenr reflects the cumulative effect ofthe unfunded pension Iiability from prior years.
The CASB Statement No. 75 adjustment reflects the cumulative effect ofthe olher post-employment benefits (OPEB) fiom
prior years.

5

s

S

s

)
May 3, 2021 Council Packet 114



Citv of Selma

Governmental activities.

The following liss key components ofthese activiries:

;,5
<z

( hrng6 itr \d Poiition

t0l0 lot9 1020 l0r9 2019

Ctrs6 fq i.rvic6

Op.re.irg grrrs ntd qtribt iorls

Crpirrl gml3 rtd com.hdon3

l-icmses atd p.rmts

l ..soYtu l,t ct 186

R.!cE fa th. E of pra.try

Loss 6 dipo.irioi! ofcapird &r.:r3

G.n rd Sov.r.ncrt

Colmeity ddcloFrern

Culttrd rtd rc.rljioll

s rJ38.210

tE0.3t5

2.502.490

3 t196,6t0

It9,O{rl

5,79E.32t

sE.59E.E9t

tE0..3 t 5

2,502.490

s t.t43,932

lE9-0r14

t.798.32r

s7.250.66t S6.Er7_292

t{.3ot242

396.37t

2.142.917

40,57t

9t9.lE0

5 t0_J04

9 t4,64 t

B_360.U t

It0.99l

l.Elo.E54

{J.02.t

E9t,725

489. t89

E93.1,t4

1,1.104.242

3!16.371

2.112,9t7

40.57E

9t9. tt0

6l t.t97

1.022.tE4

t3.380.Ell

lEo.99t

t.830.t54

45.024

89t.725

562.Ut

t,043,rt7

l0r.l9l

107.5.13

73.652

tt0_l1l

t.t.l9_%r J.99t,909 ( 1.5.19_%r ) (3.99t.909)

24.199-1?9 29_tA7.A52 5.919.636 1.079,t7t 30.7t9.065 32_267.030

2,1.10_973

I t.569.{77

5.111.6t5

912,3%

752-097

259.313

2..291.749

9_901.256

4_41t.462

r,006.E?7

132,388

3t5_t79

2.140.973

I t-569.171

5.475t5

9r2.3%

752.09'

259.3t1

2,431,304

1..125.{O9

70.0t0

$ r,931

186,0t9

2.293.749

9,90 t.256

1.11t,452

t.006.t77

732.1E8

lE6.E79

2.274.7 t5

1.373.6t6

t6,t8l

623.299

t9E.579

2,431.104

t.425.409

70.0t0

El t.913

2-274.7t5

t.173_586

E6.E83

623,299

19t,579

2l.l r r_E7t -r.92r.675 J_J61.t62

ln.las m mt posinon

Pno p..iod adjun'M6

:".r position - b.$nnins

Etrds of rcountlns cha8c

J.687.558

t.049,121

57.E50_044

6.%6_2t7

.17.{0t_801 l_249.59t r_731 575 52.t11.178

s 62.586_725 S 57.650.0.U 5 r.2.1{.552 s 1.249,J9t S 66,EI,277 S 6t.099.635

The Covemmental revenues for the year were $24.8 million. Taxes, which include property, sales and other taxes account
for S14.3. million or 5E7o ofthe City's govemmental activities revenue. Total govemmental expenses for the year were
$21.1 million. Public Safety, which includes police and fire, accounts for $l1.6 million or 55% ofthe total govemmental
activity expenses.

t0.+rE.2rt 4,6t2.J t9

I,049, t23

6t.099.635

994. t ( t_4Et_9t4 )

6

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 115



Monagemenl's Discussion and Analysis

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund acmunting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Govcrnmental funds. Not all of the City's govemmental funds ended the year with positive fund balances. Any negative
balance funds would be trued up within this curent fiscal year. The ending fund balance for all funds is $23.1 million,
which is a decrease of$3.6 million, when compared to the prior year.

Proprictsry funds. As indicated in the description of proprietary funds, there are two types of funds. enterprise and
intemal service funds. The Ambulance and Garbage funds ended the year with a positive unrestricted balance.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights expropriations

Throughout the fiscal year it was not considered necessary to adjust the original total General Fund budget. The Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual, General Fund. shows the original budget and
final budget.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capitel Assets. The City's lnvestment in Capital Assets for its govemmental and business-type activities are as follows

Citt ofSelma
(- pil.l Assets

Govemmenlal Business-rr"pe

Activlies

**
<'z

Toial

20t9 1020 20t9 :0te
Land

Construction rn progress

Buald,ng and rmprovements

Machhery and equipmenl

Road netwo*

Total

s 7.990.302

I1,406,948

1.494,492

3.434.9E2

! 7.990.102

9.241.4a9

3.477 557

3.044.12t

3 7.990.102

13.406.94t

3.512,681

1.75t.070

35,449,6r8

$ 7.990.302

9,241.489

1.49r,902

3212.464

s s

t8.l9t
116.088

13.94i

167.113

Long-term Debt. The City's long-term debt as ofJune 30,2020 was $8.3 million with govemmental activities accounting
for all ofdebt.

Oulstandins Debl

Covemmenlal Business-t!pe
Acnvhies Tool

tl 2019 :020

ti 1.19.618 lt ,155 5.r8 'il 155 5.18

s63;176,342 t55,2t0,0t7 J 334,279 $ r8t.688 3 64.t t0.62r t 55.391.705

20t9 1020 l0l9

$ 0.000 I 275,000 s S s l 10.000 s 275.000

\r.,tl 9li_71I 876.6:2 915.71I

Specral a5sessmenr debl with
govemmenBl commltment

Ta\allocalion bonds

Caprtal leases

Lease r€venue bonds

Cenifi cares of parti€ipatiofl

Revenue bonds

Ceneral obligatBn bond

Contracts payable

Tolal

3.34E.8s5

3.840.000

100.000

t,576.582

1,925.m0

t 50.000

t.148.855

1.840.000

100,000

1.576.582

1,925.000

150.000

$8.21t.177 $8,842.121 C

7

s s8.275.17t t8,842.323

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 116



"it*
<7Economic Factors

The City of Selma has witnessed some economic impacts fiom the COVID-19 pandemic much like other cities in rhe state
butstill maintained groMh in its tax revenues at a year-over-year compassion of6 percent. The City continues to maintain
its fiscal policies to gmw it reserves to befier position itselfto withstand a downtum in the economy. In addition, the city
created new fiscal prolicies to address it pension obligations and flatten the bell curve for the coming years. While looking
to grow Selma's downtown and commercial and industrial zones to expand its economic divenity, additional development
is anticipated in the upcoming years that will increase revenues.

Requests for lnformation

This financial repon is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investon and creditors with a general
overview ofthe City of Selma finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it receives. Ifyou have
any questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Assistant City Manager, City of Selma
l7l0 Tucker Street. Selma, CA 93662.

8

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 117



CITY OF SELMA
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020 **
<7

Govemmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables:

Accounts. net
Notes
lntergovemmental
Intemal balances

Cash with fiscal agenl - restricled
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Non-depreciable
Depreciable

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred outflows related to pensions

Deferred outflows related to OPEB
Defened loss on bond refunding

Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued wages/benefits
Deposits and other liabilities
Accrued inlerest payable
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Net OPEB liability
Net pension liability

ToIal liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred inflows related lo p€nsions
Defened inflows related to OPEB

Total defened inflows of resources

Net position
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt
Restricted for:

Capital projects
Community development
Debt service
Public safety
Streets and roads

Unrestricted
Total net position

s25.020.690 s3,522,983

| ,733,709220.791
360.524

4,172,940
6,858

t46.664
(6.8s8)

21.397,250
42.379.092 334.279

5.584. t tl91.704.809

3,827,642
525.985
107,134

4,460,761 254.665

2,941,085
490.736
7s0.067
107.340

140,323
157,597

2,304

223.897
30,768

s28.543.673

I,954,500
360,524

4,t72,940

146.664

2t ,397,250
42,713,371
99,288,922

4,051,539
556,753
107.134

1,7 t5.426

3,081,408
648.333
7 s2,37 t

t07,340

479.949
387.894
867 8.13

55.823.6 | 8

4,031,540
867,226
774,615

|,337 ,432
8,343,549

4.346.703\
$6611L2??

453.426
366,459

26.523
ll

8r9 885 958

ss.489.339 334,279

4,031,540
867 ,226
77 4,6t 5

| ,337 ,432
8,341,549

(8.256.976\ 3.9t0.273
s4244-552

359.303
886.741

t.546.268

4

l_62J36J2t

See independent auditor's repon and notes to financial statements
I

734,4t4
8,433,822
6,t42,387

15.159.109
34.758.960

723,895
8,444,341
6,50 r,690

t6.045.850
36.305.228

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 118



-l cl€ltttt

nr-F-o-
6r- d) 5. 6,- -- -- -,
11- -_ o. \o c-

6- s- 3- €- -l 'l.qlr o c Fl..J all

I l;d1

F'3F--l-l
€-65r11 -l

ell

= \o\o 3,.1 €l
F*-F-61€l

-56€FrrOl
a;i;*-Je1

4ll

=)

=i

5 s € 6 3..161
r€ts-6hl-l
-9t5FNl -lt-t
*ll

.$
-:l 5-
$l $

!l
-1

;l

ilJ:

zz

s
l

11

1

r.Lrrrl ol

ll
LI

< <t..i5o ji61 
-1o, <r=---tl rl

II

-*6onorc,
6 * o € -l5161lci -i d -i +'1 -l -dr 6 o Fl.d.dl

^ l'"lll

i

Z

5<
z,z

z

F

o

o
'o
do
oq

o

c
o.
!

d, 6- ]- r, -l 9.ql
N€-h-l-ldl

I lr,il

d.t v_ =_ '. ol q ril
- h 5 - \ol=ld

ttd

al

,-=6
F'=:2.= 

=
ra<-a-d
lL o!/--tr\, trt:,:>:.I-trc

a2
L

Ir

4-

-?'r
. az h E

X .!,E ':ta;? |E EE :.Ei ;h
?, Ii ,EE!EE
=3a34t2.'J2:
c

! .,:

a ., Ir

;= !pi= 3- e
E€i i EE::

2

" az. e tri
E;i 3'=JZ
E ] c al .aE.

r=ltit!;i
Z a &'a | =- = E iita=;t==:4
-Eij.??E;3E
i i i=a a e i:

'ez
::

l"r14 3l

lEi rll"l
,l
E],l

I

-t
EI

?l

'l

I

4'
1; <

I

I

t-t
l" .: El

l'l
I

il. ; zl

1- - .iljl I

I

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 119



C]ITY oF SET,MA
Balancr Shcct

(iovernmcntal Funds
.ru nr J0. 2020

"'ht
<z

(lcncr l

Iund
Slrocl
L j

I'olice
Stulion

( onstruction

Othcr
(iovsnrmcnt l

l;unds

lotal
(iovcrnmcnlul

Iunds
(;r()undwalcr

Surchargc
Assets

('ash and invcstmcnls
Cush with i'jsoal agcnt
Accounts rcccivablc
Intcrlund rcccivablcs
I)uc li(nn olhcr agcncicr

-li)tal 
asscts

l,irbilities
Accounts payablc
nccrucd wir!ics/bcnelits
lnturl'und payablcs
Olhcr liabililics

'linal liabilitics

l.und balance
Nonspcnduhlc

Restrictcd li)r:
Strccts and roads
I'ublic salcly
Community dcvclopmenl
I)cbt scrvicc
Capital projccts

Committcd Ior:
Strccts dnd ()ads

Communily dcvclopmcnt
Rccrcalion
Capital projccts

Assigncd irr:
liquipmcnt rcplaccmcnl

llnassigncd
lotal Iund halancc

$5.700.561

l|4.596
912-521

t.4 lll.601t

$E.l76.?94

$3..112.695

16u.2 | I

ul7a21&

3.572.906

3.572.906

$3172-9!6

$8dr.654

$l'l(,1).o5 I

$406. 135

,106.135

.r54.5 r9

454.5t9

$E60-654

$1. t3 t.6liti

1i.r. t .1 t.6lrlt

$ t.00 t.595

1.001.5e5

2. t30.093

2.t30.093

$t-Br-6EE

$ 9.80t.422
146.664
35,049

3.200
2.318.725

ila105J60

$22.907.022
t 46.664
t49.645
e43,12',1

3.897.544

$28J46-602

$ 2.787.ri r8
48 r,l r3
938.869
750.067

4.957.E67

$ 292.035
12 t .290

$ r.0lili.053
59.{r23

93It.869

,1 qflo

90.725
3.35 |

600,139

1;

745.067
t.J51t.392

6.7 t7.902
6.711.902

{XX)

2.09 t.745

4.6{i9.78 |

t.337,432
t58,045
77 4,615

1.901.447

8.262.687
1,337.432

612,564
174.615

4.03t.540

694.t11
(60.300)

t0.2t3.315

23,909
90,725

3.35 t

600, t39

694.t'l I

6.657.602
23.0I i.735

$l'1,17(,,19 I'li)lrl liabilitics rnd lunr.l balancc

See independent auditor's report and notes to financial stalements.
lt

$ I2,.105.060 ti2lt.016,(n)2

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 120



CITY OF SELMA
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2020

Total fund balance - governmental funds balance sheet

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement
ofner position are different because:

Long-term receivables are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Capital assets used in govemmental activities are
not reponed in the funds.

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, are not report€d in the govemmental funds.
At June 30, these liabilities consisted ofthe following:

Long-term debt
Compensated absences

Net OPEB liabilities
Net pension liability

Interest accrued on long-lerm debt obligations is reponed as a
liability in the statement ofnet position but does nor get
reponed in the flrnd statements.

Intemal service funds are used by management to charge the costs
ofcenain activities, such as self-insurance, to individual funds.

Assessments receivable unavailable to pay for current period
expenditures are defened in the funds.

Deferred outflows ofresources related to pensions.
Deferred inflows ofresources related to pensions.
Deferred loss on refunding

"ft*
<7

s 23.088.7is

275,396

63,776,142

s (8.394. t37)
(774.0991

(6,142,187)
( l5.l 9.109) (30..169.732)

( r07,340)

2.021.921

360.524
4,353,62'1
(E r9,EE5)
t07.134

s 62Jt6-725Net position of govemmental activities Statement of -\'-et Position

See independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements
t2

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 121



.r- -l -! qt
+ o\l 6l qdl

F ol Fl dl
d I Nl ..rtlttrat

\c- cl 3.1

-l

5 cl Fl --ll

5 nl ol --.1

ttd-1 -1

.'r I ^j ql
< I *t 3la I €l ..Jl
1ld-1j\c I \al ..lllldr

NlNlqil
alal+ll
6 I 6l lrll

lldl

tclG
Nl .o- I .ol oll
6l F lFl ..1
€l - I 4l rl

tttdt

:

d -l +l o{l

€ ol Fl --{l

+tq{dlI l.Jl

4

-1

1l

-t

a

q

a
!
t

i E't

z ='

^Z

Eri i E
'6 ro ca.E

;- -:

,:5

ET
EF=.tEt,eE 12 - -in:..l2 ;. !':.i- 

= 
58?l+?=-EEi3;i\a r. ? 7 =-; .r- , i i,E:;; E i=alEi?

Zaaa!rr. 
=Il-

'i 
-'-a 

c0,
'reac-? a ! \ a r

::,- !.t i 9 E i:i a ? .: s E-: E

!iit€!aziiZ
9--:i,,::l-:<2E

=. Nl F.l

l^l

c- c.j sl

t1

l

;l
rl

3

{l
=l

^i

:tJ
'l

1l

1I-l

r,1

I

!r-

1)
^,i
! E?

"$ .:
.::

-_ .._ -l Fl

n

c
E

c
cE
a

a
o-

!

_o

o.

.=

a

FI
cil

I

:
^i

3:

:rn

-i 44
-,; nr:

-= 
=i:,.clr

-.a.?, na

-t-Ltt
< 5=r

ll

F. -]] -l

t-l

"1Fr-€-qa\
l=l
l:l

_t-_
E I o- "? 

rt ^-v)o:--o."rr-l
-o 

6l - €F6o-6\aaNFl

fsEl 3-?: "="1I]

I

I

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 122



CITY OF SELMA
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance ofGovernmental Funds to the Statement ofActivities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

;,r1"
<7

Net change in fund balance - total govemmental funds

Amounts reponed for govemmental activities in the Statement ofActivities
are different because:

Covemmental funds reponed capitaloutlay as expenditures. Howevel in the

Govemment-wide Statement ofActivities and Changes in Net Position, the cost of
those assets was allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expenses. This isthe net amount ofcapital assets recorded in the cunent period.

Depreciation expense on capital assets was reponed in the Govemmenl-Wide
Statement of Activities and changes in \et Position, but lhey did not require the

use of current financial resources.

Payments received on long-term receivables are reported as revenues in the fund
statements but reduced the receivable amount in the statement ofnet position.

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in
the statement of activities. Also, governmental funds repon the effect of issuance

costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is firsl issued, whereas

these amounts are deferred and amonized in the statsment of activities. This
amounl is the net effect of these differences in treatment of long-term debt and

related items.

Revenues in the statement ofactivities that do not provide current financial resources

are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The net reyenue (expense) of intemal service funds is reported with govemmental
activities.

Compensated absences: ln govemmental funds, compensated absences are

measured by the amounts paid during the period. In the statement of activities,

compensated absences are measured by the amounts eamed. The difference
between compensated absences paid and those eamed was:

Accrued interest on long-term debt obligations is reponed in the govemmental

activities but is not reponed in the govemment fund statements.

Unfunded OPEB liabilities in the Stalement of Activities do not requirc the use of
current financial resources and therefore, arc not reponed as expenditures in
govemmental funds.

Pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the govemmental funds, but

contributions are reported as defened outflows in the statement ofn€t position.

Change in net position ofgovemmental activities Statement ofActiviries

s (4.684.627)

10,25r,548

(2.E21,60E)

( r63.269)

742.5 t0

8 t 5,55l

749,057

( 15.9i2 )

I2.89.1

(i77,603)

(840.963)

s i.6E7l5t

See independent auditor's report and notes to financial stalements.
l4

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 123



CITY OF SELMA
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2020 **

\.2

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Ambulance Transit

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

s 178,931
l 53

1E3.281

2E7.697
(269.506\

l8.l9r

6,614
909

7.523

I 19,194
7,091
2,304
6,858

Intemal
Service
FundsTotal

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable, net

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital a:sets:
Machinery and equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred outfl ows of resources:
Defened outflows relaled to pensions
Deferred outflows related to OPEB

Total defened outflow ofresources

Lirbilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued wages/benefits
Deposits payable
Interfund payables

Current portion ofcapital leases
Total current liabiliries

Noncunent liabilities;
Capital leases

Net pension liability
Net other post-employment benefits liability

Total noncunent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred infl ows of resources:
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Deferred inflows related to OPEB

Total Deferred inflow ofresources

Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt
Unrestricted

4.982.028 407.468 201.475 5.590.971 2.404.001

$3, r25,383
1.540.557
4.665.940

361.879
(45.79t1
3l6.0EE

t78.287
24.500

787

16,E35

107,089

s21E.669
I EE.799
107.16E

38,996
5 159

44.355

4,294
43,41'7

$3,522.983
t.733.709
5.256.692

649,576
(315.297).

334.279

223.897
i0 768

25.1.665

t40,323
157 ,597

2.301
6.858

s2,I t3,66E
71.146

2.r 84.E l4

262,814
@3.627',)
219.1E7

70.557
9.69',1

80.25,1

153,267
9,623

916
123.924 47.711 135.4,17 307.082 183.806

706.098
32,302

279,439
286 107

992.205

l.ll6.r29

3 r6.oEE
3.714.409

15,1.,141
6,) S70

217.020

4,620
3.733
8.353

26.202
10.6 | 7

36.Et9

783

633
I.4 t6

tE,l9l
17.125

886_7,1l

159 l 227

264.731 172.266

1.246.044

t.553. t26

334.279
3.910.273

424.96E

608.774

8,358
6.755

l5.l l3

165.969
1.694.399

$1J10-497

t78.739

$12EJ.39 $ j5Jr6 $4244t8 $L860J68Total net position

See independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements
l5

21,\20
17.069
3E.lE9

26.523
21.435
47.958

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 124



CITY OF SELMA
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and

Changes in Net Position
Proprietrry Funds

For the Year fnded June 30,2020

Ambulance Transit

I 702 85 t.1t5.742

Business-T Activities Ente rise Funds

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

s 4.702,2t5 Sl.r 15,742 sl,442,634
45,3EE

107.543
1.595.565

Operating Revenues
Charges for services
Rents
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operrting Expenses
Personnel services
Services and supplies
Other intemal services
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

,\.-onop€rating revenues (exp€nses)
Interest income
Ioterest expens€

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

lncome (loss) before transfeE

;5
{z

Total

Intemal
Service
Funds

20.91 l
.13 | 0.1

2.270.9E1 (t5.t73) 2.4EE.91't 723.037

19.441 6.56.1 56.005 2',7.62E
( 1.60E)

26.020,19 ,l,l I

88 t.769
1.s28.621

s26,996
284,937

45.516
t,600,37 t

34.497
1.054

l.6E 1.43E

s 7,260,661
45,188

t07.543
7.413.s92

t,454,ZEt
3,413,932

34,497
21.965

4.924.675

56.005

2.544922

99,1.961

1.249.591

( J rtJ iir

s2,661,77 5

38;164
2.700.519

( 149,969)
973,515

1 ,129,357
24.599

1.971 .502

? 49.057

7 49.05't

t.l I t.3l I

$r-860.168

Tmnsfers
Transfers in
Transfers out

\et transfers

2.320.12.2

82 96t
0.3E2.96r)

937,461

3.093.036

$ 4-030.497

6.561

3 r0.373

(225.O00)
(22s.000)

85,373

(85.871)

58.000

i8 00

(2't,8731

63.1t9

$ =3lJt6

Change in net position

\et position, beginning ofyear

Net position. end ofyear

93 66

$ 1r8Jl9

See independent auditor's repon and notes to financial statements.

l6

8 t 1.933

303.809

5E,000
( r.607.%l )
( I .549.961 )

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 125



CITY OF SELMA
Statement of Crsh Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

o...,tb
<z

Governmental
ActivitiesBusiness-TypeActivitics EnterpriseFunds

Ambulancc lransit

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Intemal
Ser!ice
IundsI olal

s 7.765.306
{5.188

107.543

\2.160.791)
(2.0'l1.262)

3.J t6.l8t

C&sh Rows from opcrsting rctivities
Cash received for current senices
Cash reccived for rens
Cash received for other operating revenues
Cash paid for services and supplies
Cash paid for salaries ard benefits

Net cash provided (used) by operating activi(ies

Cash flows from noncapitel
filtsncing activities

Transfers (to) lrom other funds
Loans from (to) other lunds

Net cash provided (used) bl
noncapital fi nancing activitics

Cssh llovs from capital .nd
related fi n8ncirg sctivities
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid

Capital cxpenditures
Nct cash used b1' capital

and related financing activities

Cash llows from investing activities
Intcrcsl rcccivcd

)*el cash pro\ ided b) in\csting activities

Net inc.ease (decrease) in cash

and cash equivalems

Cash and cash equivalents. beginning ofyear

Cash ard cash equivalents. end ofycar

Reconcilirtio[ ofoperating ilcomc to net
cash provided by operating rctivities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to rcconcile opcrating income to

net cash provided (uscd) b) op€raling actititics
Depreciation
Accounts rec€ivable
Defened outflor,r of rcsources
Accounts payable
Acc.ued wages/benefits
Net pension related liabilitics
Nct OPFIB
Defcrred inflot of resources

Toral adjustments

\el cash protided (used) by operating activitics

s 5_150.178 $ t. r 7l.0l7

(1.382.96t) (225.000)

t6.77ll
58-000
6.858

( 1.549.961)
87

( 1.382.961) (23t.'1'ltl 64.858 ( 1.549.874)

(530.068)
r l-5j6.{65)
1.06t.615

(169.2561

t169.256'l

.19.4.fl

.19.,1,1I

1.560.869

1.564.514

si,L2IlEl

(288.606)
(438.535)

447.8'76

$ t.444.1 I I
4s.188

t07.543
( 1.642. t20)

t46.262\
r91.340)

s 2.600.578

38.764
(2.010.992)

( t75.851)
152.199

(20.434)
( r.608)

( 124.8.12)r5.300)

(5.300)

l'7 5i6

( 174.556) ( l{6.884)

6 561
6.J61

218.669

56.005
56.00i

t -747.7 56

l.'1'15.227

s_tl2298l

21_628
21 618

333.243

l -780.425

f,Lu3-66E

(31.782)

2 t0.713

s 178 9:l l$ 21E 669

$ 2.270.981 $ 303,809 $ (85.873) $2.488,917 S 123.031

20-91 I
447.893
(83.868)
(27,84t)
96.052

223.735
105.022

10.760
792-664

$i-06Lel5

55.215
(17.786)

(3,669)
1s ??5

46,668
22-t t9

7 )',r<

140.067

$ 44LE76

l.0J,l
t -117

49
(1.251\
4.958

(4.5|l )

(913 )
330

t5.461)

$___19r3r0)

2 t.965
504.645

( 101.605)
(lE.76r )
136,245
265.892
t26,228

927 -261

s-l-4rfllr

24.s99
(61. r97)
56-390
91,880

3.867

1274.823)
(94.850)
( 16.404)

(270.538)

f,_ 452J191

See independent auditor's repon and notes to financial statements.

t7

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 126



CITY OF SELMA
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2020

"ft*
<7

Redevelopment
Successor Agency

Privale-Purpose
Trust Funds

Agency
Funds

Assets
Cash and investmens
Reslricted cash with fiscal agent
Accounts receivable
Noles receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accoun6 payable
Deposits
Other liabilities
Long-term debt

Total Liabilities

Net Position (Deficit)
Held in trust for retirement ofobligations ofthe

former Selma Redevelopment Agency
Total NeI Position (Defici0

s l.l19,574
360,362
21.300
59,336

$ r-566172

slr4,3r2

3,430

st11JA2

s 73,98 r

4,904
38,857

I t't .7 42

S

t27 ,422
4.700,037

827 .459.1.

(3.260,887)

1GJ60.887)

See independent auditor's repon and notes to financial stalements.
l8

S

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 127



CITY OF SELMA
Statement ofChanges in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30,2020

See independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements.
l9

"u
<7

Additions:
Property taxes
lnvestment eamings
Miscellaneous

Toral Additions

Deductions
Community development
lnterest and fiscal charges

Total Deductions

Change in net position

Net position, beginning ofyear

Net position, end ofyear

Redevelopment
Successor Agency
Private-Purpose

Trusl Funds

$ 849,388
3,807

28.500
881.695

74,424
270.227
344.65t

537,044

(3.797.931)

sG260.887)

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 128



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE I _ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFI CANT ACCOUNTINC POLICIES

The combined financial statements of City of Selma (lhe "City") have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles applicable to governmental unils which are generally accepted in the
United States of America. The Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard sening body for establishing govemmental accounling and financial reporting principles.

l. Reoortinp Entity

The City of Selma is a general law city incorporaled on March 15, 1893 and as such draws its
authority from the constitution and laws of lhe State of Califomia. The City has a
council/manager form ofgovemment and is govemed by a five-member elected council. The City
Manager is appointed by the City Council. The City provides the following services: Police and
fire protection, ambulance, transit, street construclion and maintenance. planning and zoning, and
general administrative services.

The City's financial statements include the operations of all organizations for which the City
Council exercises oversight responsibility. Oversight responsibility is demonstrated by financial
interdependency, selection of goveming authority, designation of management, ability to
significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters.

Blended Component Units

Based on the aforementioned oversighr criteri4 the operations of lhe Selma Public Finance
Authority (Authority) have been blended inlo the accompanying financial statements. Members of
the City Council, as well as City administrative personnel make up a significanr ponion of the
goveming bodies.

The Authority's specific and primary purpose is to provide financial assistance to the City of
Selma and other agencies by acquiring qualified obligations which were issued for the acquisition,
construction. and improvemenl ofpublic facilities and property.

Separate financial statements for the Authority can be obtained from lhe Finance Director, City of
Selma, l7l0 Tucker Street. Selma, CA 93662.

Basis of Presentation

Govemment-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities include
the financial activities ofthe overall govemment, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have
been made to minimize the double-counting of intemal activities. These slatements distinguish
between the govemmental and business-type activities of the City. Govemmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovemmental revenues, and olher non-exchange
transactions. Business-type activities afe financed in whole or in part by fees charged to extemal
panies.

*s
<7

20

2. Basis ofPresentation. Basis ofAccountine

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 129



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

The stalement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues

for the different business-type activities of the City and for each funclion of the City's
govemmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program

or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The City does not
allocate indirect expenses in the statemenl of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines.
and charges paid by the recipients ofgoods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and

contributions that are restricted to meeting the operalional or capital requirements of a panicular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues. including all taxes, are presented

as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's
funds. with separale slatements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial
statemen6 is on major govemmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column.
AII remaining govemmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, results from exchange
transactions associaled with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in
which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as

subsidies and investmenl eamings, resuh from nonexchange lransactions or ancillary activilies.

Major Funds:

Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets, and deferred outflows of resources,

Iiabilities and defened inflows of resources, revenues or expenditures/expenses equal to len
percent of their fund-type total and five percent of the grand total. Major goyemmental and
business-type funds are identified and presented separately in the lund financial statements. All
other funds, called non-major funds, are combined and reported in a single column, regardless of
their fund-type. The General Fund is always a major fund. The City may also selecl other funds it
believes should be presented as major funds.

The City reports the following major govemmental funds:

Ceneral Fund: The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for
in another fund.

Streel LTF Fund: This fund accounts for the activities of the City's local transportation
fund allocation for various transit projects.

CID Groundwater Surcharge: This fund accounts for the monthly surcharge paid by
residents to cover the cosE of groundwater recharge projects pursuant to an agreement
with the Consolidated Inigation District.

Police Station Construction: This fund accounts for the construction of a new police
station funded with an appropriation from the State of Califomia.

2017 Bond PD Station: This fund accounls for the proceeds from the Series 2017
General Obligation Bonds, which are to be used to finance the construction of the new
police station.

**
<z

ll
May 3, 2021 Council Packet 130



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

The City repons the following major enterprise funds:

Ambulance Fund: This fund accounts for the operations of lhe ambulance service
provided by the City.

Transit Fund: This fund accounts for the trdnsactions between the City and the Fresno
County Rural Transit Agency (FCRTA). The City performs repairs and maintenance
services necessary to maintain FCRTA's vehicle fleet.

In addition, the City reports the following fund types

lntemal Service Funds: These funds are used to accounl for revenues and expenses
related lo services provided to parties inside the City. These funds facilitate distribution
of support costs to the users of support services on a cost-reimbursement basis. Because
the principal users ofthe inlernal services are the City's govemmental activities, this fund
type is included in the "Govemmental Activities" column of lhe govemment-wide
financial statemenls.

Agency Funds: These funds are used to report resources held in a purely custodial
capacity (assets equal liabilities) Agency funds typically involve only the receipl,
temporary investment, and remittance to fiduciary resources to individuals, privale
organizations, or other govemments.

Private Purpose Trust Fund: This fund is used to accounl for the assets ofthe former City
of Selma Redevelopment Agency during the wind down period.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounling

Govemment-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: These financial
statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The govemmenl-wide
and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded at lhe time liabilities are incuned,
regardless ofwhen the related cash flow takes place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City
gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include
property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donalions. On an accrual basis, revenue from propeny
taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants,

entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements

have been satisfied.

Govemmental Fund Financial Stalemen6: Govemmental funds are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under lhis
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The City considers all revenues
reported in the govemmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days
after year-end. Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property taxes. Property tax
revenues and revenues received from the State are recognized under the susceptible-to-accrual
concept. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are
generally not measurable until actually received. Investmenl eamings are recorded as eamed.

"it*
<7

a',

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 131



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Stetements

June 3O 2020
(Continued)

since they are both measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-lerm debt, claims and
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures lo the extent they
have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in govemmental

funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as

other fi nancing sources.

3. Financial Statement Amounts

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investmen6 are considered to be cash

equivalents ifthey have a maturity oflhree months or less when purchased.

Properl\ Taxes

Taxes are payable in two installments on November I and March l. They become delinquent on
December l0 and April l0 respectively. The lien date is January I of each year. Unsecured
property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 3 l. The County of Fresno bills
and collects the taxes for the City.

On October 12, 1993, the Fresno County Board ofSupervisors voted to adopt an altemale method

of property tax apportionment known as the Teeter Plan. The method applies to cunent secured

and supplemental, but not to unsecured. The basic concept of the Teeter Plan is thal the County
will apportion taxing agencies 100% of their levy (adjusted for roll changes) with the County
owning the delinquent receivables. The County will apportion lhe current secured and unitary into
a revenue accounl in three installments. The first 50% was apportioned December 15, the balance
will be apportioned by April 15, and June l5 at 45% and 5% respectively.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories on the balance sheet are stated at weighted average cost. Inventory items are recorded

as expenditures when they are consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded

as prepaid items.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources

related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of Local
Govemment of Example's Califomia Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS) plans
(Plans) and addirions to/deductions from the Plans' fiduciary net position have been determined on

the same basis as they are reported by CaIPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the

benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

"-?:,
<,7

.,
May 3, 2021 Council Packet 132



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Fin.ncial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or eslimated historical cost. Donated
fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the end of the donation. The cost of
normal maintenance and repairs that do nol add to the value of the asset or materially exlend
assets' lives are not capitalized. A capitalization threshold of $5,000 is used for machine and

equipment, and $10,000 is used for buildings and building improvement.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Estimated
Useful Lives

;,9"
<z

Roads and lnfiastructure
Buildings
Building Improvement
Vehicles
Oflice Equipment
Computer Equipment

30-50
50
20

2- 15

3-15
3-15

The City believes that sufficient detail of payable balances is provided in the financial statements

to avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore, no disclosure is

provided which disaggregales those balances.

Interfund Activitv

Interfund activity resuhs from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between

funds. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to
elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be aI markel or near market rates,

are treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund
incurs a cosl, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a
reimbursement. AII other interfund transactions are treated as transfeB. Transfers In and

Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single "Transfen" line on the govemment-wide

statement ofactivities. Similarly, inlerfund receivables and payables are nefted and presented as a

single "lntemal Balances" line ofthe govemment-wide statement of nel assets.

Fund Balances - Covemmental Funds

Fund balances ofthe govemmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balqrrce represents amouns that cannot be spent because they
are either nol in spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally
required to remain intact (such as noles receivable or principal ofa permanent fund).

Restricted Fund Balance represents amounts that are constrained by extemal parlies,

constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

24

Asset Class

Pavable Balances

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 133



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2020
(Continued)

Commi,led Fund Balance represents amounts that can only be used for specific
purposes because ofa formal action by the City Council. Commilted amounts cannol
be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes lhose constraints by
taking the same type of formal action. Committed fund balance amounts may be used

for other purposes with appropriate due process by the City Council. Commitments
are typically done through adoption and amendment of the budger. Commined fund
balance amounts differ from restricted balances in that the conslraints on their use do
not come from outside parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation.

Assigned Fund Balance represents amounts which the City intends to use for a

specific purpose, but that do not meel the criteria to be classified as reslricted or
committed. Intent may be stipulated by the City Council or by an oflicial or body to
which the City Council delegates the authority. Specific amounts thal are not
restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital projects, debt service or
permanent fund are assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund
type or the fund's primary purpose. Assignments within the general fund conveys that

the intended use of those amounts is for a specific purpose that is narrower than the
general purposes ofthe City itself.

Unassigned Fund Balarce reptesents amounts which are unconstrained in that they
may be spent for any purpose. Only the general fund repons a positive unassigned

fund balance. Other govemmental funds might report a negalive balance in this
classification because of overspending for specific purposes for which amounls had

been restricted, committed or assigned.

When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are

available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then

assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds.

ln the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements. nel

position is classified as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of capital

assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of debt

that are attributable to the acquisilion, construction, or improvement ofthose assets.

Reslricted This component of net position is the amount of the assets. deferred

outflows of resources. liabilities. and deferred inflows of resources lhat are not
included in the determination of nel investmenl in capital assets reduced by liabilities
and defened inflows ofresources related lo those assets.

Unrestricted This component of net position is the amount of the assets. deferred

outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are nol
included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted

component of net position.

;,5
<7

t5

Net Position

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 134



CITY OF Sf,LMA
Notes to Financial Statemetrts

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

When expenses are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted components of
net position are available, the City's policy is to apply the restricted component of net position
first. then the unrestricled component ofnet position as needed.

Deferred Outfl orvs/lnfl ows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for defened
outflows of resources. This separate financial statemenl element. deferred outllows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will nor be
recognized as an outflow resource (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has three items IhaI
quali! for reporting in this category, deferred outflows related to pensions, delerred outflows
related to OPEB. and deferred loss on bond refunding.

In addition to liabilities, Ihe statement of financial position reports a separale seclion for deferred
inflows of resources. The separate financial element, deferred inJlows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to future period(s) and so will no, be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an
inflow of resources in the period lhat the amounts become available. The City has two types of
deferred inflows which arises only under a full accrual basis of accounting, defened inflows
related to pensions and defened inflows related to OPEB.

Olher Postemploymenl Benefi ts (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, defened outflows of resources and defened
inflows of resources related Io OPEB, and OPEB expense have been determined on the same
basis. For this purpose, benefit paymens are recognized when currently due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to liability
and asset information within certain defined limeframes. For lhis report, the following
timeframes are used.

"-r?,
<,2

Valuation Date

Measurement Date

Measurement Period

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2019

June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019

Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity wilh accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assels and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses/expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

26

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 135



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

Finance-Related Leeal and Contraclual Provisions

ln accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Cenain Financial Statemenl Note Disclosures,"
violations of finance-related legal and contraclual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with
actions taken to address such violations:

Violation Action Taken

None Reported Not Applicable

Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Assets of Individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net assels at year end, if any, along with
remarks which address such deficits:

Fund Name
Deficit

Amount Remarks

;,5
<7

Cultural Ans Enterprise Fund

Capital Project Funds:

Development Impact Police Facility
Tutelian Project
Selma Crossing Project

Total Capital Project Funds

Special Revenue Funds:

CDBG Grant
Total Special Revenue Funds

$46^406) Retain fulure excess revenues

Statement of net position:
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agent

Fiduciary funds:
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agent

Retain future excess revenues
Retain future excess revenues

Retain future excess revenues

Retain future excess revenues

$28,543,673
| 46,664

s (4,s03)
( r r.2 r3)

(3.704)

$0-91120)

s (280)

$,_12E0)

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2020 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as

follows:

Total cash and investments

21

s30.28.1.58s

NOTE 2 - COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

1.233,886
360.362

NOTE 3 _ CASH AND INVESTMENTS

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 136



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

Cash and investments as ofJune 30, 2020 consists ofthe following

Cash on hand
Deposits with financial institutions
Inveslments

":9,
<7

Total cash and inveslmenls Sl0l8S8)

lnvestment Authorized by the Califomia Govemment Code and the Citv's Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City of Selma (City) by the

Califomia Govemment Code (or the Cily's investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also

identified certain provisions of the Califomia Govemment Code (or the City's lnvestment Policy,
where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk. credit risk, and the concentration of credit risk.
This table does not address investment of debl proceeds held by bond trustee that are govemed by the
provisions of debt agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of the Califomia
Govemment Code or the City's investment policy.

Authorized Investment TyDe
Marimum
Malurity

Maximum
Percentage
of Portfolio

Maximum
Investment

in One Issuer

Local Agency Investment Fund (State Pool)
US Treasury Obligations
US Govemment Agency Issues

Insured Passbook on Demand Deposits with
Banks and Savings and Loans

Certificate of Deposits
Bankers Acceptances
Commercial Paper

Mutual Funds (must be comprised of eligible
securities permined under this policy)

Money Markel Funds (must be comprised of
eligible securities permitted under this policy)

N/A
N/A
N/A

None
None
None

None
None
None

None
None
40o/o

25o/o

N/A
5 years

180 days
270 days

N/A

N/A

20lo

20o/o

None
None
30Yo

l00h

10o/o

r0%

The inveslment policy allows for the above investments which have equal safety and liquidity as all
other allowed investments. Marurity depends on the cash needs ofthe City.

Investment Authorized by Debt Asreement

Investment ofdebl proceeds held by bond trustees are govemed by provisions ofthe debt agreements,

rather than the general provisions ofthe Califomia Govemment Code or the City's investment policy.

The table below identifies the investment types that are aulhorized for investments held by bond

Irustee. The table also identifies certain provisions ofthese debt agreements thal address interest-rate

risk, credit risk, and concentration ofcredit risk.

28

s t.475
3.869.075

26.414.035

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 137



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

:,r9"
<7

Maximum
Maturity

Maximum
Percentage
of Ponfolio

Maximum
Investment

in One lssuerAuthorized lnvestment

Local Agency lnvestment Fund (State Pool)
US Treasury Obligations
US Govemment Agency Issues
Insured Passbook on Demand Deposits with

Banks and Savings and Loans
Certificate of Deposits
BankerS Acceptances
Commercial Paper

Mutual Funds (must be comprised ofeligible
securities permitted under this policy)

Money Market Funds (must be comprised of
eligible securities permitted under this policy)

lnvestment Agreements

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
I year
I year
N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A

550 million
None
None

None
None
None

None
None
None
None

None

None
None

None

None
None

The investment policy allows for the above investments which have equal safety and liquidity as all
other allowed inveslments. Maturity depends on the cash needs ofthe City.

Disclosures Relatine to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk the changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its
fair value to changes in market interest rates. One ofthe ways that the City manages its exposure to
interesl rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shon-term and longer-lerm inveslments and by

timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to
maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair value of the City's investments (including investments

held by bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows

the distribution ofthe City's investments by maturity:

lnvestment TyDe Fair Value
l2 Months

or Less

State lnvestment Pool
Held by Bond Trustee:

Money Market Funds

$25,907,009

507 .026

$2tu114^035

s25,907,009

507.026

$2tu1l4-05

l9

None
None
None
None

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 138



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Finrncial Stat€ments

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

Investments with Fair Values Highly Sensitive to Interest Rate Fluctuations

The City has no investments (including investments held by bond trustees) that are highly sensitive to
interest-rate fluctualions (to a greater de$ee than already indicated in the information provided
above).

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder ofthe investment. This is measured by the assignment ofa rating by a nationally recognized

slatistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable)
the Califomia Govemment Code, the City's investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual

Standard and Poor's rating as of fiscal year end for each investment type.

Ratings as of Fiscal Year End

Investment Type

Minimum
Legal
Rating

"ft*
<z

Amount
Not

Raled AAAm

State Investment Pool

Held by Bond Trustee:
Money Market Funds

s25.907.009

507,026

N/A 525,907,009

N/A

S

507.026

$50L026s2ftr4lx 12590L009

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy ofthe City of Selma contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested

with any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the Califomia Govemment Code. There were no

investments in any one issuer that represented 5yo or more ofthe total inveslments.

Cusrodial Credit Risk

Custodial credil risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial

institution, a govemment will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover

collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credil risk for
investments is the risk that, in the event ofthe failure olthe counterpany (example broker-dealer) to a

transaction, a govemment will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession ofanolher party. The Califomia Covemmenl Code and the City's
investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to

custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The

Califomia Govemment Code requires that a financial instilution secure deposits made by state or
Iocal govemmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository

regulated under state laws (unless so waived by the goYemmental unit). The fair value ofthe pledged

securities and the collateral pool musl equal aI least I l07o ofthe total amounl deposited by the public

agencies. Califomia law also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first
trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% ofthe secured public deposits.

l0

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 139



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2020
(Continued)

As of June 30, 2020, none of the City's deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal

depository insurance limits were held in uncollateralized accounts. ln addition, as of June 30,2020.
no investments were held by the same broker-dealer (counterparty) that was used by the City of
Selma to purchase the securities.

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by

the Califomia Govemment Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of Califomia. The

fair value ofthe City's investmenl in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at

amounts based upon lhe City's pro rata share of the value provided by (LAIF) for the entire (LAIF)
portfolio (in relalion to the amortized cost ofthat portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is
based on the accounting records maintained by (LAIF), which are recorded on an amortized cost

basis.

Fair Value Measuremenls

The City calegorizes its fair value mqsuremeni within the fair value hierarchy established by

generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the relative inputs used to

measure the fair value of the inveslments. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets (Level I measurements) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The thrce levels ofthe fair value hierarchy are described as follows:

Level l: lnputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets in

active markets that the City has the ability to access.

Level 2: Inputs to the valuation methodolog;i include:

o Quoted prices for similar assets in active markets;

. Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in inactive markels:

. Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset;

. lnputs that are derived principally from or conoborated by observable market

data by correlation or other means.

Level 3: lnputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value

measurement. Unobservable inputs reflect the City's own assumptions about the inputs

market panicipants would use in pricing the asset (including assumptions about risk)'

Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available in the

circumstances and may include the City's own data.

":9,
<7

3l

lnvestment in Slate lnvestment Pool

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 140



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2020
(Continued)

The assel's level within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The determination of what constitutes observable requires
judgment by the City's management. City management considers observable data 1o be the market

data which is readily available, regularly distibuted or updated. reliable, and verifiable, not
proprietary, and provided by multiple independent souces thal are actively involved in the relevant

markets.

The categorization of an investment within the hierarchy is based upon the relative observability of
the inpuls to ils fair value measurement and does nol necessarily correspond to City Management's
perceived risk of that investment. The methods described may produce a fair value calculalion thal
may not be indicative ofnet realizable value or reflective of future fair values. The use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial inslrumenls could result

in a different fair value measuremenl al the reporting date.

When available, quoted prices are used to determine fair value. When quoted prices in active markets

are available, investments are classified within Level I of the fair value hierarchy. When quoted

prices in active markets are not available. fair values are based on evaluated prices received by City's
asset manager from a lhird-party service provider.

The City has no inveslments subject to categorization.

";9,
<7

lnvestments Not Subject to Fair Value Hierarchy:
Califomia Local Agency lnvestment Fund

Held with Fiscal Agent:
Money Market Mutual Funds

Total Investment Portfolio

NOTE .I - CEIVABLES

The following is a list ofreceivables at June 30, 2020

Receivable

Govemmental Funds -
Accounts
Due from other agencies

$25,m7,009

507.026

$2tur14-05

Allowance \et

Fiduciary Funds -
Accounts
Notes receivable

$ 149.645
3.897.544

$4,Qd!ry

$ 30,730
59.336

L 90*06i

s s 1.19.615

3.897.511

918:17'l8e

$ 30.730
59.336

$ 90-066

Intemal Service Funds -
Accounts L TI.fr!6 $ L Lr46

Enterprise Funds -
Accounts $2.836-921 $Ll-012r4 $lJ3lli9

S

S

s

32

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 141



CITY OP SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

The City established the following assessment districts in order to fund improvements within the City
ofSelma. The properfy owners within the districs are responsible for the following aI June 30, 2020.

;,r9"
<z

Assessment District No.
Assessmelt Dislrict No.
Assessment District -'o.
Assessment District r"o.
Assessment Disfiict No.

l99l-2 Improvement Bonds - Highland
1992-l lmprovement Bonds - Dancer ll
1992-l Supplemental lmprovement Bonds Dancer Ill
1993-l Impmvement Bonds - Vineyard
l99l-2 Supplemental lmprovement Bonds - Watermain

$147,104
48,438
42.05E

r00.086
22.837

$16012l

NOTES_CAPITALASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Beginning
Balances Additions

Retirements/
Adjustments

Ending
Balances

Governmentrl rciiYities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being deprecialed

Capital assets being depreciated:
Roads and other infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Roads and other in frastructure
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Equipmenr

Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital asse$ being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

5r3 106
( 7s.959.90,1 ) (2.918.049) (78.806. r l0

Total capital assets being depreciated. net 3?.97E.226 .r.405.740 t4.E74l 42.379.092

Govemmental activities capital assets, net $ 15210.0U SI4986J4E $(6J120.421) $-13il53j2

Business-typc rctivities:

s 7,990,302
9.241.489

t7 2il 791

99,868,212
7.120.88t
6. .031

(68,4r 2,664)
(3,642.924\
(3.904.316)

$ 278.EE2
96.138

.175.020

(264.937\
(28.395)

(293.33r)
I 8 t.688

$ r8L688

s

10.581.008
t0.581.008

6,250,880
164,668
90E.241

7.323.',t89

(2.256,8 t0)
( l4t,l33)

s
169.256
169.256

(1,0s4)
(20.91 I )
(21-965)
147.291

$ 147,?21

$
(6.415.549)
(6.415.549)

(35,640)
(41.077\
(76.717)

35,640
36.203
71.843

$ 5.300 s

s 7,990,302
13.406.948
21,397.250

r06,119,092
7,249,fi9
7.Er6.201

E l .l 85.l0l

170,669.47 4)
(1,755,417)
(4.381.219)

284,1E2
365194
619.576

(265,991 )
(19.106

5.300
$ _l,ltD

G15.297\
33449

s 334.22)

l r3.938.t30

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 142



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

"-u
<z

Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:

Govemmcntal activities depreciation:
General govemment
Public protection:

Fire
Police
Public ways and facilities. including depreciation
to geneml infrasfucture assets

Total govemmental activities deprecialion expense

Business-type activities depreciation:
Pioneer Village
Amhulance

Total busin€ss-type activities depreciation

s 2ll.t5t

l]9.09r
228.93't

2.338.870
$2,91E,0.19

s 1.054
20.91 I

$,__2L965

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY

lnterfund Payables and Interfund Receivables

Balances due to and due from other funds at June 30,2020, consisted ofthe following:

Interfund Payables Interfund Receivables Amount Purposc

Nonmajor Enterprisc Funds

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Nonmajor Capital ftojects l'unds
Nonmajor Capital Projccts Funds

Ceneral
General
Ceneral
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

$ 6.858
9?4.157

l r.512
3.200

$945J21

Shon-tcrm loans
Short-term loans
Shon-te.m loans
Short-term loans

All amounts due are scheduled to be repaid within one year

Transfers To and rom Other Funds

The purpose ofthe majority of transfers is to reimbuse a fund that has made an expenditure on behalf

ofanother fund. Transfers totaled S4,287,659 in the fund financial statements as follows:

Transftrs ln

fransfers Out

Nonmajor
Sp€cral
Revenue
Funds

Nonmajor
Debt

Sertrce
Funds

Nonma.pr
Capilal
Prqects
Funds

Propnelar..-
lotals

Cenerdl
Street [-TF
Nonma]or Special

Revcnu€ Funds
Nonmajor Debt
Servace Funds

Proprietar-.v

$
142,5t2

1.288.291

5 \

17t.806

st07.500 t r65.500
t42.sl2

2.t99.8E0

t7t.rm
t.607.961

q387 64
1.i82.961

$l-0lll{4 $2!6189

l4

91t.589

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 143



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

lntemal Balances

Intemal balances are presented in the Entity-wide financial statements only. They represent the net

interfund receivables and payables remaining after the elimination of all such balances within
govemmental and businesstype activities.

NOTE 7_ LONC-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of changes in the City's long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended

June 30. 2020:

:'.1"
<7

Balancc at
Jull 1.2019 lncreascs Decreases

Ilalance at
Junc 30. 2020

Due Within
Onc Year

Governmcnt.l activities:
Revenuebonds Authori$'
Rcvenue bonds - Ciry.

Ceneral obligation bonds - City
Bond premium
Capital leases

Cont.act payable
Comp€nsated abscnces

'fotal govemmental activities

$ 550.000
3.576.582
3.925.000

123.055
915.74t
150.000
758.167

s9.99&!$

Amount
Original

lssue

$210.000
22't.',t2'7

85.000
4,395

240.138
50.000

s 340.000
3.3,18.855

3.840.000
I 18.660
876-622
t00.000
1',|4.099

$9J98216

s 45_000

t65.000
s2l!.000

Retir!-d

s221-127
\22',t.127

st50.000
234.163

85.000

t94-132
50.000

20 r.0t9

r5.932
$2!_69!1

Outstanding
June 30

20t9

s

Busin.ss-type rctivities:
Compensated absences 2.135 103-748

lotal business-type activities L-2JD t!!lJ4E

s8r7.260 \-t.r ll!l

t06.J83
s 106.18.1 s

Outstanding
June 30

2020

A summary of changes in bonds payable of the Authority for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as

follows:

t994
201.1

A summary ofchanges in Revenue Bonds ofthe City for the year ended June 30. 2020 is as lollows:

I)cscription

I)r.,scription

Intercst
Rate

Pavable

40/o - 7 .250/0

3.250/.

s l r.570.000

$r2l2lJp0

Amount
Original

Issuc

$275.000
275.000

$5.50000

Outstanding
June 30.

2019

Interest
Rate

Pavable

$.1.34,1.619

$4314,619
$3.576.582

Ltz6.t82
s
$

$230.000
I 10.000

sl40^m0

Outstanding
June 30.

2020

$3.3.16.E55

EJ4&$l

s

s

Issued

20r 5 3.Oqh

l5

$

Issucd Retired

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 144



CITY OF SELMA
Notcs to Financial Statements

June 30,2020
(Continued)

On December 23. 2015, the City of Selma issued $4,344,619 Lease Obligation Refunding Bonds with
an average interest rate of 3-09o/o to advance refund 53,940.000 of oulstanding 2010 Lease Revenue

Refunding Bonds with an average inlerest rate ol 7.00o/o and partial refunding of 1994 Revenue
Bonds of 5450,000 with an average interest rate of 6.0%. The interest is payable semi-annually on

February l'' and August 1", commending February l, 2016. The bonds mature annually at various

amounts lhrough February l, 2030. The bond program continues to be in defauh ol its debt service
reserve requirement, but the trustee believes there are sufficient assets remaining in Trust to sewice
the remaining Bonds Ou6tanding. The bonds are payable from revenues and all other moneys on
deposit in any fund or account pursuant to this indenture. The principal balance on the 1994 revenue

bonds at June 30, 2020 was $230,000.

The Bonds were issued to panially refinance the Authority's previously issued 1994 Revenue Bonds

in the principal amount of$450,000, of which $380,000 remained outstanding at June 30,2016. As a
result, the 5450,000 is considered defeased and the liability for this issue has been removed from the

Long-Term Liabilities of the Govemmental Activities Debt.

On June l, 2014, the Selma Public Financing Authority issued 5955,000 Series 2014 Assessment

Revenue Refunding Bonds bearing interest of 3.250% payable semi-annually on September 2"d and

March 2"d. commencing September Z,2Ol4. The bonds mature annually at various amounts through
September 2, 2022. The bonds are payable from revenues and all other moneys on deposit in any

fund or account pursuant to ftis indenture. The principal balance outstanding at June 30, 2020 was

sl t 0.000.

The Bonds were issued to refinance the Authority's previously issued Series 19994. Assessmenl

Revenue Bonds in the principal amount of $8,165,000. As a result, the Series 19994 Assessment

Revenue Bonds are considered defeased and the liability for this issue has been removed from the

Long-Term Liabilities of the Govemmental Activities Debt.

Series 2015 Refundi Lease Oblisations

On December 23, 2015. the City of Selma issued 54,344,619 Series 2015 Refunding Lease

Obligations Bonds, bearing interest of 3.090olo payable semi-annually on February l" and August 1",

commencing February 1,2016. The bonds mature annually at various amounts through February l,
2032. The bonds are payable from revenues and all other moneys on deposit in any fund or account

pursuanl to this indenture. The principal balance on the Series l5 Refunding Lease Obligation Bond

at June 30, 2020 was 53,348,855.

The Bonds were issued to refinance the City of Selma Financing Authority's previously issued 2010

Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds outstanding of 53,900,000 and partial refinance of their 1994

Revenue Bonds of $450,000. As a result, the 2010 Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds and the

5450.000 1994 Revenue Bonds are considered defeased and the liabiliry for these issues have been

removed from the Long-Term Liabilities ofrhe Govemmental Activities.

;,5
<7

l6

1994 Revenue Bonds

2014 Assessment Revenue Refundine Bonds

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 145



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2020
(Continued)

Series 2017 Ceneral Obl isation Bonds

On July 6,2017, the City of Selma issued $4.000,000 Series 2017 General Obligation Bonds, bearing
interest rates varying from 2.0o/o lo 4.0o/o payable semi-annually on February l, and August l,
commencing February l, 2018. The bonds mature annually at various amounts through August l,
2047. The bonds are general obligations of the City. Payable solely from property taxes levied by

the City and collected by the County of Fresno. The principal balance on Series 2017 General

Obligation Bonds at June J0, 2020 was 53,840,000.

The Bonds are being issued to finance the costs ofacquiring and constructing a new police station and

associated improvements, and to pay the cosls ofissuing the Bonds. The bonds were authorized aI an

election of the registered volers of the City held on November 6, 2016 at which more than two-thirds
ofthe persons voting on the proposition voted to authorize the issuance and sale ofthe Bonds.

l. Debt Sen,ice Requirements

Debt service requirements on long-term debt at June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Principal

Authority
Govemmental

Activities Interesl Total

"ft*
<7

202t
2022
2023
2024

Totals

s160,000
ss.000
60.000
65.000

$340-000

s22.550
t6,775
10.450
3.575

$5t150

City
Govemmental

Activities lnlerest

s 182.550
71.775
70.450
68.57s

$.q150

TotalYear Ending June 30. Principal

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

2026-2030
2031-2032

Totals

s 234,763
242,018
249.496
257.205
265.t53

t,453,845
646.37 5

$3148-855

s103,480
96,225
88,747
81,038
71.090

237 ,370
30.1 I I

szr0.06t

$ 338,243
338,243
338,243
338,243
338,243

I,691,2t5
676.486

$4-05t9r6

37

Year Ending June 30,

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 146



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

The annual debl service requirements for the General Obligation Bonds are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Principal

City
Govemmental

Activities Interesl

;,5
<7

Total

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2040
204t -2045
2046-2048

Totals

s 85,000
90,000
90,000
90.000
95.000

5 r 0,000
625,000
750.000
885,000
620.000

$3-840-000

s 137,313
135,562
t33,763
l3l,963
t29,638
595,737
488,487
163,531
214,688

37.800

$L'68-482

s 222.313
22s,s62
223.763
221.963
224,638

1,t05,737
I,I 13.487
l.l I l.5l I

I,099,688
657.800

s620E382

Balance at

July 1,2019 Increases Decreases

Balance at
June 30,2020

Due Within
One Year

Tymco lnc.-slreet sweeper
Santander Leasing-Fire Truck
Umpqua Bank-computer equipment
Umpqua Bank- 10 Ford Explorers,

I Fl50 pick-up
Umpqua Bank-emergency vehicle

s 77,6
3?2,45 t

73,652

391,957

$915J4r

$

20t.019

$20ulu

$ 77,681
4E,769
20,434

93,254

$210^DE

$
323,6E2
53,21E

29E.703
201.019

$lSnn

$
50,179
1o,397

96,342
37.214

$l9Lr}2

The City has entered into multiple lease agreemenls for financing the acquisition of police

vehicles, fire truck, police and fire equipment, computer equipment, and a street sweeper. These

lease agreements qualift as capital leases for accounting purposes. These leases have interest rates

varying from 2.33Vo lo 3.680/o with the final payment on these leases in 2032.

20l6 CaDital Lease for Street SweeDer

In February, 2016 the City entered into a capital lease agreement with Tymco Inc. The purchase

price of the equipment was $250.502 and is payable over a period of five years. Semi-annual

payments on the contract are $13,249. The effective interest rate on the contract is 2.650/o per

annum. The balance outstanding at June 30,2020, was $-0-.

l8

l. Capital Leases

Capital leases at June 30, 2020, consisted ofthe following:

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 147



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

2016 Capital Lease for Fjre Truck

In March. 2016 the City entered into a capital lease agreement with Santander Leasing for a fire
truck with a purchase price of 5510.694. Monthly payments of 559,533 for l0 years. The
effective inlerest rate 3.427o per annum. The balance outstanding aI June 30.2020. was $323,682.

The annual debt service requirements for the 2016 Capital Lease for the fire truck al June 10, 2020
are as follows:

Year ending june 30, Principal Interest Total

"4,
<7

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

s 50,179
5t,629
53,t21
54,656
56,236
57.86r

srtuE2

2021
2022
2023

!L8E7

2018 CaDital Lease for Police Vehicles

In April, 2018 the Cily entered into a capital lease agreement with Umpqua for police vehicles

with a purchase price of $482,220. Semi-annual payments of 553.685 for five years. The

effective interest .";te of 3.260/0 per annum. The balance outstanding at June 30, 2020, was

s298,703.

s 9,354
7.904
6,412
4.877
3,297
1.672

$33516

s 59.533
59,533
s9,533
59,533
s9,s33
59.533

$5?-198

2017 Capital Lease for Comouler Eouioment

ln December, 2017 the City entered into a capital lease agreement wirh Umpqua Bank for
computer equipment with a purchase price of $103,223. Semi-annual paymenls of $l1,021 for
five years. The effective interest rate of 2.330/" per annum. The balance outstanding at June 30,

2020, was $53,218.

The annual debt service requirements for the 2017 Capital Lease for the computer equipment at

June 30.2020 are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

s 10.397
2t,t61
21.660

s53.2ut

s 624
88r
382

sI1.02t
22.042
)) nL)

s55-105

l9
May 3, 2021 Council Packet 148



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statem€nts

June f,O,2020
(Continued)

The annual debt service requiremenls for the 20 [8 Capital Lease for the police vehicles at June 30,
2020 are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Principal lnterest Total

"ft*
<z

s105,369
105.369
105 69

ilJ6J_!7

2020 CaDital Lease for Emersency Vehicle

In March, 2020, the City entered into a capital lease agreement with Umpqua Bank for the
acquisition ofa Danko emergency vehicle with a purchase price of$201,019. The agreement
calls for semi-annual payments of 521,922 for five years. The effective interest rate is 3.16%.
The balance oulslanding at June 30. 2020 is $201,019.

The annual debt service requirements for the emergency vehicle al June 30, 2020 are as follows

Year ending June 30. Principal lnterest Total

2021
2022
2023

$ 96,342
99,532

r02.830
s298J!4

$ 9,027
5.837
2.539

$_1'71101

2021
2022
2023
2024
?025

s 17,214
38,953
40,201
41.490
43.161

$20LOr9

$ 6,631
4,892
3.644
2,35s

684
$rE206

s 43,845
43,845
43.845
43.845
43.845

vt9.25

tn July of 2015 the City enlered into an agreement with the Consolidated Irrigation Districl (CID)
to obtain from the District certain real property known as "Rockwell Pond." The agreement calls
for the exchange of City owned property of a 38.73 acre parcel with a fair market value of
5534,000 and a payment of a non interest bearing note of5200,000, payable in annual installments
of550,000 for the years 2016 through 2019. The purpose ofthe exchange was for development of
water relention and sewer drains. As ol June 30. 2020. lhe City has made two payments on the
nole. Balance owing on the note al June 30,2020 was $100,000.

3. Compensated Absences:

The liability for vesled leave (vacalion, compensated time off, holiday) eamed but not used in
govemmental funds is expensed and established as a liability and is reported in the govemment-
wide statement of net assets in the govemmental activities column. Vested leave of proprietary
funds (ambulance fund) is recorded as an expense and liability of that fund as the benefits accrue.

No liability is recorded for non-vesting leave such as sick leave.

40

l. Contract Par able:

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 149



CITY OF SELMA
Not€s to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

4. Fiduciary Lons-Term Debl

2001 Industrial Park Limited Oblisation Imorovement Bonds

The former Selma Redevelopment Agency issued limited obligation bonds in the amount of
$3,561,890. The interest rate was 57o and the final payment is scheduled for September 2040.
Bonds oustanding at January, 2012 were transferred to the Successor Agency on February l, 2012
due to lhe dissolution of the Redevelopmenl Agency. The balance outstanding at June 10, 2020
was S2,715,000 and is held in the City's Redevelopment Successor Agency Private-Purpose Trust
Funds.

Industrial Park Limited Obligation lmprovement Bonds at June 30, 2020, consisted of the
following:

"'h,
<.7

Balance
June 30.2019

Balance
June 30, 2020Additions Reductions

s2,785,000

2010A Tax Allocation Bonds

s70,000 s2,715.000

The former Selma Redevelopment Agency issued $3,600,000 tax allocation bonds, with the rate of
2.875-5.7500/0 to refund previous refunding bonds 20014 and 20044. The bonds mature in
September 2024. Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2020 was S1,755,000 and are held in the City's
Redevelopment Successor Agency Private-Purchase Trust Funds.

Tax Allocation Bonds at June 30,2020, consisted ofthe following:

S

Balance
June 30,2019

Balance
June 30. 2020Additions Reductions

s2.055.000

1994 Revenue Bonds

s300.000 s1,755,000

The 1994 Revenue Bonds were previously issued by the City of Selma Financing Authority to

finance the prior Redevelopment Agency Housing Project. The debt is an obligation oflhe City's
Redevelopment Successor Agency and thus appears in the Successor Agency Private-Purpose

Trust Fund account. The principal balance ofthe 1994 Revenue Bonds was $210.000.

S

;ll

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 150



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

riOTE 8 _ RISK MANAGEME)iT

The City participates with other public entities in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement
which established the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Managemenl Authority (CSJVRMA). The
relationship between the City and CSJVRMA is such that CSJVRMA is not a component unit of the
City for financial reporting purposes.

The Ciry is covered for the firsl $1,000,000 ofeach general liability claim and 5500.000 of each

workers' compensalion claim through the CSJVRMA. The City has the right to receive dividends or
the obligation to pay assessments based on a formula which among other expenses, charges the City's
account for liability losses under $50,000 and workers' compensation losses under $50,000. The
SCJVRMA participates in an excess pool which provides general liability coverages from $1,000,000
to 529.000,000. The CSJVRMA participates in an excess pool which provides workers'
compensation coverage from $500,000 to 55,000,000 and purchases excess reinsurance above

55,000,000 to the staturory limit.

The CSJVRMA is a consortium offifty-four (54) cities in the San Joaquin Valley, California. lt was

established under the provisions of Califomia Govemmenl Code Section 6500 et seq. The

CSJVRMA is govemed by a Board of Directors which meets three times per year, consisting of one

member appointed by each member city. The day-to-day business is handled by a management group

employed by the CSJVRMA.

At the termination ofthejoint powers agreement and after all claims have been settled, any excess or
deficit will be divided among the cities in accordance with is goveming documents.

The most recent condensed financial information ofCSJVRMA is as follows:

As ofand for the Year Ended
June 30 2020

Total Assets $149313A19

**
<z

Total Liabilities
Total Net Position

Total Liabilities and NeI Position

Tolal Revenues for the Year
Total Expenses for the Year

Change in Net Posilion

s 120.609.137
t9,764,342

s ll0.l7l,l19

$ 58,727 ,520
57.'143.994

s____9E3126

42

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 151



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

NOTE 9. PENSION PLAN

General Information

Plan Description

The Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan (PERF C) administered by
the Califomia Public Employees' Relirement System (CaIPERS). All qualified permanent and
probationary employees are eligible to participate in the City's separate Safety (police and fire) and
Miscellaneous (all other) Employee Pension Plans. Benefit provisions under plans are established by
State statute and Local Govemment resolution. CaIPERS issues publicly available reports that
include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and
membership information thal can be found on the CaIPERS website.

CaIPERS provides service relirement and disability benefils, annual cost of living adjustments and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service.
equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to
retire at age 50 to 52 years with statutory reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty
disability benefits after l0 years of sewice. The death benefit is one oflhe following: The Basic
Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, orthe Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of
living adjustment for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees' Retirement Law.

Effective January 1,2013, CaIPERS instituted a new pension plan as a resuh ofthe Public Employee
Pension Reform Act (PEPRA). Employees hired from that date on are subject to the new 2o/o at 62
benefit formula. The ?.5%, al 55 benefit formula has been closed to new hires from January l, 2013

on, unless they meet the rules for a CaIPERS Classic employee. A Classic employee is already
CaIPERS member through prior employment and was employed by a CaIPERS member within the
last 6 months. See the CaIPERS website for more information.

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of rhe Califomia Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall
be effeclive on the July I following nolice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the
Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CaIPERS. The actuarially
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits eamed by
employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance unfunded accrued liability. The City
is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the conlribution
rale ofthe employees.

"-bt
:'.7

43

Benefits Provided

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 152



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2020
(Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for the
Plans are as follows:

Miscellaneous Safety Total

Contributions employer 5696,260 S881,886 S1,578,146

Pension Liabilities. Pension Exoenses and Deferred Outflows/lnflows
of Resources Relaled to Pensions

As of June 30, 2020, the City reponed net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the nel
pension liability ofeach Plan as follows:

Propon ionate Share ofNet Pension Liability
2019 2018

Miscellaneous s 7,265,144 s 6,928,797
8.03 1.43 lSafety 8,780.706

Total Net Pension Liability $-t6.O15.E50 !!]s96022!

The City's net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share ofthe nel pension

liability. The nel pension liability ofeach ofthe Plans is measured as ofJune 30, 2019. and the total
pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an

actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 rolled forward to June 30, 2019 using standard update

procedures. The City's proponion ofthe net pension liability was based on a projection ofthe City's
long+erm share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all
panicipating employers, actuarially delermined. The City's proportionate share of the net pension

liability for each Plan as of June 30, 201 8 and 2019 was as follows:

Miscellaneous

rt*
<7

Safetv

Proportion June 30. 2018
Proponion June 30, 2019
Change - Increase (Decrease)

.184%

.l8lYo
(.003)%

.137o/o

.l4loh

.004%

44

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 153



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Finrncial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized pension expense of $3,070,425. At June 30,
2020 the City reported deferred oulflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Oulflows of Resources

**
<z

Defened
Employer Pension

Contributions
Made After

Measurement
Date

Changes
of

Assumptions

Differences
Between
Expected

And Actual
Experiences

Total
Pension
Related

Deferred
Outflows

Misccllaneous Plan
Safety Plan

Total

Deferred Infl ows of Resources

$a267105 $706140 $L077.E91 $4.0tt5!9

s346,435
359.905

$ 504,594
573.300

Net Differences
Between
Projected

Eamings and
Actual on Pension
Plan Investments

sr.785.655
2.265.884

Changes
of

Assumptions

$r 22,808
70.235

$r$-0!13

Differences
Between Exp€cted

and Actual
Experienc€s

Total
Pension-related

Deferred Inflows

Miscellaneous Plan
Safety Plar

Total

s39.096

s39,096

$12t,0t7
120.?93

$247.8 r0

s288.92 |

t9t.028

$419-949

Measurement Period

Ended June 30
Outflows (lnflows ) of Resources

2020
2021
2022
2023

Thereafter

$640,829
(22,885)
r00.730
23,503

L712J1f

$s34,577
(58,2r9)
60,154
25,666

0

$t64108

.15

$ 934,626
1.332.679

Safety Plans Miscellaneous Plans

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 154



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2020
(Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumotions

The collective lotal pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement period was determined by an
actuarial valuations of June 30, 2018, with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension
liability to June 30, 2019. The collective total pension liability was based on the following
assumptions.

".r?,
<7

lnvestment rate of retum
Inflation
Salary increases
Mortality rate table r

7.15o/o

2.50o/o

Varies by Entry Age and Service
Derived using CaIPERS' Membership Data for all Funds Contract
COLA up to 2.5% until Purchasing Power Post-retirement benefit
increase Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies

r The mortality lable used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table includes 15

years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP 2016. For
more details on this table, please refer to the December,2017 experience study report (based on
CaIPERS demographic data from 1997 to 2015) that can be found on the CaIPERS websire.

The discount rate used to measure lhe total pension liability for PERF C was 7.1516. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will
be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made
at statutorily required rates, actua ally determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan's fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expecled rale of retum on plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Lonp-Term Exnected Rate of Retum

The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which expected future real rates of retum (expected retums, nel of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In delermining the long-term expected rate of retum, CaIPERS took into account both shorl-term and
long-term market retum expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using
hislorical retums ofall the funds' asset classes, expected compound geometric retums were calculated
over the short-term (first l0 years) and the long-term (l l-60 years) using a building-block approach.
Using the expected nominal retums for both shorl-term and long-term, the present value of benefits
was calculated for each fund. The expected rate ofretum was se1 by calculating the rounded single
equivalent expected retum that arrived at lhe same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one
calculated using both shorl-term and long-term retums. The expected rate of retum was then sel
equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to accounl for assumed
administrative expenses.

46

Discount Rate

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 155



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of retum by asset class. The rate of retum
was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rale and asset

allocation. These geometric rates of retum are net of administrative expenses.

;,9"
<7

Asset Class

Assumed
Asset

Allocation
Real Retum

Years l - l0(a)
Real Retum

Yean I l+(b)

Global Equity
Fixed Income
Inflation Assets

Private Equity
Real Estate

Liquidity

s0.00%
28.009/o

8.00olo

13.00%
1.00o/o

4.80o/o

t.00%
O.77Yo

6.3V/o
3.7 5%

5.98%
2.620/o

t.8t%
7.23o/"

4.93%
(0.e2)%

(l) In the System's CAFR, Fixed income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is
included in Short-term Investmentsi Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity
Securities and Global Debt Securities.

(2) An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period.
(3) An expected inflation of2.92% used for this period.

Sensitivitv ofthe ProDortionate Share ofthe Net Pens ion Liabilitv to Chanse in the Discount Rale

The following presents the City's pmportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan,

calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the

net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is l -percentage point

lower or l -percentage point higher than the current rale:

M iscellaneous Safety Total

I 
04 Decrease

Net Pension Liability

Current Discount Rate

Net Pension Liability

6.15o/o

$ l | ,653,671

7.t5%
s7,265,144

8.15o/o

s3,642,725

6.lSYo
$13,299,53s

7.15o/o

$8,780,706

8.150/o

s5,075,974

6.15%
$30,953,206

7 .l1o/a

s16,04s,850

8.l1Yo
$8,718,699

l7o Increase
Net Pension Liability

Pension Plan Fiduciarv Net Position

Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately

issued CaIPERS financial repons.

Payable to the Pension Plan

Ar June 30, 2020, the City reponed a payable of $-0- for the outstanding amount of contributions to
the pension plan required for the year ended June 10, 2020.

41

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 156



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

NOTE IO _ OTHER POST EMPLOY MENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

The City participates in the CaIPERS medical program under the Public Employees' Medical and
Hospital and Care Act (PEMHCA). This coverage requires the employee to satisry the requirements
for retirement under CaIPERS, which requires (l) atlainment of age 50 (age 52, if a new
miscellaneous member to PERS on or after January l, 2013) with 5 years of State or public agency
service or (2) an approved disability retirement.

The City's contribution toward retiree medical benefits is determined by multiplying together the
following three items:

. 5olo times

. The number of prior years the employer has been contmcted with PEMHCA times

. The contribution the employer provides for active employees (i.e., the MEC).

The amount payable by the City for retirees was S 132.05 per month for 2020

As ofJune 30, 2018 actuarial valualion, the following currcnt and former employees were covered by
the benefit terms under the plan:

Active employees
Retirees
Retirees waiving coverage

Total

Net OPEB Liabili t\

The City's net OPEB liability was measured as ofJune 30, 2019, and the total OPEB liability used to

calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as ofJune 30' 2018.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the June 30,2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial methods of assumptions:

;,9"
<7

94
3l
34

ll9

.18

Plan Description

The City offers medical, dental, and vision coverage to qualirying retirees. The City is obligaled to
contribute toward the co$ of retiree medical coverage for the retiree's lifetime or until coverage is

discontinued. The City has an "unequal contribution" resolution with CaIPERS, executed in 2001.
This resolution defines the Cily's conlribution toward active employee medical premiums to be the
PEMHCA minimum employer contribution (MEC). The MEC was Sl19 per monlh in 2020.

Emplovees Covered

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 157



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statem€nts

June 30, 2020
(Continu€d)

"'?:t
<z

Valuation Date

Funding Method

Asset Valuation Melhod

Discount Rate

Panicipants Valued

Salarv lncrease

Assumed Wage lnflation

General Inflation Rate

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

Mortality Improvements

Medicare Eligibility

June 30. 2018

Entry Age Normal Cost, level percentage ofpay

Market value of assets (S0; plan is not yet funded)

1.62% as ofJune 30,2018
l.l3% as ofJune 30,2019

Only current active employees and retired participants and

covered dependents are valued. No future entrants are

considered in this valuation.

3.25Vo per year, since benefits do not depend on salary, this is
used only io allocate the cost of benefits between service
years.

3.07o per year; a component of assumed salary increases

2.7 5o/o per year

7.50o/o x of January l, 2019, decreasing .50% per year to
5.00% for yeas 2024 and thereafter

MacLeod Watts Scale 2018 applied generationally from 2015.

Absent contrary data" all individuals are assumed to be eligible
for Medicare Part A and Part B at age 65

Discount Rate

The City is currently financing its OPEB liability on a pay-as-you-go basis. The discount rale used in

this valuation is based on the Fidelity Muni Bond AA 20 Year maturity yield. As of the beginning

and end ofthe Measurement Period, use ofthis index results in discount rates ofl.627o as ofJune 30,

2018 and 3.13% as ofJune 30, 2019.

.19

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 158



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Finrncisl Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

Changes in the OPEB Lirbility

The changes in the net OPEB liability for the Plan are as follows:

Total
OPEB

Liability
a)

Balance at June 30, 2019
(Measurement Date June 30, 2018) $5.616.271 S S5.616.271

"ft*
<z

lncrease (Decrease)

(

Plan
Fiduciary

Net Position
(b)

Net
OPEB

Liabilhy/(Asset)
(c)=(a) - (b)

335,680
213.t25
465,642

( 12e,028)

Sensitivity ofthe Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The discount rate used for the fiscal year end 2020 is 3.13%. The following presents the net OPEB

liability ofthe City if it were calculated using a discount rate lhat is one percentage point lower or one

percentage point higher than the current rate, for measurement period ended June 30, 2019:

Changes recognized for the measurement period:
Service cost
Interest
Changes of assumptions
Employer contribution
Benefit payments

Net Changes

Balance at June 30, 2020
(Measurement Date June 30, 2019)

I % Decrease
(2 .13%)

Total OPEB Liability
Net OPEB Liability

135,680
zt3.t25
465,642

( 129.028)
129.028

(L29.028\

885.419 885.419

$610L690 s- $610L690

l7o Increase
4.13o/o

s6,501,690 $s,602,971
$6,501,690 $5,602,971

s7,6r l,3 l8
s7,63 r,3 r 8

Sensitivity ofthe net OPEB lkbility to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates

The healthcare cost trend was assumed to start at ?.57o (effective January l, 2019) and grade down to

57o for years 2024 and thereafter. The following presents the net oPEB liability ofthe City, as well

as what the City's net OPEB lability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates

that are l -percentage-point lower or l -percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend

rates:

50

Currenl
Discount Rate

(3.13o/o)

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 159



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2020
(Continued)

"-b

l7o Decrease

Current
Healthcar€ Cost

Trend Rates l7o lncrease

Total OPEB Liability
Net OPEB Liability

s5,192. r 02
s5.392. r 02

s6,501,690
s6,501,690

s8.340.263
s8.340.263

Pavable to the OPEB Plan

At June 30, 2020, the City reported a payable ofS0 for the outslanding amount of contributions to the
OPEB plan required for the year ended June 30, 2020.

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/lnflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized OPEB expense of$533,007. As offiscal
year ended June 30, 2020, the City reponed deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources.

Defened
Outflows

ofResources

Deferred
Inflows

of Resources

OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement dale S147,078
Chanses ofassumptions 409.675

s
387.894

Total s556,753 $q7-894

The 5147,078 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the

June 30, 2019 measuremenl date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability during

the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as defened outflows of resources

related to OPEB will be recognized as expense as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ended June 30

Net Deferred
Outflows{lnflows)

of Resources

202t
2022
2023
2024
2025

Thereafter
Total

s (1s,798)
( 1s,798)
( 15,798)
(15,798)
(r5,7e8)
100.771

L2I.78r

5l

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 160



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to Financirl Statements

June 30, 2020
(Continued)

".r?,
<7

ll - MMITMENTS AND :,{

Contingencies

The City participates in grant programs which are govemed by various rules and regulations of the
grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustme

by the grantor agencies; lherefore, to the extenl that the City has not complied with the rules and

regulations goveming lhe grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the

collectability of any related receivables may be impaired. ln the opinion of the City. there are no

significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and rcgulations goveming the

respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the accompanying basic financial

statements for such contingencies.

Litigalion

No reportable litigation was pending against the City at June 30,2020

NOTE 12 - CONTI \CF,NT LIABILITIES

The City participates in a number of federally assisted granl programs. Receipts from these grant

programs are subject to audit to determine if the monies were expended in accordance with the

appropriate statutes. grant terms and regulations. The City believes no significant liabilities would

result from any such audits.

At June 30, 2020, the City changed the methodology used for accruing sales tax reYenue. As a result,

the beginning fund balances/net position on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fmd Balance-Govemmental Funds and the Statement ofactivities were increased by S1.049,123.

52

NOTE I3 _ PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 161



"ft*
<7

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 162



CITY OF SELMA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Eudget and Actual
General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30,2020

Budgeted Amounts
Final

"ft*
<z

Original Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive

Oiegative)

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
lntergovemmental
Charges for sewices
Fines
Franchise fees

lnvsstnenl eamings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

E xpenditu res
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community development
Recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service :

Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total exp€nditures

Excess (defi ciency) of revenucs over
(under) expenditures

Other fimncing sources (uses)

Operating transfers in
Operdting transfers out

Total other financing sources (us€s)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning ofyear,
as previously reported

Prior period adjustmenr

Fund balance, beginning ofyear. restated

$10,957,099
339,650
I 19,000
557,078
26,500

928,182
59,275
29.250

$10,957,099
339.650
I 19,000
557,0?8

26,500
928.182

s9.275
29.250

13.016.034

s 202,602
56,72t
5, E

43,742
E,057

( 16,230)
74,826
42.456

$ I t,159,701
396,37 t

124,1 l E

600,820
34,557

911,952
134,l0 t
7l 70

016 03.1 l].433.t26

2.128,364
10.419,739

1,182,955
942,529
600.001
r06.000

2,t28,364
t0,404,297

t,1t2,955
942,529
600.001
tzl,442

369,7s0
133.3%

15.882.734

3,053,334
(t65.500)

2.887.t34

4,566,213

E08.l s4

5.374.427

slt95l6l

l,%9,359
9,969,237
1,067,682

732,994
574,993
120,704

|7 92

159,005
435,060
I t5,273
209,535

25,008
73t

944.619

(2,166,700) (2,866,700) (1,504,789) 1,361,91 I

(39,570)

369.750
133.396

t5]E2J34

3,053,334
( t65.500)

2.tt7.834

4.566,273

08 t54

5.37 4.42?

Lil95l61

369.750
133.396

14.93t.1l5

i.013.764
( r 65.s00)

2.E48.264

4,566,273

EoE.ls4

5.374.427

s_6J11,992

i9 570

2t .t34 2l .134 t .343 .47 5 I .322.341

Fund balance, end ofyear

53

il.322)4t

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 163



CITY OF SELMA
Schedule of Revenues, Erpenditures, and Ch.nges in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Street LTF

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

"t*
<z

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual ()iegati ve)

Revenues
lntergovemmenal
Invcstment eamings

Total revenues

Expcnditures
Public Works
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Othcr financing sources (uses)

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning ofyear

Fund balance, end ofyear

S

2.877.630

$2E77.630

2.877.630

$eEz.6r0

$ 95 t,357
56.404

1.007.761

20,550
t49.423
169.9'13

837_788

(L42-512\
(l42.512'.)

695 276

2.877.630

$3172J06

s 95 t,357
56.404

1.007.761

(20,550)
( 149.423)
( t69.973t

837.788

( 142.512)
1142.512\

695.276

s 69s.276

S

54

Budgeted Amounts

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 164



CITY OF SELMA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
CID Groundwater Surcharge

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final

"2t*
<7

Actual

s 2m,E02
13.628

304.430

406.135
406.135

Variance wirh
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

$ 290.t02
13.62E

304.430

(406. r35)
(406.135)

ReYenues
Charges for services
lnvestment eamings

Total revenues

Ex penditu res
Public Works

Total expenditures

Excess (defi ciency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other finencing sourc€s (uses)

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning ofyear

Fund balance, end ofyear

S s

001.705) ( 101.705)

( r 01,705)

s56-224

$4!LtU)

(10r,70s)

$(l0L705)

556.224

$55Q)A

556.224

$554224

55

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 165



CITY OF SELMA
Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures, ard Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actuol
Police Station Construction

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Budgeted Amount5
Final

;'.1"
<7

Actual

Revenl!es
Investment eamings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

E f,pcnditu res
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (defi ciency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Olher financilg sources (uses)

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

\et change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning ofyear

Fund balance, end ofyear

S S $ 5 r,723
1.050

52.773

4.286.923
4.286.923

$ 5l,723
1.050

s2.?73

(4.2E6.923)
(4.286.923',)

(4.234.r50) (4.234.r 50)

(4,234,t 50)

6.364.243

LEEOJDI

(4,234,150)

s!1234J10)

6.364.243

sfi642l3

6.364.243

M3j1,24)

56

Original

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(\egative)

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 166



CITY OF SELMA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Eudget and Actual
2017 Bond PD Station

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts

"-r?,
<z

Original Final Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
lnvestment eamings

Total revenues

Expenditurcs
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other finencing sources (uses)

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning ofyear

Fund balance, end ofyear

s $ 92.169
92.169

4.061.134
4.061.134

$ 92.169
92.t69

(4.061.114)
(4.061. r 34)

(3.96E.965) (3.968.965)

(3,%8,965)

3.96E.965

$_

( j.968.965)

5Gp68965)

3.96t.965

$3.96E 965

3.968.965

s3J6E-965

57

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 167



CITY OF SELMA
Required Supplementary lnformation

Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Delined B€nefit Pension Plan - Last t0 Years*
For the Ycar Ended June 30, 2020

Schedule of Plon's ProportionBte Shrre of the Net Pcnsion
Liability and Related Ratios as of the Measurcment Date

2020 20 t9 20t8 20t7 lol6 2015

"-h"
<z

Plan s Proportron oflhc Nct Pensions Liabillty (Assel)

Plan s Proporllon sharc ol'the Nel Ptnsron l.labrllty (Assc,
Plan s Covcrcd limploycc Payroll
I,lan s Proportronatc Sharc ol thc Ncl Pensron l.labr!lly

(Asscl)6s a PcrccnlaBc ol ils Covcrcd-limploycc Payroll
Plan's Proporlronate Sharc ol lhc Iiductsry Ncl l'osrlrcn

as a Perccnlagc oflhc Plan s lolal l'ensxrn l.rabtllly

l,lan's Proponron oflhc Nct Pensiohs Liabilrty (Asscl)
I,l0n's Proponroo sh.rc ol lhe Ncl Pcnsrcn l.mbrlrty (Asscl)

Plan's Covcrcd llmploycc Payroll
Plan s Proportronate Share oflhe Nel Pensron l.tabrlly

(Assel) as a l'crcenlaBe ol'ils Covcred-l:mploycc l'ayroll
Plan's Proporlronale Sharc ol-lhc lrrduciary Nct l'osrllon

as a PerccnEge ol lhc lllan's lolal Penslon l-r.b,lity

t8142%
$7,265, t44
$2,456.814

t838570
$6.9211,797

$2.033,4et

l75E2o/o

17,t 23,sr r

s1,6e4.454

t8473%
$6,4t 7.3r0

,609,297

19888%
$5,456,437
$r,636,510

012960/o

$4,540,t56
11,470.465

:95 7l% 340 71'

67 120/0

420 4to/, 398 77 !/n 331 41%

65 86% 7t 14,

1t)N 760

16 3to/.

t4066Yo
18,780,706
s4,072,eee

t16880/r
18,03t,43r
l3,727,327

149',71%

$7,9t5,874
t1,505,756

ttts9%
$6.E I5,3t 2

$2,rJ78,43E

12509%
s5, t54,581
$3,453,112

|76590/"
14,165,927
s1,379.336

2{)20 2019 20lti

225 800/,

73 95yr

7017 20l6 2015

215 5ll%

73 930/0

215 47Yo

74 940/0

21671Yo 149 2T/u

75 04!/o 80 It70

t4t ofo/,

8l 12v,

1|iscal year 2015 rvas thc l " ycar of implcmcntati(m. thorcli)rc only livc ycars arc shown

5lt
May 3, 2021 Council Packet 168



":9,
<z

CITY OF SELMA
Required Supplementary lnformation

Schedule of Funding Progress PERS lnformation
For the Ycar Ended June 30,2020

Schctlulc (lontributions

M isecllancous
l.trr thc Ycar llndcd Junc 30.

2020

$ 826,351

(826.35 t )
$ -- ll

$a$6,034

33.63Y,

2019

$ 709,431

(709.43t\
$ ____,a

$201],49E

2018

$ 619.237

(6 t 9.23?)
$n

$lie4,{t4

$ 526,96r

(526.961|

$t,609,297

$ 381.662

(38t.662)

$,0
$r,636J30

20t5

$ 367.790

(361.7901

$=-a
$r,470,465

25.Otvo

20I6

Actuarially dctcr tin0d contribulion
(i)ntributions in rclation 1() thc

0ctuarially detcrmincd conlribuiions
(i)ntribution dclicicncy (c\ccss)

Covcred-cmploycc puyroll

Contributions as a perccntago

ol covcred-cmploycc payroll

Actuarially dctcrmincd contrihution
(bntributions in rclalion to thc

actuarially dctctmined contributions
Conlribution dclicicncy (excess)

(i)vcrcd-c,nploycc payroll

(i)ntribulions as a pcrccntage

ol covcrcd-cmploycc payroll

16.54Vo 32.140/o 23.32v"

Saltt)
lklr thc Ycar l'lndcd Junc 30.

:02{)

$ r,094,779

( t.094.7791
$_ ,_-n

s4.072-999

26.1\8vo

$ 898,570

(898.570)

$,!
51J27.327

$ 840,006

(840.006)

$_ il

$3105-716

$ 682,202

(682.2021

sl!

$2^E70.4:r!

2016

$ 660,953

(660.953)

L_______0

$3^4l3JE2

20t5

$ 655.346

{655.346)
i__0
$tl?2.:ll!

2019 20 r 10l'7

23.960/" 23.700/0 t9.I4"/" t9.390

59

20t7

34.89v"

21. |).k

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 169



CITY OF SELMA
Required Supplementary lnformation

Schedule of Funding Progress PERS lnformation
for the Year Ended June 3O 2020

Notes to Schedule:

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for Fiscal Year
2019-20 were derived from the June 30,2015 funding valuation report.

"-?:,
<7

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method/Period
Asset Valuation Method
Inflation
Salary Increases
Payroll Growth
Investrn€nt Rate of Retum

Retirement Age

Mortality

Entry Age Normal
For details, see June 30, 2015 Funding Valuation Report
Actuarial Value of Assets. For details, see June 30, 201 5 Funding Valuation Repon.
2.75o/o

Varies by Entry Age and Service
3.ov/o
7.5olo, Net of Pension Plan lnvestment and Adminisrative Expenses; Includes
Inflation-
The probabilities of Retirement are based on the 2014 CaIPERS Experienc€ Study

for the period from I 997 to 20 I I .

The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2014 CaIPERS ExPerierce Study for
the period fiom 1997 to 201l. Prc-retirement and Post-retircment monality rates

include 20 years of projected monality improvement using Scale BB published by

the Society of Actuaries.

60

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 170



CITY OF SELMA
Required Supplementary lnformation

Schedule ofchanges in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Measurement Period Ending June 30,
2019 2018

"ft*
<z

Toral OPEB Liability
Service cost
Interest cost
Assumption changes
Benefit payments

Net change in lotal OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability beginning
Total OEPB liability ending (a)

Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions
Benefit payments

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Fiduciary net position beginning
Fiduciary net position ending (b)

Net OPEB (asset) liability ending (a)-(b)

Covered-employee payroll

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

s lls,680
213,125
465.642

(L29,028\
885.419

5.616.271
s6.501.690

$ 129.028
( r 29.028)

s 329,996
196.593
(s0,785)

( 103.626)
312.178

5.244.093
s5.6r6.271

s r03.626
fl 03.626)

s 375.557
164,777

(546,300)
(34.854)
(40,820)

5.284.9r3
ss.244.093

s 14.854
( 34,854 )

$0

$61oL690

$6,913,761

94.04o/o

0 s0

s5-61627r

$6,330,599

88.720h

$5244-093

s6,169,019

85.01%

Notes to Schedule:

Chanses in Assumotions

The discount rate was changed frcm 3.62Yo as of June 30, 2018 to 3.13% as of June 30, 2019, based on the

published change in retum for the applicable municipal bond index.

Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which CASB 75 is applicable' Future

years' information will be displayed up to l0 yean as information becomes available.

6l

20t7

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 171



CITY OF SELMA
Required Supplementary lnformation

Schedule ofChanges in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Fiscal Year Ended June 30.
2020 2019

":9,
<z

2018

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)
Contributions in relation to the ADC
Contribution deficiency (excess)

Contributions as a percenhge
of covered-employee payroll

s 533.007
( 147.078)

s 454,824
( 129.028)

s 474.673
( 103.626)

$_lt5J29

$6-91lJ6r

2.13o/o

s_12u96

$61t0r99

s_lll.@u

s6-t690r9

2.04o/o 1.680/o

Notes to Schedule:

Actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for Fiscal Year 2020
were from the June 30.2018 actuarial valuation.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contributions:

Valuation Date June 30,2018

Funding Method Entry Age Normal Cost, level percent of pay

Asset Valuation Method Market value of assets (S0; plan is not yet funded)

Discount Rate 3.62% as ofJune 30,2018
3.13olo as ofJune 30, 2019

Participants Valued Only cunent active employees and retired participants and covered
dependents are valued. No future entran6 are considered in this valuation.

Salary lncrease 3.257o per year, since benefits do not depend on salary, this is used only to
allocate the cost of benefits between service years

Assumed Wage lnflation 3.0% per year; a component ofassumed salary increases

General Inflation Rate 2.75o/o per fear

62

Covered-employee payrol I

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 172



"f{*
<,7

COMBINING STATEMENTS AS SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 173



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Balance Sheet -

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30,2020

":9,
<7

Special
Revenue

Funds

Debr
Service
Funds

Capital
Projects
Funds

Total
Nonmajor

Govemmental
Funds

Assets
Cash and investments
Cash with fiscal agent
Accounts receivable
lnterfund receivables
Due from olher agencies

Total assets

Fund balance
Restricted for:
Stre€ts and roads
Public safety
Community development
Debt services
Capital projects

Committed for:
Streets and mads
Community development
Recr€ation
Capital projecs

Assigned for:
Equipment replacement

Unassigned
Total furd balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

s4,27 |,946

17,728

2.31t.725
$6.60E 399

$t,05E,3r7
59.823

924.t 57
5.000

2.047 -297

2,988,520
1,337,432

158,045

23,909
90,725

3,351

(,t0.880)

4.561.102

t4J!!,iee

$627.95 I

t46,664

7'14,615

774.615

s1146l5

$4,901,525

t7,321
3,200

$4922.A!6

$ 29,736

t4,7 t2

44.448

r,701,261

t,901,.147

600.139

694,171
( 19.420)

4.E77.598

$ 9,801,422
146,664
35,049
3,200

2.3lt.725
$12105.060

$ 1,088,053
59,823

938,869
5.000

2.091.745

4,689,781
\,337,432

158,045
774,615

t,901,447

23.909
90,725

1,35 t

600,139

694,17 t
(60.300)

10.213,315

s774.6t5

S

s4.922.046 $lZ105-060

63

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Accrued wages/benefits
Interfund payables

Other liabilities
Total liabilities

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 174



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Statement of RevenIes, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 **

<7

Special
Revenue

Funds

Capiul
Projects
Funds

Total
Nonmajor

Govemmental
Funds

Revenues
Taxes
I ntergovemmental
Charges for sewices
Fines
lnvestment eamings
Assessment payments

Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures
General govemment
Public safety
Public works
Community development
Recreational
Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Othcr finsncing sources (uses)

Operatiog transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning ofyear,
as previously reponed

Prior period adjustment

Fund balance, beginning ofyear, restated

r.350206 (3.935)

107.500

107.500

235.171

77E.550 4,642,427

$ 2,931,337
2,941,924

r 76,005
6,021

55,501

372.241
6.483.029

22,t08
833,067

t,357,716
124,958

t.531.683

3.E69.532

2,613,497

936,5E9
(2.199.tE0)

0.263.29t\

2.969.927

240.969

1.210.896

$ 4l6LllD

$

270,603

66,409

464.59
801.61 r

s 2,931,337
2,94t,924

446,608
6,021

t27,t23
4t6,t74
836.840

7.706.727

5,213
416,874

422.0E7

23,180

250.000
ts2.842
426.022

(3,93s)

171,806
( r 71.806 )

778.550

sl"r.6r5

S

t27.681
1.04E

6',73.940

127,671

4.642.427

$4t7719E

45,288
904,761

t,428,1 l6
148,0'72

14.291
1,897,395

377,681
153.8m

4.969.494

2,737,233

1,2r 5,895
(2.37r.686)
( t.155.791)

1.5t1.,142

t,390,904

240.969

8.631.t73

fl!2lltli

7 t,694
70,400
23, I l4
14,291

36s,712

Fund balance, end ofyear

64

Debt
Service
Funds

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 175



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Balance Sheet -

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2020

"4*
<z

lrallle
Saloly

lruhlic
Snloty

Sidcwalk
llcpair
lrunds

Ilcdcvcloprncnt
AdmiDistralil)n

Strcct
Muinlcnancc

l;und

Strcct
(is
'l-ax

Road
Maintcnancc

&
l{chabilitation

Strcct
Mcusurc C

Lirbilities
Acc0unls payablc
Accrucd wagos/bcnclits
lntcrllnd payablcs
othcr liahilitics

'l-otal liabililics

Fund bslance
Rcstriotcd lbr:

Strccts and roads
Public salcty
Communily dcvclopmcnt

Committcd lbr:
Strccts and roads
Community dcvclopmcnt
Rccrcalion

IJnassigncd
I otal lund baluncc

'lotal liabilitics and l'und b[lancc

$l].349

t3.349

13.349

13.349

sLL349

$

12t.422

12t.422

$23.741t $23.300
609

23.148

23.148

$140.196

23.909 t40. t96 260.905 875.069 99t.922

5.It90
47.374
2t.2t8 4.442

5.1r90

5.000
73.592

t7.3 t3 1170.617 991 ,t)22
t34.306

21.909

$260,74 t

t64
$ti75.069 $991.922 $88 t,93 t

43.378

925.309

2n
2-922

I lti,4tio

t2t.422

$I2r.ll2

23;148

$2.314t

23.909

$2r.9!9

t34.306

sr40.r96

t87.313

$260^905

870.627

$E75.069

99t-922

L99l)22

925.309

925.309

$925109

65

AIr t9l3
(;rant

Assets
Cash und invcstmcnls
Accounts rcceivable
Duc liom othcr agcncios

'l'otal asscts

4.442

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 176



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Balance Sheet -

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30,2020

".h,
<7

Rcg Salc
'frans

['rogram
(RS rP)

('l,l) 2006- |

Vincl ard
l.:stalcs

90.t20

$90-120

Abandoncd
Vchiclc

Abatcmcnt

Small
Business
Support
Center

$605

605

(5

605

L60l

( t)txi
(;rant

Rccycling
Grant

n.tMA
liirc

Grant

A3!ct!
Cash aDd investments
Accounts reccivable
Due from other agencies

Total assots

Lirbilities
Accounls PaYable
Accrucd wagcs/bcnclits
lntcrlirnd payerblcs

othor liabilitics
'l-otal liahililics

Fund brlance
Rcstriclcd Jbr:

Sreets and roads
Public salcty
Community dcvclopmqnt

Committed lbr:
Strcets and roads
Community dcvclopmcnt
Recrcation

tlnassigned
'l'otal l'und balancc

li)tal liahilitius and llnd hnlancc

$ 42,245

t.t2t.o21

1.067.272

nr.)l.ll97

99t.897

1t,375

7 t.315

$1061272

$90. t20 $100.8t4 $25.000 $195

90.120 100.814 25.000 195

|.475
8.471

19.952

t95
It0.li(r2 2 5.000

9(). I20

$

2tto

$

( 2lio )

(280)

$2 t.708 $

282.t39

282. t3921.708

21t -861)

400 27t.860

t0.279
2 t .l0tt

"l(xt

280

E0.E62

u00ar4

25.000

$25J01)

2t.308

$2L708

t0.279

$aEJt2

195

$r9t

66

l,andscape
and Propeny

l.ighting Cleanup &
Assessment Demo f'und

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 177



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Balance Sheet -

Nonmrjor Specirl Revenue Funds
June 30, 2020

":9,
<7

I)0J
IJyncs
(lranl

$

12.885

12.885

A tPt7-
0ti9

$

t59.881

t59.88t

l'rrrccloscd
llomcs
I'r()icct

30.875

$0.!n

Sporls
Ildll ol'
lrrmc

AC'I
l)rogram

AB 74
Storm I)rain

ApDropriation

('itizcns
I'ax

lniliativc(.MAQ

'lbtal
Nonmajor

Spccial
Rcvcnue l'unds

$4,21 1.946
11.728

2.318.?25

6.60t.399

1,058,3 t7
59,823

924.157
5.000

2.047.291

2,988,520
1.331.432

t58.045

23,909
90.125

3.35 t

(40.880)

4.56t.102

,$ 
(,. (i ( )Ii,.] ()()

Arrets
Cash und inveslmcnts
Accounts reccivable
[)uc from othcr agcncies

'l'otal asscts

$t3,e20
t 6,955

$3.151

30.ra75 3.351

30.875

3,35 r

$

59.338

59.338

$

271.600

773.600

$ 763;132

r.t08.787

6.61)7

6,160
46,57t

544
10,714

213,601) 40,6U)

59.338 213.600 40.600 I t.258

t.097.529

( 40.600)
(40.600) 1.097.529

$LI0EJEZlt9Jl! $21J,6U0 $

$

l,iabilities
Accounts payablc
Accruod \vaScs/bcnolits
lntcriirnd pay blcs
Othcr liabilitics

'lotal liabililics

,2.885 t59.1{{t I

I2.885 159.881

Fund brlance
Rcstrictcd lbr:

Strccts ond roads
Public salbty
Community dcvclopment

Committcd lor:
Strccts and roads
Community dcvclopmcnt
Rccreation

Unassigncd
'lotal l'und balmoo

'l'otal liabilitics and |und balance $]}S!,! $llA[El

3.351

$]JJ]

6'1

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 178



CITY OF SELMA
Combitting Statement of Revenues, Erpenditures, rnd Chrnges in Fund Bahncc -

Nonmrjor Specisl Revenue Funds
For the Yesr End€d Junc 30, 2020

€9,
<z

lrulllc
Salcly

Succcssor
Agcncy

Adtninistration
llrhlie
Srrlily

Sidcwalk
Iicpair
l"unds

All l9 tl
(irant

St.cct
Maintcnancc

l"und

Strccl
(ias
'l ax

Revcnucs
'l'axcs

lntcrgovcrnmcntal
Chargcs lbr scrviccs
l.'incs
lnvcstmcnt carnings
Misccllancous

'l'otal revenucs

llxpeIditures
(icncral govcmmcnt
I'uhlic sa,cty
I'uhlic works
(i)mmunity dcvclopmcnt
(ldpital outlay

'l'otal cxpcnditures

l :xccss (dclicicncy) ol' rcvcnucs
ovcr (undcr) cxpcndilurcs

Othcr ,inrncilg sourccs (uica)
Opcrating transfcrs in
opcrating transl'crs out

'fotal olhcr linancing sourccs (us0s)

Nct changc in l'und balancc

Iund balancc. bcginninB ol yDar.

as prcviously rcported

l)rior pcriod adjustmont

lrund baluncc, beginning ol'ycar

,J;

6.021

6.02 r

6,021

6.021

1.328

1.328

$l-l-!19

60.6 t6
60.616

60.6t6

tu.6 t6

$59.006

6-742

$2U4E

22.g',t9

$2t-909

$$ $
t55.q48

't7.o2tJ

$IlrLlQ6

't.545
t't4.205

$ 564.299

13.t22

578. t2 |

65.921

65.921

512.201)

( 3? t.6lt4 )
(371.6114)

t40.5 r6

730.III

730.1I I

$_E?0^627

59.006
930
930

59.006 930

(42.000)
( 42.()00)

t7.006 930

6-7 42 ), o70

t55.9.llt 18t.750

9It.662
1.050.327

9{t.662
44.3 I0

1.094.637

5'7,286 (91 2.lill7 )

9t l.5tt9

57.2ti6

9l t.589

( t.298)

188.67 7 .021)

t8t.6t I

$-IE7JI}lrund bnlanec. cnd ol )cirr $

68
May 3, 2021 Council Packet 179



(]ITY OF SEI,MA
(lombining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund B{latrce -

Nonrnajor Special Revenue J'unds
l.or the Ycar Ended Junc 30,2020

€y
<7

S1rco1

Moasurc (l

Itcg Sa,o
'l'rans

l'rogr nl
(RS )

('Il) 2()06-l
Vincyat d

lislatcs

l.andsoapc
und

l.ighting
Asscssmcnl

l)ropcrty
( lcanup &
l)c|l]o l;und

Abandoncd
Vchicle

Abatcmcnl
( l)t](i
(iranl

Revenues
'l'axcs

Inlcrgovcrnmcnldl
Chargcs lbr scrviccs
Iincs
lnvcstmcnt carnings
Misccllancous

'lbtal rcvcnucs

0xpenditures
(icncral govcrnmcnt
Public salcty
I'ublic works
Community devclopmcnt
Capital outlay

'li)lal cxpgnditurcs

lixccss (dclicicncy) ol rcvcnucs
ovar (undcr) oxpcndilurcs

Other Iinancing sources (uses)

Opcrating lransl'crs in
Opcrating translcrs out

'lotal othcr linancing sourccs (usos)

Nct changc in lund bitlanco

I:und balansc. boginning ol yoar.
as proviously rcporlcd

I'rir)r peri0d .rdiuslmcnL

l;und bahncc. hcBinnins o, yc r. rcslalcd

:l $36,665 $239, r55 $i

44It.5 t2 649.'729 1.02 I.027

15.101 t3.965

464.219 663.694 1.02 t.027 36.665 239. t55

7. lllt3 2.1,1.2110

7. ll{i
953.1l9
ei3Jl9 234.280

464,219 656.506 6'7.'701\ 3(r,(r(r5 4.87 5

r 397.393 )
(397.393 )

464.219 259. I 13 6',t.108 36.665 4.875

521.'l\)3 666. t96 1.6(r7 5:].455 75.98',7

.$ $ li .$

I t.434

r r.434

4.5',75

4.57 5

I t.62t)
I t.620

(4.575 ) ( I116)

(4.5151 ( I86)

4.771)

521.703

$ut922

666. t96

$_925J09

3.661

s 7_t1,75

53.455

$9(I12i)

75.987

$ .&0-862

25.000

25.000

25.000

4.7'.l0

$ r95

(94)

t94)

$J?!!)lrLrnd halanec. cnd ol ycar

69

$2t!01)

lioad
Maintenancc

&
Ilchabilitation

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 180



c:

{{

n

'l 8l

-1

F.l

-l

11

=tI

5
*l

-1

<.1

x a.E
-av

"$ v)d,.l

-t-l

el alhl .J

-t-l

=1

!:l

"l

3

=l

I

L

E'

1.a-!..r
EIr:
ar arX

a?c2<is:
^ l'- a

i 6-,ti
u :.q>

i/EL

12e

a
oa

(.)

F-

:
r) -)Fl -l
l^l

E ep-
-. :i E: ;.3- !-

n hz .9
i: -c)

^2

Lii-

t.?:>!
^ -,..-aa-9 > i'+ >,: '?; a;4.= 7 z
t E r r e? ll
L5€€53=
-4'..ic-=-J'J..

_') .6

2:t az..

a a! t=>?zi-'t:.i.2?
>-=:.La=:
-9-:-:r:2..

tl
I

I
_'r= -

? e't: !

3;

;.:-(j

*l
i.l

I I

II

I

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 181



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Stslement of Revenues, Expenditurcs, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Nonmajor Special Rcvenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30,2020

"-h,
<7

Sports
llall ol'
ljamc

AC'I'
llIaxl4m

Sclmir
Activit)
l,caguc

Cilirc s

lax
lnitiativc

'lbral

Nonmajor
Speciul

Rcvcnuc l;unds( N1AQ

Revenue!
'laxcs

lnlcrgovcrnmcntal
('hffgcs lbr scrviccs
Iincs
lnvcstmcnt curnings
Misccllancous

-lbtal 
rcvcnucs

ExpeDditures
(icncral govcrnmcnt
Public salbty
l'ublic works
Community dcvclopmcnl
Capital outlay

-lo(al 
cxpcnditurcs

l,l\ccss (dsllcicncy) ol rcvcnucs
ovcr (tlndrr) c\pcnditurcs

Other ri'|rncing sources (uses)

opcrating transl'crs in
()pcralinlL translcrs oul

'li)tal othcr linancing sourqcs (uscs)

Ncl ohangc in lund balance

liund balancc. bcginning ol ycar,
s prcviously rcportcd

l'rior pcriod adiustmcnts

l;und balancc. bcginning ol ycur, rcstntcd

ui
,t$$

274.850

I7.1.1350

t.250

273.600
274.850

1;

5

s 2.032-2t2

t2.007

2.044.219

350.5r,1

$ 2,93 r,337
2.941.924

176,005
6.021

55.50 t

3't2.24 t

6.483.029

_1.35 |

3.35 t

$Llfl

llt2.64l
ur2.64l

I8t.169

t81.469

t -t74

1.174

( r. r74)

r 1.174)

$

3.675

(3.675 )

( 5.430)
15.430 )

t9.105)

9.1{)5

9. t05

s

40.600
40.600

22.108
833.067

1.357.7 t6
t24.958

1.53t.683
3.869.5323 51t,l l,.l

(,10.6(X) ) 1.693.705

(1.383.-173)

{ l.ln3.l73)

(40.600) .r l0 .]-12

546.228

240.969

7E7 -t91

$_L09?129

2.6t3.491

936.589
(2.l99.tilt0)
t 1.263.2e1)

1.350.206

2,969.927

240.969

3.2t0.E96

i416L102Iiund hillonac. cntlol ycar

7t

$(40,600)

Al| 74 Slorm
I)ruin

Arrprorrrialion

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 182



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Balance Sheet -

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
June 30, 2020 ** <z

1994
Debt

Service

Assessmenl
9t-2

Highland
Debt

Service

Assessmenl
92-t

Dancer II
Debt

Service

Assessment
92-t

Dancer II I

Debt
Service

Assessment
92-t

Watermain
Debt

Service

Assets
Cash and investments
Cash with fiscal agent

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Total liabilities

Fund balance
Restricted for:
Debt service

Total fund balance

s 87,215
109.306

196.52 r

196.521
196.52]l

95.106
95. r06

27.184
27.t84

)s s5g
,5 q6q

r 1.392
13.392

s1lJ92

s9s,l06 $27,184 525.969 513,392

95.106 21.184 25.969 13.392

Total liabilities and fund balance $]-96121 S95J06 W-134 S2i969

72

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 183



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Balance Sheet -

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
June 30, 2020

"ft*
<7

Assessment
93- I

Briarwood./
Vineyard

Debt
Service

PFA
2001 A

Debt
Service

2014
Assessment

Bond

Total
Nonmajor

Debt
Service
Funds

Assets
Cash and investments
Cash with fiscal agent

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Total liabilities

Fund balance
Restricted for:
Debt service

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

ss3,263 5325,822

s3.263 325.822

53.263
s3.263

325.822
325.822

S

37.3 58

37.3 58

37.358
37.358

$627.9st
146.664
77 4.615

77 4.6t 5
77 4.615

$51261 5325.822 S3Ll56 IZ74-6[5

'73

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 184



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Nonmajor Debt Senice Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

".r?,
<7

1994
Debt Service

Assessment
91-2

Highland
Debt Service

Assessment
92-t

Dancer I I

Debt Service

Assessment
92-t

Dancer I

Debt Service

Revenues
Investment earnings
Assessment payments

Total revenues

Expenditures
General govemment
Debt Service;
Principal
lnterest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Operating transfeE in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning ofyear

Fund balance. end of -,'ear

3.496

( 18,725) 77,269

S

I I,700

7.025
18.725

( 18,725)

215.246

$t96121

$
80.765
80.765

3.496

(68.847)
(68.847)

E,122

E6.684

$i5-r06

$
30.142
30.142

1,946

1.946

28,196

(25.220\
(25.220'l

2,976

24.208

$27J14

s
28.375
28.37 5

1,896

1.896

26,179

(23.673\
(23.673)

2,806

23.163

$25-969

74

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 185



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

"ft*
<7

Assessment
9t-2

Watermain
Debt Service

PFA
2001 A

Debt
Service

2014
Assessment

Bond

Assessment
93-l

Briarwood/
Vineyard

Debt Service

Total
Nonmajor

Debt
Service Funds

Revenues
lnvestment eamings
Assessment payments

Total revenues

Expenditures
Ceneral govemment
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (defi ciency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Othcr Iinancing sources (uses)

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end ofyear

1,596 2.546

1.596 2.546

I I .418 48.828

$
13.014
| 3.01.1

fl0.601)
( 10.601)

El7

12-57 5

$_13-392

$
51.374
5 t.374

G3.46s)
(43.46s)

5,363

47.900

$13263

$ 5,159
213-204
218.363

85,000
ll9.0l2
224.012

$54 s 5,213
416.E74
422.087

23,180

250,000
152.842
426.022

(3,935)

171,806
( l7l.806)

(3,935)

778.550

$11A5t5

(5,649) (r 7r,75 r )

171.806

165,000
6.805

171.805

171.806

55

37.303

$ l7.ll8

75

(5,649)

331.471

si2s-E22

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 186



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Balance Shect -

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
.lune 30,2020

"-h,
<,7

l.;quipnrcnt
lacplaccllrcnl

I)cvclopmcnt
lmpucl

Strccts & 'lrul'lic

l)cvclopnrcDl
Itnpact

I'r)licc l;acilil!

l)cvclopnrcnt
Inrpact

liirc Iacility

l)cvclop cnl
lmpoct

Citv lracililics

l)cvchpmcnt
lmpact

Slorm l)rain

Dcvcbpmcnt
lmpact
Scwcr

Assets
Cash and invcstmcnts
Accounts rccrivahlc
[)uc liom othcr lunds

'lotal asscls

l,iabilitics
Accounls payablc
lntcrfund payahlcs

'l-otal liuhililics

Fund balsnce
Rcslricted lirr:

Strccls and rodds
Capital pr(,jccls

( ommitlcd ldr:
Capital proiccts

As$igncd lbr:
I'lquipmcnl rcplilccmcnl

l.lnassignod
'l.otal lund halancr

lolal Iidhilitics illd lirnd halancc

lit.4ri9.02lt

7t0.603 1.489.021r

t6.412

16.432

1.48r).02It

691.t71

ii694.924
15.619

4.503
4.503

r4.503 )
(4.503 )

li27.5e9

27 -599

27.599

$2'l,see

$:1It3.096

3.200
.It6.296

1It6.296

386.296

$3E6,296

$s3.s33

53.53l

5l.5ll

53.533

$53,533

li603.91t2

603.9It2

4.500

4.50t)

599.4r,r2

599.482

$603,9E2

:i

$

694-t7t

$710,603

I.4It9.028

$1,489,021i

76

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 187



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Balance Sheet -

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
Junc 30,2020

"-:*"
<'z

Assets
( ash and invcst,nonts
Accounts rcccivablc
I)uc liom olhcr Iunds

'l-otal asscts

I)cvclopnrcnt
llnpact

l'orks and
I{ccrcation

$6(r6.977

666.977

666.971

666.911

$666,97',l

Long
Ilangc

I'lanning
Icc

l)cvclopmcnt
Inrpacl

I'uhlic I lsc
l;acililies

I)evclopmcnl
lnrpocl

( ollcclion

l)ovcloporcnl
lnrpacl
l'Lrhlic

lacililios

City
IIall

Construction

$355.93e

155 qt()

'lss qlo

355.939

$355,93e

li67,235

67.235

6'7.235

67.235

$67,235

$52.7 t4

52.'.7 t 4

52.714

$52,7t4

$42.226

42.226

42.226

42.226

$12,226

$5.3It5

5.385

5.385

5.385

$5,385

lit9.764

19.'7 64

19.'t64

t9.164

$ r9,?64

l,iabilities
Accounts puyablc
Inlcrllnd payahles

Iolal liabililios

Fund balance
I{cslrictcd li)r:

Strcets and roads
('apilal proicots

( bmmittcd li)[
Capital prcicots

Assigncd lbr:
liquipmcnt rcpluccmcnl

IJnassigncd
-lirlal l'und balancc

li)lal lidbilitics nd lirnd hulancc

77

l)cvclopmcnl
lnrpact

Opcn Spacc
AcLluisition

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 188



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Balance Sheet -

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
June 30,2020

:9"
\./

Ambcrwood
l'roicct

I ulclian
l)rojcct

Sclrna
Crossing
l)roicct

Caltrans
Mitigation

lrund

( apiLal

l'rojc0ls
l'arks

lotal
Nonnrajol

('apilal
l'11)jcots

Iunds

Assets
Cash and invcstmcnts
Accounts rcceivrblc
lnlcrlund rcccivablcs

'li)lal asscls

t,iabilitics
Accounls payablc
lnlerlund payablcs

li)1al liabililios

Fund balance
I{cslriotcd lbr:

Strecls and roads
Capilal proiccts

Conrmittcd lbr:
Capital proicols

Assignod li)r:
liquipmcnt rcplaccmcnt

l)nassigncd
'lbtal lund holanoc

'lbtal liabilitics and lund balancc

li27.790

27.'190

2.454

2.454

25.336

$n-J9t

1.642

1.642

6..150

6.505
l2.li5 5

( r 1.213)
( r 1.213)

rji I,612

3.704
3.704

(3.704)

{ 3.704)

$.,

s2t2.213

212-233

2t2.213

212.233

vEJ)1

li199.I00

199.100

l9(r.100

t99. t00

$J99J!A

$4,901,525
t'|,321
3.200

4.922.t)46

29.736
t4;n2
44.448

I,701,261
t.901.447

600.t39

694. t71
{ t9.420)

4.It77.591r

s4.922Jt46

$ ri

78

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 189



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Statcment of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
For the Year Ended June 30,2020

":9"
<7

Rcvcnucs
( hargcs lirl scrviccs
lnvcslmcDt oarnings
Miscclldncous

Ii)tal rcvcnucs

llxpendilurca
l\blic salcty
l'uhlio works
( ommunity dcvck,pmcnt
Rccrcatk n

Capital outlay
I)obl Scrvicc:

l'rincipal
lntcrcst and liscal charges

'lblalcxpcnditurcs

L\cuss (dclicicnc] ) ol rcvcnucs
ovsr (nndcr) cxponditurcs

Othcr linsnaing source! (uses)

Ofrcrating translcrs in
'lbtal othcr llnancing sourccs (uscs)

Ncl change in lirnd halunce

l;und halancc. hcginning ol ycar

lrund balancc, cnd ol ycar

liquipmcnt
l{cplaccmcnt

l)cvclopmcnt
lmprct

Strocts &
lrallic

109,579

l -379-449

UrlEgJzE

,)cvclopmcnl
Impact

Iblioc lraeility

I)ovclopmcnt
lmpuct

lrirc I cility

I)cvcl()pmcnt
lmpact

( ily liacilitios

l)cvelopmcnt
Impact

Sll)rm l)rnin

l)evslopmcnl
lmpaot
Scwsr

$ 64,092
I t.004

5 t4.471

7t.694

271i.8ltr

77.61

t.04lt
429.241

Ii5.236

lt5.2l6

60t.935

$694Ul

li I0.91 I

t0.9 | I

10.9

r0,91 |

16.688

l2zll!

$ 25,1t07
6.066

$ 33 t7

3.117

t3.14t

i0.0tx)

63.34n

(60.031)

(60,03 t)

r t3.564

tltlll

$ 9t2
9,564

10.476

54. t7lt

51.l7lt

(43.702)

(43,702)

643.t84

ll99rlE2

$ 88.175
23.5 7tt

$ t0.994

.!-12.1s3 t0.994

2.874

2-874

109.579 t0.994

3 t.87.1

3 t.lr73

3l.lr73

354.423

t1!!210

10.994

( r 5.,197)

$_a4ll13)

79
May 3, 2021 Council Packet 190



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Statcment of Rcvenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Nonmojor Capitrl Projects Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

"-b,
<7

l)cYclopmcnl
Impact

l'urks anrl
Rccrcatiun

l.ong
I{an8c

l'lanning
lrec

I)cvclopnrcnl
lrnpdet

I'ublic I lsc

lracilitics

l)cvclopmcnl
lnrpaot

( ollcction

l)cvclopmcnt
lrnpacl
I'uhlic

lracilitics

l)cvclopnrc l
Impact

Opcn Spacc
Acquisition

( ity llall
(inrslruelion

Rcvcnuos
( harg,es lbr scrviccs
lnvcslmcnl oanrings
Misccllancous

li)lal rcvcnucs

llrpcnditurcs
I'ubli'i srlct)
l'uhlic works
(i)nlmuni() dcvck)pmcnt
Rccrcation
( apitul outlil!
l)cht Scrvicc:

I'rincipal
Intcrcst and liscal chargcs

liltalcrpcndilurcs

llxccss (dcliaicnay) ol rcvcnucs
ovcr (undcr) cxpcndilurcs

Othcr linsncing \ouraes (uscs)
OpcrirtiDg lrirnslc$ in

li)lal othcr lirlancing sourccs (uscs)

Nct changc in liurLl hal.lncc

ljund balancc. hoginning ol ycar

$ 3 3.lt,t9
10.561

tii I7.lt50
5.636

44.4t0

{4.1t0

44.4|)

622.561

$666.e71

23.41r6

21.186

23.486

332.453

$355,939

$t2.63 t

I2.63 t

t2.63 I

r2.63 t

40.0It3

$52.7r4

li I.094

t.094

t.094

t.094

4 t.t32

$42,226

$ 27t

211

11t

27t

5.rt4

$5.3E5

t9.764

$t9,764

,lll

67.215

$67.235[und balancc. cnd ol ycar

80
May 3, 2021 Council Packet 191



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Stalement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balrnce -

Nonmajor Crpital Projects Funds
For the Year Ended June 30,2020

€*'
<'z

Amhcrwood
Projccl

'lutclian

Projecl

Sclma
Crossing
Projcct

Caltrans
MitiBation

I:ulrd

( upital
llroicct-

l'arks

li)tal
Nonrnajor

('apital I'rojcots
l\nds

Revcnue!t
('hurgcs lirr scniccs
ln\'cstmont carninBs
Misccllanr:ous

'Ii)tal rc!cnuos

J}Dcnditures
I'ublic sulLt)
l'ublic works
( on)munit] dcvck)pmcnl
l{ccrcation
(' pituloutlay
I)ohl scrvicc:

l'rincipal
lntcrcsl and liscal chargcs

'lotal cxpcndilurcs

l:xccss (dclicicncy) ol rcvcnucs
ovcr (undcr) cxpcndilurcs

Other finrltcilrg rources (uscs)
OpcralinB translcrs in

li)tal othcr Iinancing sourcqs (uscs)

Nct chunEc in lLnd b.rlancc

lrund balancc. hcginning ol ycar

liiI $

5.000
5.000

$ 270.603
66.409

464.599
801.6 t I

7 t.694
70.,100
23. t l.l
14.29 t

365.-t t2

l27.6lt I

t.04{t
6't3.940

I )7 .671

107.500

107.500

235.t7 t

4.642.421

$4JZZJ9!

25.336

$x-ll!

20.2 t8
20.2t8

23. t 1,1

23.114

(2.t96)

(2.896)

(8.317)

$LLL2I])

r4.29t
li6.lt94

$2J22jj

t0t.m5

(96, lll5 )

107.500

107.500

r t.3 r5

187.785

sulu!
13.704)

$(.tt04)Irund halancc. cnd ol ycar

l
May 3, 2021 Council Packet 192



CITY O[ SELMA
Combining Statement of Net Position

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
June 30,2020

"-?:,(z

Pioneer
Village

Culrural
Ans Garbage

Total
Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Assets
Current assets

Cash and investments
Accounls receivable, net

Total current assets

\oncurrent assets:

Capital assets:

Machinery and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation

Total noncunent assets

Total assets

Deferred outfl ows of resources:
Deferred outflows related to pensions

Deferred outflows related to OPEB
Total deferred outflow of resources

Liabilities
Cunent liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued wages,/benefi ts

Deposits
Interfund payables

Total cunent liabilities

Noncunent liabilities:
Net pension liability
Net other posl-employment benefits liability

Total noncunent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred infl ows of resources:
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Deferred inflows related to OPEB

Total deferred inflow of resources

Net position
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt
Unrestricted

$ 49,097

19.190

284,182
(265.99 | )

l8.r9t

3,658

4.161

S

3.960
sr29.834

3.960 129.834

3,5t5
(3.5 l5 )

2,956
406

3-362

$ t78.931
4.353

183.284

2E7,697
(269.506)

18.t91

6,614
909

7 -523

67.68 t 3.960 129.834 20t.,175

'198

306

783

689
6;785
2,304
6.858

16.636

I l'7;70',7

I l7 .707

t2.127

s)u27

| 19,194
7,09t
2,304
6.858

135.4.17

t4..189
81

10.360

2l.16l

tE,t9l
3 t .,t0,1

$ 49J9t

I t,7t 3
4.746

t6.459

126.4061

$c6306)

lt oq( I t7 ;707 172.266

3s0
283

783
633

1..116633

r8.l9l
l'7.125

26,202
10.617
36.819

Total net position

82

tl5J6

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 193



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30,2020 **

<7

Pioneer
Villaee

Cultural
Arts Carbage

Total
Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Operrtirg Expenscs
Personnel services
Services and supplies
Other intemal services
Deprec iarion

Total operating expenses

lncome (loss) before transfers

Transfers
Transfes in

Changes in net position

\et position (delicit). beginning ofyear

Net position (deficit). end ofyear

6,495
59,773
2,688
1.054

70.010

s
1,931

26,603
5.422

33.956

s
l 1,E60
r E,7E5

102.12 |

132-'166

39,02r
I15,189

3 t,809

lE6.0l9

(53.253 )

43.000

( 10,2s3)

6.153)

s126.406)

$ 1,42E.E43

1.,128.8,1i

r.125.J09

t.425.409

3.434

3,434

E.693

s_)427

s1,428,843
13.791

45.3E8
r07.543

r.595.565

45.516
1.600.371

34.19't
1.054

t.681.43E

(85.873 )

sr.000

(27,8731

63.1t9

$ -35J16

r36.051)

t5.000

(2r,0s4)

70.649

$_49195

83

Operrting Revenues
Charges for services
Charges for services
Rents
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 194



") <_ dl 6l

^-l=l

f!

qt a

-t-nl n-

J

-: rl -]"I

s. -l..il -l-l I

..! -l- 
lol

9!l 9l

^-l-l

'T<" F.l -l

tll1

:l
tl

d a1o1't-l^'11
€. -l .cl

-]!!l

I €.1 
^rl

oc ri ^l
*11

-: <l F]

=- "1 "l

I

sl

f,

i

=l

'l -l
tt

I

^I
'l

:.1I

- a<,
c- -i .ol

- -1-l

3, 3l cl
'-t1

-t
-1
Dl

_-t

n

,l
a:j

5

EI

_? =E t.= E- rt 6

Erzzz

E AEr q_!

, i:r^a:

?= a ! cE-==.i?
E i<<i-

!t=Z

2991

,!

a'E

,.; == *
? ! >1')
i ! =- a
t= 9 t, ?
? q> --i =

?= z =

E !i<=
it :

- .'!:.

;t

3-

-E'?!

I

7z ic
,== --

a -E_ 
t "

"$ ll

l

I

tt

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 195



€ €lol a- -l .a
d 6l 

^rl 
6 -l \a,

\o- \ol I o- .1 -ilF -l \ol o\ -l ol..r -.{ .\rl = -l \dll- l3
616l + 6l Fl
61 6l F- F.l .!ri
..ol 'ol 6. r-l 9l
-l -l c cnl o,,ll
-.1 -i .,r <'l tllll - dl ..!l

ll lGal

h t'-l .!lh 6l-l.o_ €l nl q
6 \ol .\lh -l F-l

^1",1

...r -l o1l-r a

.'{l
I

cl 6 ol t-ll61 6 F-l .-llr:l ..t -l sj
Fl l.' ol rilI ci Ftl \dlI-t^1

I I G.ll

1l r-J

lxl
n6

oo- $l r.ll

\ol .. -l +
-l 4 F.l r/\ol v) c,l] .ql
6l O a-l a-.rI 6 ..rl l..lI .i .{l +ltta

61 6 6l .-.1

-l F \ol <nil o- i .'ll
-t 6 €l .-ll
-l r'- al .dlI .J el \dlI rJl

-il it-
Nt \o

I-l

.1
F.l

-l
O.l

I

o.

F.

o- q .a v', r,

- a. - lo\l
- --i l-Jtl

rr- F.l -,

{.r 1..rl

ool ol

l?l

al o
.! s-
o\ o\

l al oJ

:l
-1
sl

N F.lC l

F-

a-
r-l'-

F

-i

.-E

'to

.9

.=

Z

a

Z

o

o

l-)

93,!cx

lr9
ai !.)

=ai,aPL E C':

+b; c

zl

o

Eo

s
o.o

A

Ag ee

E 3 Tb E
E.L- dt - =.I'! H E E 6:E- 6' (r't (!
.r9 - = 

q:
e 

= 
o.: iJL:

r;>94
Eddoo

d, -o 9=
e u==

-E 9J -
E tE

_'o

.'i y

.$

.E

!l ao

I

z

OT

ltO4!:
E r.iC!:

< 3 tr '-:
2'dit- 

=- 7 v'); e.=€
:rJ.9E

u 9.:>iEy

"5

a
E!

U

I

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 196



CITY OF SELMA
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities -

Agency Funds
June 30, 2020

;,5
<7

Finance
Clearing

Planning
('lcaring

I'ublic
Works

Clearing

Senior
Citizens
Clearing

$24,428

24.428

t2,057

t2.371
24.428

li

Police
Dcpartmcnl

Clearing

(lralllli
Reward

Irund

Total
Agency
Funds

Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Total assels

t,iabilities
Accounts payable
Deposits
Other

Total liabilities

Net Position:

Tolal net position

$59,568
3.430

62.998

$20, r88

20.t88

6t,t98
| ,800

726
2,r35

t7.327
20. t 8862.998

5 It

$8,459

s/59

8.459
E.459

s

9(r9

si969

ej9

-.9(9

$

:])700

700

700
700

x;

$ n4,3 t2
3.43 0

t l't.742

73,981
4,904

38.t57
|7.742

s

{t6

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 197



":9,
(7

SINCLE AUDIT REPORTS

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 198



"ft*
<7

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
W ITH GO''Efu\MENT A U DITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor and Members ofthe City Council
City of Selma
Selma California

We have audite( in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Uniled States

of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller Ceneral of the United Slates, the financial statements of the govemmental
activilies, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Cily of Selma- as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City of Selma's basic financial statements, and have issued

our report thereon dated April | 2, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit ofthe financial statements, we considered the City ofSelma's
intemal control over financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances for lhe purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,

bur not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Selma's intemal
control. Accordingly, we do nol express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Selma's intemal
control.

A deficiency in internal conlrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A malerial weakness is a deficiency, or a combinalion
of deficiencies, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable possibility lhat a malerial misstatemenl

ofthe entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or delected and conected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combinalion of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less

severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit aftention by those charged with
govemance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the fiIst paragraph of
this seclion and was not designed to identi[ all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any

deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

87

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 199



The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City olSelma
Selma. Califomia

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Selma's financial slatements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations. contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the delermination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express

such an opinion. The resuhs of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other maners thal
are required to be reporled undet Gorernment Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this repon is solely to describe the scope of our lesting of intemal control and

compliance and the results ofthal testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe City's
intemal control or on compliance. This repon is an integral part ofan audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standords in considering the City's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly,
Ihis communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Clovis. Califomia
Ap ,l 12,2021

"t*
<'z

88

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 200



"ft*
<.7

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACII
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRA]II AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY TEE ]UN1EQ&M IUIDANEE

The Honorable Mayor and Members ofthe City Council
City of Selma
Selm4 Califomia

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Selma's compliance with the types of compliance requirements

described in OMB Compliance Supplement tllm,t could have a direct and malerial effect on each ofthe Ciry
of Selma's major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2020. City of Selma's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibilit)

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and

conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs and Uniform Guidance.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Selma's major federal
programs based on our audil of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted

our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits conrained in Government Auditing Standards, issued

by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200 {,lniform Adninistrative Requiremenls, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance

with rhe types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City
of Selma's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audil does not provide a legal determination of City of Selma's

compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion. City of Selma complied, in all material respects, with the tyPes of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direcl and material effect on each of its major federal
progmms for the year ended June 30, 2020.

89

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 201



The Honorable Mayor and MembeB ofthe City Council
City of Selma
Selma. Califomia

Other Matters

The resulls of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are required
to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2020-01 . Our opinion on City of Selma's each major
federal program is not modified with respect to these matters.

City of Selma's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Selma's response was not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in lhe audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Selma is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
intemal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Selma's intemal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effecl on each major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures thal are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
intemal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but nol for purpose ofexpressing
an opinion on the effecliveness of intemal conlrol over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an

opinion on the effectiveness ofthe Cily of Selma's intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal contol over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance, such that

there is a reasonable possibility that malerial noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a

federal program will not be prevented. or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signilicant
deficiency in internal control oyer compliance is a deficiency, or a combination ofdeficiencies. in intemal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program lhat is less severe

than a material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the

first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identifi all deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any

deficiencies in intemal control over compliance what we considered to be material weaknesses.

However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose to this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of intemal control over compliance and the resulls ofthat testing based on the requirements ofthe
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Clovis. Califomia
April 12. 2021

"2t*
<z

90

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 202



CITY OF Sf LMA
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2020 "ft*
<7

Federal Grantor/
Pass-Through Granror/

Program Title

U,S. Deoanment of Transportation
Federal Highway Administration Passed

through Califomia Depanment of Transponation
Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction

Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction

Highway Planning and Construction

Total U.S. Department of Transportation

U.S. Department of Housine & Urban Develooment
Direct Prograrns
Office of Community Planning & Development
CDBG Block Grants
CDBG Block Grants

Total U.S. Depanment ofHousing &
Urban Developmenl

U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Program

Edward Byne Justice Assistance Grant

Total U.S. Depanment ofJustice

U.S. Department of Homeland Securitv
Direct Program

Assistance to Firefighters Grant

20.205
20.205
20.205

sTPL-5096-036
sTPL-5096-037
sTPL-5096-03E

Federal
Catalog
l'-umber

14.218
14.2t8

Federal
Expenditures

Amounts
Provided to

Subrecipients

20.205
20.205

20.205 ATPL 5096(033) 70.373

t.29E.542

Pass-Through
Grantors
Number

cMAQ-50%(035)
cMAQ 5096(03e)

$ 14.460
920.109

I E.750

953.3 t9

248,750
26.100

274.850

26.E93
3.565

30.458

30.458

4.995

4.995

282-t39

282.139

il6t6'rH

CDBG prog #16-651
CDBG prog # lE-651

t6.73E 2018-DJ-BX-0690

97.0,1-1 20 t8-FR-00182

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

See accompanying notes to schedule ofexpenditures of federal awards.
9l

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 203



CITY OF SELMA
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

June 30, 2020

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Basis of Accountinq

The accompany Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the awards transaclions of
the City recorded in the govemmental and proprietary fund types.

Govemmental fund financial statemenls are reported using the current financial resources

measuremenl focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon

as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered lo be available when they are

collected within the curent period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the currenl period.

For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the curent fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary funds. Under this method revenues are

recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded al the time liabilities are incurred. Proprietary
funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses for nonoperating items. Operating revenues and

expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

The accompanying Schedule presenls the activity ofall lederal financial assislance programs ofthe
City. Federal financial assistance received directly from federal agencies as well as federal
financial assistance passed through the Stare of Califomia are included in the Schedule.

The Schedule was presented only from the accounts of various grant programs and, therefore, does

not present the financial position or results ofoperations ofthe City.

Indirect Cost Rate

The City of Selma has elected not to use the l0-percent de minimus indirect cost rate allowed under

the Uniform Guidance.

"ft*
\'7

92

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 204



CITY OF SELMA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Y€ar Ended June 30.2020 "**
<7

Part I - Summary of Auditor's R€sults

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued:

Intemal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identifi ed?

Significant deficiency(s) identified not considered
to be material weakness(es)?

Noncompliance material to financial statements notes?

Federal Awards

Intemal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identifi ed?

Significanl deficiency(s) identified not considered
to be material weakness(es)?

Type ofauditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required lo be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516 (a)?

Unmodified

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

X

XNo

No

No

No

No

X

x

X

Unmodified

Programs Subjected to Audit Procedures as Major Programs

Malor Programs Federal CFDA Number

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205
Total Major Program Expenditures

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards
Percentage of Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs:

X Yes No

Federal
Expenditure

s 1.298.542

$129&!{2
Sl-616-!iB
____30=35%

s 750.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

9l

Yes XNo

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 205



CITY OF SELMA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Year Ended June 30,2020

Part Il - Financial Statement Finding Section

Sisnifi cant Defi ciencies. Material Weaknesses and Instances of NoncomD liance Related to the Financial

".r?,
<7

Statemenls:

l-one

Part lll - Federal Awards Finding and Questioned Costs Section

Signifi cant Deficiencies, Material Weaknesses and Instances ol Noncompliance Related 1o the Financial

2020-01 ProcurementPolicv

Statements:

Condition:

All though the City has policies conceming purchasing and procurement, the policies are not

written in accordance with Uniform Guidance Standards.

Criteria:

Uniform Guidance slandards require written procurement policy

Effect ofCondition:

The City's procurement policies and procedures are not in compliance with the Uniform Guidance.

Cause of Condition:

City management was unaware oflhe Uniform Guidance Procurement policy requirements.

Recommendation:

We recommend that management compile a written procurement policy to be in conformity with
Uniform Cuidance.

Response:

Management is in the process ofcreating a written procurement policy-

94

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 206



CITY OF SELMA
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

For the Year Ended June f,O,2020 **
<z

None

95

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 207



;,9"
<7

APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT REPORT

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 208



"ft*
<,7

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
. 

REPORT ON
APPLYING AGREED.UPON PROCED I-IRES

To the Honorable Mayor and Members ofthe City Council
of the City of Selma

Selma, Califomia

We have performed the procedures enumeraled below to the accompanying Appropriations Limit
Schedule of the City of Selm4 Califomia (City) for the year ended June 30, 2020. These procedures,

which were agreed to by the City and the League of California Cities (as presented in the publication

entitled Agreed-upon Procedures Applied to the Appropriations Limitation Prescribed by Article XIll-B
of the California Constilution), were perlormed solely to assist you in meeting the requirements of
Secrion 1.5 of Article XIII-B of the Califomia Constitution. The City management is responsible for the

Appropriations Limit Schedule. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance
with attestation standards established by lhe American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants. The

sufliciency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this repon.
Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below

either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or any other purpose.

The procedures performed and our findings are described below:

We obtained the completed worksheets used by the City to calculate its appropriations limit
for the year ended June 30, 2020. and determined that lhe limit and annual calculation
factors were adopted by resolution of City Council. We also determined that the population

and inflation options were selected by a recorded vote ofthe City Council.
Firrdins No exceptions were noted as a result ofour procedures.

2. For the accompanying Appropriations Limit Schedule, we added the prior year's limit to the

total adjustments, and agreed the resulting amount to lhe current year's limit.
Frzding: No exceptions were noted as a result ofour procedures.

3. We agreed the current year information presented in the accompanying Appropriations
Limit Schedule to corresponding information in worksheets used by the City.
Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result ofour procedures.

4. We agreed lhe appropriations limit presented in the accompanying Appropriations Limit
Schedule to lhe appropriations limit adopted by the City Council.
flirdr-xg: No exceplions were noted as a result ofour procedures.

We were not engaged to and did nol conduct an examination, the objective of which would be the

expression of an opinion on the accompanying Appropriation Limit Schedule. Accordingly, we do not

express such an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our

attenlion that would have been reponed to you. No procedures have been performed wilh respect to the

determination of the appropriation Iimit for the base year, as defined by Article XIII-B of the Califomia
Constitution

96

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 209



Selma. Califomia

This repon is intended solely for the informalion and use of the City Council and managemenl of
the City and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Clovis. Califomia
April 12,2021

;,5
<z

91

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 210



CITY OF SELMA
APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O2O

"-r?,
<z

Amount

A. Appropriations Limit FY 2019

B. Calculation Factors:
l) Population increase 7o

2) Inflation increase 7o

3) Total adjustment %

C. Annual Adjustment Increase

D. Other Adjustmens:
l) Loss responsibility ()
2) Transfer to private (-)
3) Transfer to fees ()
4) Assumed responsibility (+)

E. Total Adjustments

F. Appropriations Limit FY 2020

s30.900.939

1.0045
1.0385

t.043l7ll

1,134,094

1.334,094

s32tl5-0x

98

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 211



CITY OF SELMA
NOTES TO APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O2O

NOTE I - PURPOSE OF LIMITED PROCEDURES REVIEW

Under Article XIII-B of the Califomia Constilution (the Gann Spending Limitation Initiative),
Califomia govemmental agencies are restricted as to the amount of annual appropriations from
proceeds oflaxes. Effective for years beginning on or after July l, 1990, under Section l-5 of Article
XIII-B, the annual calculation of the appropriations limit is subject to a limited procedures review in
connection with the annual audit.

NOTE 2 - METHOD OF CALCULATION

Under Section 10.5 of Article XIII-B, for fiscal years beginning on or after July, 1990, the
appropriations limit is required to be calculated based on the limit for the fiscal year 1986-87,
adiusted for the inflation and population factors discussed in Notes 3 and 4 below.

A Califomia govemmental agency may use as its population factor either the annual percentage
change of the jurisdiction's own population or the annual percentage change in population of the
county where the jurisdiction is located. The factor adopted by lhe City for fiscal year 2020
represents the annual percentage change in population for the City.

A Califomia govemmental agency may use as its inflation factor either the annual percentage change

in the 4d quarter per capita personal income (which percentage is supplied by the State Departmenl of
Finance) or the percentage change in the local assessment roll from the preceding year due to the
change of local nonresidential construction. The factor adopted by the City for fiscal year 2020
represents the annual percenlage change in the local assessment roll from the preceding year due to
the change in local nonresidential construction.

A Califomia govemment agency may be required to adjust its appropriations limit when certain
events occur such as the transfer of responsibility for municipal sewices to, or from, another
govemment agency or private entity. The City had no such adjustments for fiscal year 2020.

"l:*
<7

99

\OTE 3 - POPULATIOT- FACTORS

NOTE 4 _ INFLATION FACTORS

NOTE 5 - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 212



CITY MANAGER'S /STA-FF'S REPORT
CITY COUNCIL MEETING:

May 3,2021

ITEMNO:
4

SUBJECT: Consideration ofapproval ofa $2,200.00 expenditure for Srucnrral
Engineering Services for Lincoln Park Starues Installation and extend
consffuction timeline for the project covered in the Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with American Legion Post # 12

RECOMMENDATION: City Council consider approving an expendiore of$2,200 for
Strucnrral Engineering Services for the installation of the Statues at the Lincoln Park
Veteran's Plaza Improvement Project and extend construction timeline ofproject.

DISCUSSION: As part of the MOU agreement, American Legion Post #72 was covering
the expenses for the improvement and development of the Lincoln Park Veteran's Project.
The City of Selma would be assisting with normal park improvements, such as sprinklers,
maintenance of trees, plants, etc. Through this agreement, American Legion has expended

$35,000 on the statues, $21,120 on the masonry improvement, $4,300 for electrical and
hghting, with an additional electrical work to be completed and approximately $4,600 on
landscaping trees and plants.

Due to safety and liability issues presented with ongoing park usage, the City Staff required
a structural engineering report be conducted based on the installation of the statues. The
statutes are quite heavy and for safety concems due to weather, including high winds, etc.
proper installation was required to reduce potential accidents / incidents arising from the

statues potentially falling. This expense for the strucnrral engineering report totals $2,200.

The anticipated costs of the entte project exceeded the original estimate by the American
Legion Post #12 and this additional cost would place a hardship on the American Legion
Post #12. (American Legion Post #12 has also commented on assisting with the Marquee
at Lincoln Park if approved and shade covering once Brentlinger Park is approved for new
playground equipment.)

Staff is recommending City Council grant an extension of the project construction timeline
allowing for the City to cover the Strucnral Engineering Repon. Funds can be made

available to cover the expense. Recreation Professional Services has $3,990 available.

Attachments: August I 7, 2020 City Council Agenda Item Staff Report.
MOU between City of Selma and American Legion Post # 12.

March 15, 2021 City Council Project Staff Report Update.

BACKGROLJIYD: At the August 17, 2020 City Council meeting, City Council approved a

request to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City of Selma
and American Legion Post#I2.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 213

reynar
Typewritten Text



COST: (t*t w of itct t to b pafthoyd in tu
b.lot')

BUDGET IMPACT: (Ertet srrrouttt this
norr-budgded itent *'ill impaa thb yean'budga
in bor belor, - if budgcted, ertel NONE).

$2,200.00 $2,200.00

FLJNDING: @ntel thc f,.t dittg souce fot this
itcm in box bclow - iflrrrrd eri$s, art6 the bslancc
in the fund).

ON.GOINGCOST: (Enkr the arrrourrt
thot ,,ill need to b€ budgacd cach ycar in bor
below - ifonc-tirnc cos, cnlet NONE).

Funding Source: General Fund.

Fund Balance: FY 2019-20 $6,717 ,901

None

RECOMMENDATION: Council considfl approving an expenditure of $2,200.00 for
Strucnrral Engineering Services for the installation of the Statues at the Lincoln Park
Veteran's Plaza Improvement Project and extend construction timeline ofproject.

/s/ 04/29 /2021

Mikal Kirchner, Director of Recreation Date

04/29/202t

Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Date

I

I

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 214



RESOLUTION NO. 2O2O _

A RESOLUTION OF TIIE CITY COUNCIL OF TITE
CITY OF SELMA, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING A
REQIJEST TO ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING (MOU) BETWEEN TTM CITY OF
SELMAAIYD AMERICAN LEGION POST #T2

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of Lincoln Park ("Park"), generally located at
McCall Avenue and Rose Avenue, in downtown Selma; and

WHEREAS, the American l-egion is a patriotic veterans organization devoted to mutual
helpfulness, and is the nation's largest wartime veterans service organization; and

WHEREAS, the Park was established n 1912, and a portion of the Park, known as
Veterans Plaza, which is generally located at the comer of Mill and McCall Avenue was
dedicated to veterans to honor their service to our country, on July 6, 1999; and

WHEREAS, the City and the American Legion desire to partner to make improvements
in the Veteran's Plaza area ofthe Park to honor our nation's veterans: and

WHEREAS, the City and the American Legion desire to enter into this MOU for the
purpose of allocating responsibility for the improvements at the Park, and payment of
associated costs.

NOW, THERXFORI, THE CITY COUNCIL OF TIIE CITY OF SELMA
DOES IIER-EBY FIND, DETERMINE, AND RESOLYE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1.

reference.
The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by

SECTION 2. The American Legion Post #12 is a valuable community parmer, and
consistently works with the City to promote community events, provide resources for a
sffonger economy and create and maintain a sense of community pride. The MOU serves as
a public purpose in that the plaza improvements aim to attract many residents and
individuals from neighboring communities to the City's Lincoln Park, and downtown area,
thereby serving as vehicle to recognize and honor all branches of the United States Armed
Forces.

SECTION 3. The City Council hereby approves the City Manager to enter into the
MOU on behalf of the City of Selma with American Legion Post #12.

WHEREAS, the American l.egion proposes improvements to the Veteran's Plaza area ol
the Park including the addition of four statutes; four new cement benches to replace the existing
benches; replacement of the existing flagpolc; raising the height of the outer masonry wall to the
height ofthe inner masonry wall; and the installation ofnew landscaping including bushes, trees,
and plants, collectively, thc "Landscaping Improvements"; and

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 215



SECTION 4. The American Legion Post #12 shall comply with the City's
Municipal Code during construction and shall provide the City with all information
required by Ciry stafl including, but not limited to, the following:

l. Proof of insurance with the City named as additional insured.
2. Indemnification of the Ciry.

ON 5. The provisions of this Resolution are severable and if any provision,
clause, sentence, word or part thereof is held illegal, invalid, unconstitutional, or
inapplicable to any person or circumstances, such illegality, invalidity, unconstitutionality,
or inapplicability shall not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions, clauses,
sentences, sections, words or pans thereof of the Resolution or their applicability to other
persons or circumstances.

SECTION 6. That the City Clerk shall certifu to the adoption of this Resolution and
that the same shall be in full force and effect.

PASSED, APPROVED AIYD ADOPTED this l7'h day of August, 2020, by the
following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

OC
0c
0c
OC

OUNCIL MEMBERS:
OUNCIL MEMBERS:
OUNCIL MEMBERS:
OUNCIL MEMBERS:

Louis Franco, Mayor

ATTEST:

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 216



Th

nr&d,

r\ttauhlncnt A
MEMORANI)I.JM oT' UN DER.STANDTNG

(Vctcran's Plaza)

is Mcnrorarrdunr of IJnticrstanding ('MOti") is madc and cntered into rhis ]{ day
2020. ("lillbctivc l)ate"1 by and bctween thc City of'Selma. a municipal corJxrration

(the "City") tnd Sclma Posl /ll2 Anrerican [,egion, a (]alifirnria corporation. (the "American
l.cgion"). City and Amcrican Legion are co[ectivcly referrcd (o hcrein as the "Par1ics" and
individually as "l)alty.''

RECll r\LS

WHtRI,IAS, the ('ily is rhc owncr ol'l.incoln l,ark (''Park"), gencrally locatcd at McCall
Avenuc and ltose Avcnue. in d(l\4nto$,n Selma: and

WHERIAS, the Amcrican Legion is a patriotic r.eterans organizatitrn dcvotetl to rnutual
helplulncss. antl is thc nation's largcst wartimc vcterans scrrice organization: and

ll'HERliAS, the [)ark was established in ] 91 2. and a portion of thc l,ark. known as
Vetcrans Plaza, which is gcncrally locatcd at the corncr of Nlill and lvlcCall AvenLre wa.s

dcdicated to vcterans to honor thcir scrvice trr our country, on July 6. 1999; and

WHERI:AS, the ( ity and the Anrcrican Legion dcsire to p rlncr to rnake inrpnrvemcnts
in the Vcturan's Plaza area ol thc })ark ttr honrrr our nation's vqtcrans: and

\!'HEREAS, the Amcrican Legion proposcs iurprovenrents to thc Veteran's l)laza area ol'
the Park includine thc additron ol- lbur statutes: four new ccmerrt benches tu leplace thc cxisting
benches; rcplacement of thc existing flagpole; raising the height ol the outer nrasonr!' wall to rhe
hcight ot the inncr rnasonry waill and thc installation of ncw landscapiug including bushes, trccs.
and plants, collectivcly, the "[.andscaping Improvements"; and

WHEREAS, the City and the Amcrican l.cgion desire to cntcr into this N{Otl tbr the
pulpose olallocating responsibility for thc improverncnts at the Park. and payment olassociatcd
cosls-

AGREtlt 1,.\-t

NOW, 
.l'l 

ltiREF( )Rl-., ltrr and in consideration of the mutual c(rveoants conti.rined herein, the
City and lhc American l.cgion agrcc as follow's:

l. l)csien of l'ark lmDrovcmcnls rnd l'at'nrcnl of ('osts. \\'ithout the- requrrenrcnt
of noticc or demand on the part of the City, American [.cgion shall providc the City with the
conceptual drawing and plans of the l.andscaping lnlprrrveincnts at tllc Park, within 90 dlys ot'
thc l-.lfcctivc [)atc of this MOLI. unless cxtcnded in writing by thc Partics. '[he Amcrican Lcgion
shall pay all costs and expenses associated with thc conccptuai drtrwings oI the l.andscaping
lmpro,v emorts.

4t4u

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 217



Annroval of Landscrninq lmnrovcmcnls. Withour thc requiremenr ol'
notice or dcrnarrd un the part of tlre Amer.ican [-cgion. the Citt, shall
analyzc thc conceptual drawing's dcsign, and compliancc lvirh local, statc.
antl fedclal laws zrnd rcgulations within 90 days of thL- conccptual
dlarving's complction. unless cxtcndcd in writing hy thc l,arties. The City,
in its solc and absolutc discretion, shall prcsen,e the right to rcjecr thc
conceptual drawing and plans tbr Landscaping lmproventenls, rvi(h or
lvithout caLrse. ln thc cvr:nt thc Ciity apprcrves the conccptLul drawings, the
Anrcricirn Legion shall transt'er all rights. title and inrcrcst in the drarvings
to thc ('ity. as permitred by law.

l. l)cnosi I (,I l-\tinlate(l ( osts. Upon approval b1.- the L'it1 of'thc Landscapinu
lmprovenlcnls, thc city shall causc an enginccf's cstinrate to bc pcrlirrrned to dctcrmine the
valLrc of thc work. [)rior to thc ('ily's issuance of l Rcquest for Proposals {br thc [,andscapi:rg
lmprovcments. American l.egion shall dcposit with thc City the [otal amount o['the ensinci:r's
estimatc. plus a 20 perccnt contingency ("1)eposit"). Within 30 days ol'reccipt of the Deposit.
unless extendcd in wriring by thc Parties. rhe city shall put the l.andscape Improvcmcnls out kl
hid, in accorCance rvith all applicablc laws.

l. llcview of Bids. ln thc cvctlt lltc l()wcst rcsponsive and rcsponsiblc hid rcccivcd
by the City cxccctls the cngincer's estimatc, thc City shall notily thc Amcrican Lcgion in writing.
rvithin five tlays. lhc Amcrican l.cgion shall thcn ha'e ten days to dcposit rvith thc city thr.-

dillcrcnce between thc original !'nginccr's cstimatc and thc amount of thc lo',vest birl. plus thc 20
percent contingcncy ("[ncrcased Deposit"). or it may terminatc this Agreentcnt in its solc
discretion. In thc crent the'Amt'rican Legion fails to subrnit thc [ncrcasecl Deposit. thc City shall
havc no obligatirrn l() o\vard thc projcct.

4. ('itv's Oblipations. Within 45 days ot'rcceipt of the bids lor the l.andscaping
lmprovemcnts. anrl tlre lnr,rcascd Deposit (ilrcquired), thc City shall award thc bid to rhe lowcst
rcsponsive and rcsponsiblc bidde-r, as required by law, or may reject all bids and conrplete the
[,andscaping Inrprovcmcnts using its own fiorccs. in whieh case. the Amcrican t-egion is still
responsiblc lor all costs associated therewith. In exchangc lor thc American Lcgion's
I-andscaping Impn)vemcnts, in the vcteran's l'laza area ofthe Park, the City shall. at its sole cosr
and expense, rcmovc all tree stumps: rcmove all trcc root.s or cut thcrr to gntund levclt adjust the
sprinklcr system to accommodatc thc nerv landscaping; and shatl removc the banner signs and
polcs dircctly in lront of Veteran's Plaza by August 3l, 2019, unless extendcd in wr.iting by thc
l'anics ("City lmpror,'emcnts"). The City Improvements may be inch,rdcd in thc bid docunrents
lol thc project. howcver thc Amcrican Legion shall nor bc responsiblc for any paymcnrs rclated
to the City Improvemcnts. and said coqs shall not bc included in the Amcrican Legion's l)cptrsit.
or lncrcascd Deposit.

5. lncrees cd ( osls l)urinc ( unslruction. ln lhe evcnt there arc change ordcrs
drrring constructiott ofthc Landscaping Improvcmcnts that c.tlse thc cost of'tho proicct to excccd
thc amount ofthe l)eposit or Incrcased Dcposit. thc Ciity shall notity thc American t,egion within
trve davs ol lcaming ol'thc incrcascd costs. 'l hc American l,cgion shall thcn have ten da!s to
dcposit with thc City the additional project costs.

l

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 218



6. ()rr ncrshitr ol l.anrlrra Dinq lnlnror cmrnls.
[-:pon installation ofany statuc. and acccptancd ofany laudscapc or othcr improvcments

in Vcterans l'laza hy thc City, that werc pcrlbnned under this Agrecnrcnt, lhc Amcrican Lcgion
hereby donatcs Landscaping Improvcmenls to thc (lity.

7. lllsintenancc Costs. Anrcrican Lcgion shall pay to thc City hy June 30 cach
ycar, lhc amount of$500 {br rnaintenancc cosls. including thc upkeep. repair or rcplacemcnt ot'
the Landscapc lmprovemcnts, inclLrding thc statucs, park henchcs, nlits(lnrv and lighting, hut not
limited to (Maintcnance Cost). In the event ol'sonrc rrcccssary replaccnrcrrt. repair. or damage to
thc l.andscape lmprovcmsnts, Amcrican Legion will hc notificd of thc cstinratcd cost and givcn
the opponunity to rcpair or rcplacc the darnaged itern. at its cost. lf Anlcrican l.cgion tirils to pay
lor such rcpair or replacerncnt, thc Citt- may allcr ten days' lloticc to Anrerican l,cgion removc
thc damaged arliclc. or. rcpair or rcplace it. Thc City rvill provide thc tnaintenance relating to thc
splinklers. trees and plant landscaping, plaza clcaning. mowing, ets. Nlolrrr vchicles shall not hc
allowcd on thc Plaza itscll'with the exception ol'nririntenancs vchisles as rcquircd by the ('ity ol'
Selma.

8. l lolirlar' 'l'rcc. 'l hc l)artics agrec that thc Landscaping lmprovenlents shall not
intr,-rltre with the (iity's placement ol thc (lity's annual holiday trce.

9. Termination of MOU. l'rior to the award of anv bid fbr rhc l.andscape
Improvemcnts, under this fvtOU, cither Party rnay terminate this MOLJ hy rvritten notjce to rhc
othsr Party so long as notice ofintcnl k) terminatc is giv,,'n b the othcr Party ar Ieast tivc (5)
calcndar da) s prior ttr tcnnination. Alicr the awartl ola bid lbrthc Landscapc lmprovemcnts,
City may Lcnninate this Agrccment firr an1" lawlul reason. or causc, by giving nincty (9()) dals
written noticc and during that nincty dav period, Amcrican Legion ma."- renrove all statucs,
bcnches and other nrasrrnry iterns installcd as part o[thc Landscape lmprovcmcnts. If removal of
those improrcments shall rcquire. despitc rcasonably diligencc olAmerican l.cgion, longer than
ninety days an additional sixty (60) days shall bc grantcd American Lcgion within which tu
rcmove all such statutcs, benches and othcr masonry improvemcnts. Any rcmovll olany item trr
articlc by r\merican Lcgion following the scrvice of a Noticc to l erminats thc Agrecrnent by the
(lity shall hc carried out in a manner that lcavcs tlrc real propertv in the condilion it would have
bccn had these articles nol been installed. [,awtirl rcason rrr cause to tcrminatc includcs an1,

roason the City'('ouncil oICity deterrnincs t() in the intcrcst olthc Oity. Icrminatitrn olthis
Agrccmcnt must he bascd on a lbur-lifih's (4/5's) vote of thc City Council. Llpon tcrmination ol'
this MOLJ, thc City shall relund to Amgrican I-cgion any unencumbered Deposit/lncrcased
Deposit amount. I'ursuant to thc provisions oI Scction 6 herein, all rights and interest in any ol'
the [,andscaping lruprovemcnls thal arc not removcd prior to the expiralion ol'the giving of
ninety days Notice o['l'ermination by thc City, or any extension of'said nincty day period, shall
thern becomc the pfl)perty of thc City.

10. Tcrm. 'l'his MOtl shall commcncc on the Lflcctivc Datc and shall tcrnrinatc as

sct lbrth in Section t herein.

I l. Notices. Notices shall bc givcn pursuant to this MOU by pcrsonal serricc on thc
Party to hc notitied. or by ,*rittcn notice upon such Party deposited in the cuslod) ofthe llnitcd
Statcs Postal SL-rvicc addrcssed as tirllows:

1

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 219



If to American Legion:
American Legion Post 4 i2
12.15 Ncbraska Avenuc
Selnra. CA 93662
(lunent Cornmandcr

It t(, C'ity:
Citl' of Sclma
I 7l 0 Tuckcr Street
Sclma, Calitbrnia ()3662

A ,enrion: ('ity \Ianager

With a Copy To:
Neal Costanzo, ( ity., i\ttorncy
575 E l.ocust r\vc tt I l5
Irrcsno, ('A 9J710

12. bdcmnification in /tqrccntcnts Relnted to the Land.tcani np I nr frror {:m cnts.
Thc Partics agrce lhat anv contract lor serviccs rendcred under an].- conlpetitive bid documcnts or
othcr agreemcnt related to the Landscaping Inrprovcments. shall incltrdc an indcmnification
provision whercin the successhrl hiddcr shcll def'end. hold harmlcss and indcmnily thc City and
the American [,egion, and any and all ofthcir ofticials. cmployees nnd agents, from and against
allclaims. Iiabilities, costs. expenscs. loss or damages ofany narure rvhatsoever. including
rcasonable atlorney's l'ees, arising oul ofor in any way connec(cd with any consultant and/or
contractol's tailurc Lo perfbrm its coverrants and obligations undcr anv agreemcnt arising out of
any., aBrecmcnt ilnd any of its operations or activities relatcd Lhereto.

13. I ndcnr n ification Under this lltOLr. American [.egron shall indemnity, hold
harmless, and dcf'end the City, its oft-iccrs, agents. and cmployccs. tiom and against any liahility
(including liahility lbr elaims. suits, actions, arbitration proceedings, administrative proccctlings,
rcgulakrry procr.edings, losscs. expcnses or cosls of any kind, whethcr actual. allcgcd or
thrcatened, inclLrding lcgal counseI fccs and cosls, court cosl.s, intcrest, defcnse costs, and cxpcrt
rvitncss [ces), whcre the samc arise out ot: &re a conscquence ol. or are in any rvay attributablc
to, in wholc or in part. this lv{OU.

ln the even! the ('ity, its otliccrs, cmployccs, agents and/or voluntccrs are madc a pa(y lo any
action, claim. larvsuir., or other advcrsarial proceeding arising fiom thc this lv1ot,. and upon
dcmand by City, American l-egion shall havc an immediate duty to dclcnd thc City at American
Legion's cosl or at City's option. to rcimbursc thc Cily lor its costs ofdelcnsc. including
reasonablc attornc)"s fces and costs incurrcd in the rlefcnse ofsuch matters.

14. l he Partics understand and agrce that the laws of thc State of Calilbrnia shali
gorcrn the rights, obligations, duties. and liabilities olthe parties to this MOt, and also govern
the interprctation ol'this MOt.i. Any litigation conceming this MOU shall take placc in thc
municipal- strpcrior, or lcdcral districL coun in Prcsno Countr. Llalitbrnia. [lany action at lalv or

.1

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 220



suit in equity is brought to cnlbr ce or interprcr rhe provisions of this MOU, or arising out of or
relating to this MOt I. thc prevailing party shall be cntitled Lo rcasonablc attomeys' t'ees and all
rclated costs, including costs ofexpcrt witnesscs and consultants, as well as costs on appeal. in
addition to any other rclicfto which it nray be entitled.

15. this MOLI contains the entirc understantling bctw'een thc Parties rclating to the
obligations of the Parties dcscribed in this MOLj. All prior or contemporancous agrccments,
understandings. reprcscntations. and statcments, oral or \!ritten and pcrtaining to the subjcct of
this lvlOLlor rvith respccl. to thc tcrms and conditions of this MOtl, are merged inttr this MOti
and shall be ol no lurther lorce or cflcct. lJach Party is entering into this \{OtJ bascd solely
upon thc rcpresentalions set forth hercin and upon each Party's own independent investigation of
any and all lacts such l)artv dccms nraterial.

16, Il'any l.clm or provision of this NIOLi or thc application theleol to any pclson or
circulnstance shall, to any extent, bc invalid or unenlorceahle. lhcn such tcrm or provision shall
bc arnended to, and solely [o. the extcnt necessary to curc such invalidity or unenforceahility, and
in its amcnded iirrm shall be cnfirrceahlc. [n such event, thc remaindcr ofthis Nl(X-t. or thc
application ol'such ternl or provision to pL'rson\ or cireumstanccs otlier than thosc as to rvhich it
is held invalid or unenlorccablc. shall not he allected therehy. and cach tcrm and provision of
this MOLI shlll be valid and bc entbrccd to the lirllest exl.cnt permittcd by la!,!,.

17. This I\4Otl nray be executcd in mulLiple countcrparts. each ol'whiclr shall he
deemcd an orrginal, hut all of which taken togrther shall constitutc one and the salne instrument

18, I he captions appearing at thc cornmenccmcnt of thc sections hereof, and in any
palagraph thereol, are descriptive only and shall have no signiticancc in the interpretation of this
MOL].

19. 'fhe rvaivcr by City or Amcrican Lcgion o f any breach ol' any tcrm, covcnant or
condition herein containcd shall not bc deemcd to be a w'aiver oIsuch term, covenant or
condition or of any subscqucnt hreach <lf the samc or any other term, covenant or condition
hercin oontaincd. No tcrm, covcnant or condilion of this MOLI .shall bc deemcd to havc been

waivcd by ('ity or American I-egion unless in rvriting.

20. l'iach right, powcr and rcmedy provided tbr hsrcin or now or heroafler exisling at

law, in cquity. by statute, or otherwisc shall bc cumulative and shall be in addition to evcry other
right, porvcr. or remcdy provided for hcrcin or now or hcrcafter existing at law, in equity, by
statutc, or ol.hcrlvise. 'l he excrcise, the commenscment olthc exercisc. or: thc lbrhearancc trlths
exercisc by any ['any ofany onc or more olsuch rights, powcrs or remedies shalI not preclude

thc simultaneous or later cxercise by such Parly ofany olall ofsuch other rights, powers or
rcmedies.

21. The person or persons exccr.lting this MOU on bchallofcach Party represents

and lvarrants that he/sl.rc has thc authorit;- to cxecute this MOLI on behal l'of that Pany and has

thc authorit,v- to hind that Parly to tho perlirrmance of its obligations hereundcr.

tN WITNFISS WHE,REOF. thc City and American [.egion have caused this
IVlenrorandum oI Llnderstanding to bc cxecutcd as of thc F.tfectivc Date.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 221



*CITY"

CITY OF SELMA

By,
Teresa Gallavan, City Managcr

ATTEST:

Rel na ra. City Clerk

Approved
I

to Form:

I Costanz-o. City Attomey

..AMERICAN LEGION"
SELMA POST #I2
AMERICAN LEGION

By:
Eliseo Commander

-6-

(/vA,L

e0t

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 222



CITY MANAGER'S,/STAFF'S REPORT
CTTY COUNCIL MEETING:

March 15,2021

ITEM NO:

SLJBJECT: As a Council request, Staff has placed the item on the agenda for
discussion.

DISCUSSION: At the August 17, 2020 City Council meeting, City Council approved an
MOU between the Ciry of Selma and American Legion Post #12 for improvements to the
Lincoln Park Veterans Plaza. American Legion is providing funding for the improvements
of the Veterans Plaza including the consnuction and installation offour statues.

Veterans Plaza Improvement Project Update:

. Masonry Wall (Back Side) removed along with the trees that overtime had
uplifted the back wall and created separation of the wall in several areas.

. Shifted elecgic boxes on grass area and secured to back masonry wall.
o Public Works ordered new lightrng and has been delivered.
. Staffmet with new a masonry company to evaluate the installation of the new

replacement back wall and is working directly with Basalite Concrete LLC.
r Public Works will be upgrading and replacing the sprinkler system around the

plaza once the new masonry wall has been installed.
. Statues once completed, delivered and installed within the plaza.

Prior to this project beginning, the poles that banners were placed on to promote events in
the front area of the plaza, had been removed. Staffdiscussed the installation of a new
marquee on the comer of McCall and Rose Avenue which would be used for promoting
events, services and public announcements within the City. This marquee would be partially
funded also by American Legion and would be used as a promotional tool only, not for ads.
With the amount of traffic daily at the intersection, residents would be able to be made aware
ofa variety ofservices, programs and public announcements. During the upcoming budget
discussion, consideration of the installation of a new marquee will be discussed. The
marquee is estimated berween to cost between $45,000.00 to $50,000.00 and an additional
$5,000.00 for infrastructure and elecric installation.

RECOMMENDATION: As a Council request, Staffhas placed the item on the agenda
for discussion

Mikal Kirchner, Director of Recreation Date

Teresa Gallavan, City Manager DateMay 3, 2021 Council Packet 223



May 3,2021

TTEM NO:
SUBJECT:

5
Council Priorities and Goals

RECOMMENDATION: Council discuss and approve or provide additional direction
regarding: 1) the updated top City Council Prioriries and Goals, and 2) Council request for a
list of all the Council suggested goals and who submitted them.

DISCUSSION: On March 19, 2021, the City Council held a priority and goal setting
session to provide staff direction that will also be used to develop the upcoming fiscal year
budget. Council established six priority areas: public safety, economic and community
development, communiry engagement/communication, customer service, and
infrastructure. Each Council Member developed a list of goals. Those goals were compiled
into one list and each Council Member voted for their top five goals. The top five goals of
each member and the priority areas they fall under are reflected in the attached matrix of
priority areas and goals (Attachment 1). Of note, none of the Council's top five goals were
under the prioriry area of customer service. Customer service is an integral part ofthe City's
Mission Statement and as such it is a priority for the City. Understanding customer service

is a constant value for the city, it could be removed from the attached list since no associated
goals rose to the level of Council's highest ranking projects in the year ahead.

We had proposed recording the goals without attributing to individual Council Members.
Council Member Mendoza-Navarro made a Council request for the matrix to show the
goals each Council Member voted for. Her reasoning is that Council Members are voted
into office to address matters and by recording who proposed what goals, constituents will
be able to see Council Members advocacy at work. If the Council would like to move

forward with recording the goals in that manner, staff has provided that documentation
(Attachment 2).

Attached is also a list of all the goals suggested (Attachment 3). We also had a Council
request from Council Member Mendoza-Navarro for this list to include who suggested what
goals. With Council direction, we can compile the information in that manner and provide

it to you as well.

RECOMMENDATION: Council discuss and approve or provide additional direction
regarding: 1) the updated top City Council Priorities and Goals, and 2) Council request for a
list of all the Council suggested goals and who submitted them.

/ s/ 04/29/2 1

Teresa Gallavan, Ciry Manager Date

CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT
CITY COUNCIL MEETING:

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 224



Attachment 1

Priority
Areas

FY 2O2l-22 Priorities Goals

Community
Engagement/communicatlon (5) Customer Service lnfrastructure (4)

(') is the number of votes

Public safety (4)

Economlc & Community
Development {12)

Sewer lnf rastructure (3)

Goal
Areas lncrease staffing {1) Balanced Housing (4) Selma Legacy Youth Center (3)

New Fire Station (2)

Retention with focus on
quality job opportunities
(1) Settle Super 8 Residents (1)

Street Signs Reparied/Replaced for Wayf inding

(1)

Gang Unit (1) complete new park (1)

Youth Centers, .lob Training (VROP

skilled training) (1)

complete Lincoln

Park/Veterans Park (1)

Downtown Revitalization

Strategic Plan (1)

Community Ambiance for
Downtown and evaluate

other commercial areas (1)

Parks/Ponding Basin (new

developments)(1)
PIan to clear up obstacles
preventing economic
growth (2)

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 225



qttachment 2

Color Code
Priority
Areas

Economic & Community
Development Customer Service lnfrastructure

Robertson Cho Mendoza-Navarro Trujillo Guerra

Goal

Areas

1 lncrease staffing

Sewer intrastruc{ure
(trunk line, etc) sewe, infrastructure (trunk line, etc) Parks/Ponding Basin (New developments)

2

Downtown Revitalization

Strategic Plan Complete new park

Plan to clear up outstandint
obstacles preventing economic

Srowth

Plan to clear up outstandint
obstacles preventing

economlc growth
Balanced housing (ie. senior, supportive,

affordable, market rate)

3

Business attraction and

retention with focus on
quality iob opportunities

Balanced housing (ie. senior,

supportive, affordable, market rate) New Fire Station

Community ambiance (Speakers, lithts on other
streets, banner) for downtown and evaluate

other commercial areas

4 Settle Super I residents

Balanced housing (ie.

senior, supportive,
affordable, market rate) Selma Legacy Youth Center

Balanced housing (ie. senior,

supportive, affordable,
market rate) New Fire Station

5

Development at Lincoln
Park,r'Veterans Park Selma LeBacy Youth Center

Youth centers, job training (VRoP

skilled training) Selma Le8acy Youth Center Gang Unit

Public Safety

Communitv
EnBaSem€nt/Communication

Scwer infrastructure (trunk
llne, etc)

Street Signs

repaired/replaced for
wayflndint

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 226



Attachment 3

ALL GOALS St:B}IITTED FOR CO\SIDERATIO\
Communi and Economic Develo ent: Balanced Housin
lnfrastructure: Sewer lnlidstructure (trunk line etc.)
Communi and Communications: Selma Le Youth Center
Communi and Economic De\e Plan to clear outJtan obnacles

Public S Neu Fire Station
lnftastructure: Street Iaced for rta
Communi and Economic Nerv Park

Communitv and Economic

ive Housin AJfordable. and Market Rate)

economtc

ls on other sEeets. banners) for Do*nto$n and evaluate other commcrcial arcas.

untlles

uicker

1r Comm Ambiance

Commun and Economic Develo Business Anraction and Retention raith f()cus on
Communi and Economic Develo Parks?ondin Ba^sin Nerr Devel ments)

Communi and Economic Develo Downtorm Revilalization Plan

Communi and Economic Develo l: Deve t al Lincoln Pa*-/Veterans Palk
Public Sa Increase Staffi
Public

and Communications: Youth Centers. Job Train VROP skilled traini
Conununi and Communications: Settle S 8 Residents

lnha-structure: Roads

lnlrastructure: Cross\r'alks

lntiastructurc: Side$alks and utters slorm drains
Communi and Economic Deve Creater Worki Pafln.rsh wl Chamber ofCommerce

Commun and Economic Create a Health Pa*
Comm and Economic Devel Business Anal ,siv Sales Tax

Comm and Economic Devel Vocational Train

Commun and Economic Derelo Tar Credit Pannershi

and Economic Develo Business Inr \cmenl Disricl
Clomm and Economic Develo t: Rela(i Codes

Comm and Economic Delel Grants

and Economic DeYel CommunitY Center

Communi and Economic Devel lncrcase relationshi 1rith d

Customer Service: Continue U Policies ard look for ures to increasc

Customer Servicc: Cal Waternvaste services

Customer Service: Train SIaff enhance skill sets)

Customer Se.\,ice: Pannersh with C Leaders

Customer Sen'ice: Timelinc for rvith check lisrs

Custome. Service: SorB*are tbr Permits

Customer Service: Crealer Professionalism

Customer Senicc: [-ist olall contracts with services. cost and e dates. Ad Hoc communi for Audits.

Customer Ssrvice: Procurement Pol

Customer Sen'ice: Trade Senice Contracv vendor Listin
Cuslomer Sen'ice: lncrease Stall l,evels

Customer Service: Streamline buildin o$ner activi \n.'ith new a-ses and abandoned or vacant lots to en

Public S Statlin level

Public frain enifications
Public Shotter dctection

Puhlic Reader-board at Ros€ /Mccall
Public Stick to

Communi and Communications: Finalize New website
Commun ent and Communications: Commun Carden

Communi ent and Communications: Senior Center

Communi t and Communications: Chamber ofCommerce /business ala
and Communications: Parurer lrifi FC Mental Health

Comm and Communications: Panncrshi with Continuum ofCare (COC
('omm t and Communications Commun

nt aod Communications: Homeless t Taskforce

t and Communications: Coordination rvith on Pcrmits

ment and Communications: More n restauran ts. an

Commun and Communications: Reader-board Rose,Mccall
Commu atld Communications: Greater Coordination with other Boards

inated E CES

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 227



CITY MANAGER'S/STAIIF'S REPORT
CITY COI,JNCIL MEETING:

May 3,2021

ITEM NO:

SUBJECT: Consideration of Early Construction Agreement with 1480 Skelton, LP
a Califomia Limited Parmership for Tract Map 5303 Phase III

RECOMMENDATION: Approve and authorize Ciry Manager to execute Early
Construcrion Agreement with 1480 Skelton, LP to authorize developer to complete limited
work on homes.

DISCUSSION: On August 16,2004, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative Tract
Map 5303 for development of a l92Jot single family residential subdivision on 51.8 acres
("Project"). The boundaries of the Project are Thompson Avenue to the west, Saginaw
Avenue to the south, and Valley View Street to the north. The Project was proposed to be
built in three (3) different phases. Currendy, two (2) phases have been completed and the
developer is prepared start construction on Phase III.

Phase III will consist of 36 single family homes plus a small community room. Each home
will be designed to be a LEED Platinum, net zero energy home and affordable housing. In
addition, this Project is utilizing the Califomia State Treasurer low-income housing tax credit
program. The final map has been filed with the Counry for recording and the Ciry is ready to
issue building permis for Phase III of the Project. To assist the developer in meeting is
estimated timeline of construction completion by January 2021, the developer has requested

an at-risk authorization to complete some work on the home foundations while concurrently
installing the off-site improvements until the final map has been recorded at the County. The
proposed building improvements are as follows:

. Pouring of foundation
o Connections of onsite to offsite utilities
. Any other onsite improvements necessary prior to going vertical

If approved by the City Council, the City will issue at-risk building permits pursuant to an
Agreement for Issuance of At-Risk Building Permis that will allow the developer to perform
the limited scope of work described above. All necessary inspections will still be required by
the Engineering and Building Departments. Once the County has completed its process of
recording the final map, full building permits can be issued from the City.

Staff requests authorization for the City Manager to execute the Agreement for Issuance of
At-fusk Building Permits to assist with the developer's construction timeline.

t,

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 228



RECOMMENDATION: Approve and authorize Ciry Manager to execute Agreement for
Issuance of At-Risk Building Permis with 1480 Skelton, LP to authorize developer to
complete limited work on homes

/ s/ 04/29 /2021

Isaac Moreno, Assistant City Manager Date

/s/ 04/29/202t

Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Date

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 229



RESOLUTION NO.2O2T-

A RESOLUTION OF TTIE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA,
CAIIFORNIA, APPROYING AN AGREEMENT FOR ISSUANCE OF AT-RISK

BUILDING PERMITS WTTH 1480 SKELTON ST., L.p., AND AUTHORTZING TIIE
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE TI{E SAME

WHEREAS, the City of Selma ("Ciry") approved vesting Tentative Tract Map No.
5303 for development of a 192-lot subdivision ("Projea") on approximately 51.8 acres
located on the southeast comer of Valley View Street and Thompson Avenue ("Property")
owned by 1480 Skelton St., L.P. ("Developer"); and

WHEREAS, Developer requests the City issue "at-risk" building permits to begin
work on certain on-site improvements for Phase III of the Project, as provided in the
Agreement for Issuance of At-Risk Building Permits ("Agreement") attached hereto as

Attachment A; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City to issue "at-risk" building permits for
Developer to commence limited on-site work for Phase III of the Project pursuant to the
Agreement.

NOW, TTmREFORE, TrrE CITY COLJNCIL OF TrrE CrTY OF SELMA DOES
IIEREBY RESOLYE AS FOLLO'IVS:

SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by
reference

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby approves the Agreement for Issuance of At-Risk
Building Permits with 1480 Skelton St., L.P., and authorizes the City Manager to execute
same.

SECTION 3. The City Manager or designee is authorized to take such other action as may
be necessary to carry out this Resolution. The City Manager or designee is authorized to
modifr or amend the approved Agreement as may be necessary to promote the best interests
of the City of Selma and is directed to confer with and obtain the approval of the City
Attomey as to the form and substance of any such modifications or amendments and to seek
other advice and counsel.

SECTION4. The provisions of this Resolution are severable and if any provision, clause,
sentence, word or part thereof is held illegal, invalid, unconstitutional, or inapplicable to any
person or circumstances, such illegality, invalidity, unconstitutionality, or inapplicability shall
not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions, clauses, sentences, sedions, words or
parts thereofofthe Resolurion or their applicabiliry to other persons or circumstances.

SECTION 5. That the Ciry Clerk shall certifu to the adoption of this Resolution and that the
same shall be in full force and effect.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 230



**********************************************

PASSED, APPROYED AND ADOPTED the foregoing resolution of the City of Selma was
duly and regularly adopted by the City Council of the City of Selma at a regular meeting held
on May 3,2021, by the following vote:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Scott Robertson, Mayor

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 231



RECoRDING REQUESTED BY, AND
Wner- ReconoeD, MArL To:

City of Selma
1710 Tucker Street
Selma, Califomia 93662
ATTN: City Manager (Space abo!e provided for Recorder)

)
)
)
)
)

)

)
r\_o recording or filing fee required: This docummt
exempt from fee pursuanl to Califomia Govemment
Code sections 6103 and 27383.

AGREEMENT FOR ISSUANCE OF
AT-RISK BUILDING PERMITS

(EARLY ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMITS
FOR PHASE III OF TRACT NO.5303)

CITY OF SELMA, FRESNO COUNTY, CA

APN: 390-020-855

THIS AGREEMENT, dated May 3.2021, is entered into between the City of
Selma, a Calilomia general law city ("City") and 1480 Skelton St,, L,P., a Califomia
Limited Partnership, doing business as Corporation for Better Housing ("Developer")
with respect to the following recitals which are a substantive part of this Agreement.

RECITALS

A. Developer owns approximately 51.8 acres of real property in the City of
Selma located on the southeast comer of Valley View Street and Thompson Avenue
("Property"), as more particularly described in Exhibit A.

B. The City approved development ofa 192-lot subdivision on the Property
("Project") pursuant to vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5303, to be completed in three
(3) phases, the locations of which are depicted in Exhibit A.

C. Phase I and Phase II of the Project are complete and Phase lll of the
Project is ready to commence construction, for which plans have been submitted, all fees

have been paid, and building permits are ready to be issued, with the only prerequisite
that remains is recording of the Final Map.

D. All conditions of approval of the Final Map have been satisfied by
Developer and Developer has filed the Final Map for recording with the County of
Fresno ("County").

E. Developer is commencing installation of off-site improvements (e.g.,

utility infrastructure) for Phase III and Developer requests approval to begin work on

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 232



certain on-site improvements for Phase III prior to the Final Map recording so the on-site
work can be performed concurrently with the off-site improvements.

F. Developer is willing to perform limited on-site work for Phase III "at-risk"
prior to recording of the Final Map, and to assume other duties and responsibilities as

further described in this Agreement.

G. No further approvals are required by City

H. City is willing to issue "arrisk" building permits for Developer to
commence limited on-site work for Phase Ill under the circumstances described herein to
facilitate the Project, but without commitment or guarantee as to if and when the Final
Map will be recorded, with Developer assuming the risk of any changes or amendments
to the Final Map required by the County and/or other circumstances that may cause the
permits to be changed, and with Developer's agreement to waive any and all claims
against City and to indemniff and hold harmless City from any and all damages or
liability arising out ofissuance of the "at-risk" building permits.

NOW THEREFORE, City and Developer agree as follows:

I . At-Risk Authorization for Phase III On-Site Work. Subject to the

conditions of this Agreement. Developer is authorized to commence on-sile
improvements for construction of Phase III in Tract 5303 upon issuance of "at-risk"
building permits. The work shall be limited to (1) pouring foundation, (2) connections of
on-site to off-site utilities, (3) any other on-site improvements necessary prior to going
vertical, and (4) any other work incidental to the foregoing. Should the aforementioned
work be completed prior to the recording of the Tract Map. the City shatl consider a
request from the Developer to go vertical. All work performed will be subject to
customary laws, regulations and restrictions as would be the case with any building
permit, including but not limited to: approval of plans; inspection of the work; payment

of all fees, including development fees. permit fees, connection fees, and inspection fees;

satisfaction of Selma-Kingsburg-Fowler sanitation District requirements; and compliance
with all laws. The work shall be performed at-risk and subject to a condition subsequent

that the Final Map be accepted by County and recorded.

2. No Guarantees as to Acceotance of Final Map. Developer acknowledges
that recording olthe Final Map is subject to customary processing by County and there is

no guarantee as to if and when the Final Map will be recorded or whether it will be

accepted by County without changes or amendments. Developer acknowledges that in
entering into this Agreement, City is not conferring any vested rights or entitlements on

Developer and the Developer bears the risk and costs of any changes or amendments to
the Final Map required by County, including any impacts to the building permits.

3. Stop Work. If County does not accept the Final map for any reason,

Developer shall immediately stop all work being performed pursuant to this Agreement.
City may order Developer to stop work at any time in order to protect the public health

2

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 233



and safety, in which case Developer shall immediately stop all work being perlormed
pusuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may, in its sole

discretion, authorize Developer to proceed with the work pursuant to this Agreement.

4. Removal of Improvements.

b. Removal by Citv. Should Developer fail to timely remove the

improvements and restore the Property, City, or any of its duly authorized
officers. employees or agents, are unconditionally permitted to enter upon the

Property and accomplish such removal and restoration at the cost of Developer. If
City causes such removal and restoration, Developer shall hold harmless, defend,

and indemnifo City, its officials. employees. and agents from all claims. damages.

expenses, and liability, including costs of suit and attomeys fees, on account of
any damages claimed to have occurred by reason ofsuch removal and restoration.

a. Costs of removal. Any costs and expenses of removal and

restoration shatl be the responsibility of Developer. Any cost and expense

incurred by City shall be a debt due and owing City that may be collecled in any

lawful manner. In addition, City may prepare a written recordable statement with
a description of the Property that the City Clerk or other City officer may record

in the Fresno County Recorder's office which shall become a lien on the Property

and appurtenances running in lavor of the City of Selma. In the event Developer

is entitled to a refund of any fees paid to City, City may retain from such refund

an amount sufficient to cover all or part of the costs and expenses of removal of
the improvements with any balance not utilized for this purpose to be retumed to
Developer.

5. Release and Waiver. Developer waives any claims that Developer may

have, either now or in the future, for damages or other monetary relief against the City
resulting from or in connection with City's action authorizing Developer to commence

construction of Phase III with the issuance of "at-risk" building permits or in any other

way arising out of the subject matter ol this Agreemenl. This waiver shall apply to all
known and unknown, anticipated and unanticipated injuries and damages resulting from
the activities described in the preceding sentence. In so agreeing, Developer hereby

knowingly waives the provisions of Section 1542 of the Civil Code of the State of
Califomia, which reads as follows:

"A general release does not extend to claim which the creditor does not know or
suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time ofexecuting the release. which if known by

him or her must have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor."

-l

a. Removal by Developer. Il Developer cannot proceed or chooses to
not proceed with the Phase III for any reason, including following a work
stoppage pursuant to Section 4. above, Developer shall remove from the Property
any improvements constructed pursuant to this Agreement and restore the

Property to its prior condition.

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 234



6. Hold Harmless and Indemnification. Devel oper shall indemnifu, defend
and hold the City, its officials, ofTicers, employees, agents, and volunteers harmless from
and against all claims, demands, causes ofaction, actions, damages, losses, expenses, and
other liabilities, (including without limitation reasonable attomey fees and costs of
litigation) ofevery nature arising out ofor in connection with this Agreement ("claims").
Developer's indemnity and defense obligations shall survive the expiration or termination
of this Agreement for any claims that arose or occurred during the term of this
Agreement.

7. Authority. Developer's representative who executes this Agreement
represents that he/she has the authority to execute this Agreement on behallof Developer
and to bind Developer to the Agreement. Attached as Exhibit B is evidence of this
authority.

8. Assisnmentl Bindina onSUCCESSOTS This Agreement shall be binding
upon the successors, assigns, transferees, and heirs of Developer. Developer may not
voluntarily assign this Agreement without City's written consent.

9. Recordable Covenant. This Agreement may be recorded with the Fresno

County Recorder's office, be a burden on the Property, and constitute a covenant running
with the land in favor of and for the benefit of the City of Selma. Developer and City
shall execute any additional documents necessary to record this Agreement with the

Fresno County Recorder's office. The burdens against the Property and covenant(s)
running with the land established by this Agreement shall immediately be extinguished
and removed from title upon the recording ofthe tract map. The obligations olDeveloper
set forth in Section 6 shall not be affected by this provision.

10. Enforcement. This Agreement shall be enforceable by City through any

legal or equitable means

CITY OF SELMA

B]: By:
Teresa Gallavan
City Manager

J :\wdocs\o3492\00 I \AGl\00t7 I 872.DOC

I48O SKELTON ST.. L.P

Lori Koesler
Executive Director

Corporation for Better Housing
Its Managing General Partner

4

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 235



ATTACH CALIFORNIA
ALL PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

)
May 3, 2021 Council Packet 236



EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Insertl

MAP

flnsertl

6

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 237



EXHIBIT B

EVIDENCE OF DEVELOPER AUTHORITY

7

May 3, 2021 Council Packet 238


	1.a. Minutes
	1.b. Minutes
	1.c. Minutes
	1.d. PSA BID AMI Concepts
	1.e. Resolution Authorizing REAP grant Application
	1.f. LOS Request B&G 
	1.g. PSA NDC Redistricting
	1.h. Special Event
	1.i. Check Register
	1.j. Adventist Health Toxicology
	2. Code of Conduct
	3. 19-20 Audit & Financial Statement
	4. Veterans Plaza
	5. Council Priority and Goals
	6. Valley View Tract 5303 Phase 3



